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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due

and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no

assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this annual report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever

arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
(the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,

and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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Dear the Shareholders

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), I hereby
present the audited consolidated results of Beijing Beida Jade
Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited and its subsidiaries

(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the year under review, the Group completed the
acquisition of a company engaged in the development,
manufacture and sale of high-end ceramic high-power LED
devices and modules as a subsidiary of the Company after a
cautious assessment of projects with good development potential,
in order to further expand the Group’s operating income and
profit stream. On the other hand, after reviewing the existing
investment portfolio held by the Group, the Group entered into
an equity transfer agreement to dispose of part of its interest in
an A share company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange to
realize the value of the investments held by the Group, which will
bring substantial cash inflow to the Group in preparation for the
Group’s continued expansion and diversification of its existing

business.

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus pneumonia (“COVID-197)
epidemic (the “Epidemic”) has affected most industries in China.
Despite the challenges, the Chinese government has implemented
a series of measures to contain the Epidemic. The Group will
closely monitor the development of the Epidemic and assess
the impact on its key businesses as the Chinese government has
been gradually relaxing measures to contain the Epidemic from
the fourth quarter of 2022 onwards and the Chinese economy is

expected to recover in 2023.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to our business partners, investors and customers for
their continued support, as well as to the dedicated management

and staff for their tireless contribution to the Group.

Ni Jinlei
Chairman and Executive Director

Beijing, the PRC
30 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o BELJE i B g

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in tourism development
business, investment holding of diversified portfolios and other
businesses including sales of metallic products and wine and
related products. During the year, the Group acquired 80%
equity interest in Guangdong Lumen Pioneer Opto Co., Ltd.
(“Guangdong Lumen”), which is principally engaged in sales
and production of high-end ceramic high-power LED devices
and modules, further details of which were set out in the section

headed “Sales and production of LED devices” below.

Tourism development

The Company, through its subsidiaries and associates, is
engaged in provision of environmental shuttle bus service
and property management services, and operation of tourist
facilities, entertainment performance, tourist service center and
tourist souvenir shops in the tourist area at Nanyue District,
Hunan Province, the PRC; and also participated in several
tourism development projects in Hunan Province, including the

development of tourist sight project located at Tianzi Mountain.

As a result of the Epidemic in the PRC, the number of tourists and
pilgrims visiting Hengshan Mountain scenic area was decreased
by about 28% for the year ended 31 December 2022. The service
utlisation rate of the Group’s environmental bus service remained
stable at 90% (2021: 91%).

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 15 May 2020, 26 June 2020 and 3 September 2021 and the
circular of the Company dated 30 June 2020. On 15 May 2020, the
Company entered into the sale and purchase agreement (the “SP
Agreement”) with an independent third party (the “Purchaser”)
and Chuangqi Tourism Investment Co., Ltd (“Chuanqi Tourism”),
a then non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, for the
disposal of the 60% equity interest in Chuanqi Tourism (the
“Sale Interest”) held by the Company at the consideration
of RMB172,028,880 (the “Disposal”); and the guarantee fee
arrangement in relation to the release of the guarantee agreement
(the “Guarantee Agreement”) executed by the Company and
the banks dated 31 January 2013 which secured the obligations
of Changsha Songya Lake Construction Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Soﬁgya Lake Construction”), under a facility agreement. The
release of the Guarantee Agreement shall be arranged within 12
| E"III_'n_onths_ from the equity transfer date through negotiation with the
.q}’:;él‘*nks..The completion of the Disposal (the “Completion”) took
place on 3 September 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Tourism development (Continued)

As at the date of this annual report, 12 months have passed
from the equity transfer date and the release of the Guarantee
Agreement has still not been completed. As at the date of this
annual report, negotiation with the banks regarding the release
of the Guarantee Agreement is still in progress and the final
agreement with the banks regarding the release of the Guarantee
Agreement can only be reached after the banks have completed its
internal approval procedures (“Bank Approval Procedure”) which
takes longer time than originally expected. It is currently expected
that barring unforeseen circumstances, completion of the Bank
Approval Procedure will take place and the Guarantee Agreement

will be released in the fourth quarter of 2023.

In addition, as at the date of this annual report, the remaining
balance of the consideration of approximately RMB142.0 million
(the “Consideration Balance”), which should have been due since
3 December 2020, i.e. 90 days from the Completion, remained
outstanding. The Purchaser recently proposed to the Company
that it shall pay the Consideration Balance in the fourth quarter of
2023.

Taking into account that (i) the time required for completion
of the Bank Approval Procedure is beyond the control of the
Purchaser and the Company; (ii) the response from the Banks
on the release of the Guarantee Agreement so far is positive and
there is so far no indication from the Banks that the release of
the Guarantee Agreement will be refused; (iii) the continuing
provision of the Guarantee by the Company shall be subject to the
Guarantee Fee and the Purchaser has been paying the guarantee
fee in accordance with the SP Agreement; (iv) in addition to
the guarantee fee, the Company is entitled to damages for
each overdue day for its breach; (v) the Purchaser has pledged
the Sale Interest in favour of the Company and the Target has
pledged all shares in Songya Lake Construction in favour of the
Company; (vi) the Purchaser has been paying the interest for
overdue accrued on the Consideration Balance in accordance
with the SP Agreement and (vii) Songya Construction Lake has
fully settled its obligations and liabilities under the facilities
agreement; the Company currently has no intention to terminate
the SP Agreement. However, the Company will closely monitor the
status of release of the Guarantee Agreement and payment of the
Consideration Balance and will make further announcement(s)
to update the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
and the investors of the Company of any material development as

and when appropriate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Investment holding

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s investment holding business
mainly included investments in a subsidiary, the associates
and joint ventures which are private equity funds with equity
investments in private enterprises and property projects in the
PRC and private enterprises principally engaged in semiconductor
materials and display devices businesses, the investment in Jade
Bird Fire Co., Ltd. (“Jade Bird Fire”), a A share listed company
in the PRC and the investments in financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) including
listed companies in Hong Kong and private companies in the PRC

and Hong Kong.

On 7 July 2022, the Company entered into a capital increase
agreement with the existing shareholders of Eta Semiconductor
Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (“Eta Shanghai”), pursuant to
which the Company agreed to inject RMB100,000,000 into Eta
Shanghai of which (i) RMB14,903,862.95 shall be contributed
to the registered capital of Eta Shanghai; and (ii) the remaining
balance shall be contributed to the capital reserve of Eta
Shanghai. Eta Shanghai is principally engaged in the technical
development, technical service, technical consultation and
technical transfer of semiconductor and new material technology;

and the sale of semiconductor materials and equipment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Investment holding (Continued)

The Directors considered that the investment in Eta Shanghai
represented good investment opportunities and were in line with
the Group’s vision to invest in target companies or businesses
having promising outlooks and prospects. The transaction would
allow the Group to enlarge its investment in Eta Shanghai and
its business activities. One of the existing shareholders, which
owned 34.12% of Eta Shanghai before the capital injection by
the Company, is wholly owned by the spouse of Mr. Liu Ziyi, the
non-executive Director. As such, Eta Shanghai is an associate
of Mr. Liu Ziyi and a connected person of the Company under
the GEM Listing Rules.

the capital injection by the Company constituted a connected

The transaction contemplated under

transaction for the Company. The approval of the independent
Shareholders in respect of the capital injection agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder was obtained at a
special general meeting of the Company held on 9 September
2022. Upon the completion of capital injection by the Company,
the Company held approximately 22.681% equity interest in Eta
Shanghai, which was treated as interest in an associate in the

Company’s financial statements.

On 21 November 2022, the Company and an independent third
party entered into the share transfer agreement, pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to sell, and the
independent third party has conditionally agreed to purchase,
the 44,900,000 shares of Jade Bird Fire, representing then 7.96%
of equity interests in Jade Bird Fire at the consideration of
RMB1,101,846,000.

Before completion, Jade Bird Fire was accounted as an associate
of the Company in the consolidated financial statements of
the Company using the equity method. After completion, Jade
Bird Fire would continue to be accounted as an associate of the
Company in the consolidated financial statements of the Company

using the equity method.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Investment holding (Continued)

The Directors considered that the partial disposal of the
Company’s equity interests in Jade Bird Fire would provide a
valuable opportunity for the Group to realise the value of its
investment in Jade Bird Fire with a substantial cash inflow to the
Group. Further, the disposal would enable the Group to improve
its working capital and strengthen its cash flow position so as
to facilitate its future development should opportunities arise,
thereby allowing the Group to expand and diversify its existing
business. The Directors are of the view that the terms of the
share transfer agreement are on normal commercial terms and
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole. The disposal constituted a very
substantial disposal of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.
The approval of the Shareholders in respect of the share transfer
agreement and the transaction contemplated thereunder was
obtained at a special general meeting of the Company held on 29
March 2023.

Sales and production of LED devices

On 10 March 2022, the Company entered into (i) an equity transfer
agreement with an independent third party and Guangdong Lumen
for the acquisition of the 80% equity interest in Guangdong Lumen
at the consideration of RMB84,486,160; and (ii) a repurchase
agreement pursuant to which upon occurrence of certain repurchase
events, Shanghai Shengjin Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Shengjin”) may require the Company or Guangdong Lumen to
repurchase the 20% equity interest in Guangdong Lumen owned by
Shanghai Shengjin at the option price of RMB22 million plus interest
of 10% per annum, if applicable. Upon the completion in April 2022,
Guangdong Lumen became a direct non-wholly owned subsidiary of

the Company.

Guangdong Lumen is principally engaged in the development,
manufacture and sale of high-end ceramic high-power LED
devices and modules, focusing on the research and development
and manufacturing of special light sources such as automotive,
stage,/curing, flash and plant growth. The products manufactured
include car lamp series, mobile lighting series, color light series,
etc.. The Board considered that the acquisition represented
a good opportunity to expand the Group’s business into the

.development, manufacture and sale of high-end ceramic

X 'ﬁj&gh-péwer LED devices and modules, in view of the promising

“future prospect of the market of the LED industries, which could

urther expand the source of the Group’s operating income and

«_ Tprofitand could bring returns to the Shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Trading of metallic products

During the year, the Group is engaged in sales and purchases of
metallic products in the PRC. The Group continues to explore

more opportunities for to expand the Group’s source of income.

Other businesses

The Group operated a winery, namely The Winery at la Grange,
at the State of Virginia, the United States, which owned a vineyard
and is principally engaged in the production and sales of wine and

related products.

Outlook

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the performance of
the Group’s business has been affected in light of the evolving
situation regarding the Epidemic and the policies and measures
implemented by the government of the PRC against the Epidemic.
The Group’s total revenue and profit from operations were
affected, in particular the decrease in the fare revenue of the
environmental shuttle bus service generated by the Group’s
tourism development business and the decrease in orders entered
into by the Group’s trading of metallic products business. With
the relaxation and removal of the Epidemic restrictions by the
government of the PRC since December 2022, it is expected that
the outlook for China’s economic growth will pick up in 2023 and
the recovery of the economic growth will have a positive impact
on the Group’s business. The Group would closely monitor the
performance of its main businesses and the existing investment
portfolio held by the Group during the post-Epidemic period. The
Group would only explore investment projects with promising
development potential in a prudent manner and carefully assess
investment opportunities in the market in order to create a better

return for the Shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Tourism development

Fare revenue from tourists and pilgrims continued to be the
main source of income of the Group’s tourism development
business. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
tourism development business recorded revenue of approximately
RMB86.6 million (2021: RMB110.8 million), representing a
decrease by 21.8% when compared with the corresponding period
of 2021. Such decrease was mainly due to the frequent outbreaks
of the Epidemic and the policies and measures implemented by
the government of the PRC to deter the Epidemic in the PRC
during the year.

Investment holding

The segment total assets of investment holding business increased
by 17.4% to approximately RMB3,725.2 million as at 31 December
2022 (2021: RMB3,172.9 million). The increase was mainly
attributable to the Group’s additional capital injection into Eta
Shanghai during the year and the increase in the Group’s share of

carrying amount of interests in associates.

Sales and production of LED devices

The financial results of Guangdong Lumen have been
consolidated with the results of the Company since the completion
of its acquisition in April 2022. Revenue generated from
Guangdong Lumen after the completion of acquisition amounted

to approximately RMB32.7 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Trading of metallic products

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue generated from
the Group’s trading of metallic products business amounted to
approximately RMB147.2 million (2021: RMB273.6 million),
representing a decrease by 46.2% year-on-year. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in orders entered into by the
Group after considering the price fluctuation of the metallic
products. The gross margin was 2.3% (2021: 2.2%) during the

year.

Other businesses

Revenue generated from the winery amounted to approximately
RMB9.6 million (2021: RMB10.2 million), which remained stable.

Overall performance

During the year under review, the business and financial
performance of the Group were affected as a result of the
frequent outbreaks of the Epidemic in the PRC. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, total revenue recorded by the Group
amounted to approximately RMB276.2 million (2021: RMB394.6
million), representing a decrease of 30.0% compared with the
corresponding period of 2021. The gross profit was decreased
by 36.2% to approximately RMB38.4 million (2021: RMB60.2
million). During the reporting period, Jade Bird Fire, the
associate of the Company issued new shares under its non-pubic
share offering and share rewards and option schemes. The equity
interests in Jade Bird Fire held by the Company were diluted from
36.85% as at 31 December 2021 to 31.88% as at 31 December
2022. The Company recorded a gain of approximately RMB220.2
million (2021: loss of RMB5.3 million) on deemed partial disposal
of Jade Bird Fire. Despite of the decrease in total revenue and
gross profit, the Group recorded the increase in the profit from
operations to approximately RMB155.3 million (2021: loss of
RMB27.8 million) and the increase in profit attributable to owners
of the Company by 109.7% to approximately RMB333.4 million
(2021: RMB159.0 million) for the year ended 31 December 2022,
mainly because of the gain on deemed partial disposal of an

associate recorded by the Company during the reporting year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Financial position

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s current ratio (being ratio of
current assets and current liabilities) and the gearing ratio (being
measured by total loans and lease liabilities to equity attributable
to owners of the Company), which are the key position and
financial leverage, were 0.60 (2021: 0.64) and 28.7% (2021:
24.2%) respectively. Decrease in current ratio and increase in the
gearing ratio were mainly due to the raise of additional bank and
other loans for business operations during the year. The Group
has been actively negotiating with banks and other borrowers for
new loans and renewal of current existing loans in order to cope

with the business operations and expansion.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s main core businesses are subject to the several key
risks and uncertainties including, and among others, operating

risks and financial risks.

Operational risks

The Group faces several potential operational risks including
relaxation of the local authority’s policy to other service
providers to operate the shuttle bus service, the industrial policy
risks and the implementation of administrative measures by
government in relation to the Epidemic. If there is unfavorable
adjustment of the local authority’s policy, the industrial policies
and the administrative measures in relation to the tourism and
manufacturing industries in the PRC, there may have an adverse
effect on the Group’s net profit. The Board always monitors
market situation in order to react promptly over any potential
risks. The Board meets and discusses with directors of subsidiaries
frequently to keep track of their situations so that it can adjust
segmental strategies timely. The Group has already set out
strategies including quality control enhancement, stringent cost
control and business diversification to deal with different kinds of

operational risks.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)
Financial risks

The Group also exposes to a variety of financial risks including
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and

interest rate risk.

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), US dollars (“USD”),
Canadian dollars (“CAD”), Euro (“EUR”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).
The Group does not formulate a foreign currency hedging policy
at present as turnover, most of the costs and operating expenses
are denominated in RMB and they are automatically hedged,
leaving limited currency risk. The Group closely monitors its
exposure and will take measures to lower foreign currency risk

when necessary.

The Group exposes to equity security price risk as listed equity
securities included in its financial assets at FVTOCI are measured
at fair value. The change in fair value of the listed securities will
lead to the fluctuation of fair value changes of financial assets at
FVTOCI included in the Group’s total comprehensive income.
The Group has not mitigated its price risk arising from the listed

equity securities.

The Group exposes to certain credit risk coming from certain
financial assets held by the Group, which include cash and cash
equivalents, and receivables. The Group’s tourism development
segment mainly generated fare revenue from environmental
shuttle bus service and the credit risk was low. The Group is
engaged in sales and purchases of metallic products and sales and
production of LED devices and recorded trade receivables as at
31 December 2022. An increase in trade receivables will result in
a decrease in the Group’s operating cash flow and an increase in
the Group’s operating risk. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding trade receivables and monitors credit
terms of the customers. Senior management of each subsidiary
reviews overdue balances regularly. The Group maintains good
cooperation with the customers and customer credit is in good
condition. The Group does not develop particular policy to tackle
credit risks from cash and cash equivalents at present as the
major counterparties are either well-established or having high

credit-rating.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)

Financial risks (Continued)

The Group’s measure over liquidity is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient cash reserves to meet its liquidity requirements in short

and long term.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises from its bank
deposits and bank and other loans. The risk varies with the

prevailing market condition but is limited.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest
environmental standards and strictly follows the applicable
environmental requirements imposed by the PRC government in
its operation. For the year under review, the Group complied with
influential laws relevant to waste gas or greenhouse gas emissions,
water or land discharging, hazardous or non-hazardous wastes,
and use of resources. The Group strives to reduce destruction
to the environment by saving energy and encouraging recycle of
office supplies. Besides, the environmental buses operated by the
Group are equipped with anti-smoking devices and do not use

heavy-duty diesel to reduce pollution.

The Group’s main core businesses are carried out by principal
subsidiaries in the PRC and the United States of America and the
Company was listed on the Stock Exchange in 2000. The Group
strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations to ensure

sustainable development of its businesses.

S 5 el e (76)
st 5 L e (A8

7 4R o) S O B R Y i e E A K A
WM EENRS EEFTE > RAELEGERSL
Bl BAENERNRS EEFE -

AR T TR AR By 0 SR AT A7 A LA R SRAT I HoAt B
T TH] 365 ) 5 T e o A e g BB B AT T DL 5
HEAR -

BR AR BOR BOE SP IR B

AR R AR LB > MR R KT BR R
e ) B e A% 5 <Y R I SRS it o ) 2 R DR AR
SE o A [ BEAF BE > A 42 T ST B SR B AR
B P~ K B PR A O B A R
SRR B 9 Rk o AR AR I B A % S
AR =G ER T - BB BRI
R o MEAh > ARG IEE A BRAR B 26 T
iy 8 4% B R AN i EE R el o DA TS g e

A A ] 1Y) S B AZ 0 SE5 R B R SRR ) T B
Wi JBg 2 W AL BAS N AR R R AT S
Jir T o A B2 I A T < A BRI R R R
il PR HL S O AT FR AR o

\ %
A
X %
M
4&_ ;{k &
W T
ﬁd.,
X
/ 15 Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

Annual Report 2022



Management Discussion and Analysis

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group’s customers mainly comprised of tourists and pilgrims,
trading partners from business of sales and purchases of metallic
products and sales and production of LED devices. The Group
is committed to provide good-quality environmental shuttle bus
services to the customers. The Group has a business team to
execute sales contracts with the trading partners and maintains
good relationship with the trading partners. The business
team is mainly responsible for the evaluation of qualification
of trading partners and coordinating the relationship between
trading partners, while the Group’s finance department is mainly

responsible for assessing credit limit and control.

The Group has a close and good relationship with key suppliers
in relation to the operation of the environmental shuttle bus
services and businesses of sales and purchases of metallic products
sales and production of LED devices. The Group strictly regulated
procurement procedures in relation to supplier evaluation and
selection, and acceptance of purchased products. In addition,
there are a relatively a number of suppliers in the market and

relatively stable purchase prices could be maintained.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Saved as disclosed herein this section, during the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group did not effect any material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures which

would be required to be disclosed under the GEM Listing Rules.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s major
operations were financed mainly by the internal financial
resources, by corporate borrowings and by net proceeds from
placing of new H shares of the Company in 2021. As at 31
December 2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB227.7 million, which were denominated mainly
in RMB, HK$ and USD.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net assets of
approximately RMB3,728.5 million (2021: RMB3,348.5 million).
The Group had total outstanding borrowings of approximately
RMB943.5 million (2021: RMB701.9 million) which consisted of
secured bank and other loans of approximately RMB891.7 million
(2021: RMB643.3 million) and unsecured bank and other loans of
RMB51.8 million (2021: RMB58.6 million). The bank and other
loans were denominated in RMB and USD and bore interest rates

ranging from nil to 6.18% per annum.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s outstanding number
of issued non-listed shares and H shares of RMB0.10 each were
700,000,000 shares and 814,464,000 shares respectively.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2022, which is
measured by total loans and lease liabilities to equity attributable
to owners of the Company, was 28.7% (2021: 24.2%). During the
year, the total bank and other loans were increased for continuous

business expansion and development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING UNDER
GENERAL MANDATE

In respect of the placing completed on 30 March 2021, the
Directors intended that approximately 80% of net proceeds
from the placing would be applied to potential mergers and
acquisitions and/or development of new businesses; and
approximately 20% of the net proceeds from the placing would be
applied as working capital of the Group. Details of the above were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 17 March
2021 and 30 March 2021 (the “Announcements”).

All the net proceeds has been utilised up to 31 December 2022
in accordance with the proposed applications set out in the

Announcements as follows:
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held financial assets at
FVTOCI of approximately RMB239.2 million, representing 4.8%
of the total assets of the Group.

Saved as herein this section, for the year ended 31 December

2022, the Group had no significant investment held.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Saved as disclosed herein this section, the Group did not have any

significant investment plans as at 31 December 2022.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had contingent liabilities in the sum of approximately
RMB300.0 million in respect of guarantee for banking facilities

granted to associates and a former associate of the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other

significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is exposed to certain foreign currency risk as most
of its business activities, assets and liabilities are denominated in
USD, CAD, RMB, EUR and HK$. The Group has not formulated
a foreign currency hedging policy as turnover and most of the
production costs and operating expenses are denominated in
RMB and they are automatically matched, leaving limited currency
risk. The Group continues to monitor its foreign exchange
exposure and will take measures to lower the foreign currency risk

when necessary.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s certain fixed assets with
carrying amount of approximately RMB277.1 million (2021:

RMB?SI--A million), investment properties with carrying amount

.and equity interest of an associate were pledged as securities for
| o | e

N ﬁ‘I{e Group’s bank and other loans.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group considers people as the valuable assets. The Directors
are of the view that the Group maintains good working relations
with its employees. The Group had workforce of 584 people
situated mainly in the PRC, Hong Kong and the United States
at the end of reporting year, up 12.3% since the end of 2021.
The Group strictly complied with applicable labour law and
regulations. Competitive remuneration package with medical and
travel insurance are offered to the staff. Adequate retirement
funds and provident funds are contributed on a timely basis. The
Group emphasizes on working safety and sets out proper safety
guidelines and provides adequate training to workers. Staffs are
free to set up trade union according to applicable laws while
the supervisory committee of the Company (the “Supervisory

Committee”) had representative from the workforce.

Director’s emoluments consist of fees, salaries and allowances, and
discretionary bonus determined according to the performance
of individual Director. The remuneration of the Directors
is determined having regard to each of their duties and

responsibilities in the Company.

The Group’s staff costs, including directors’ emoluments,
employees’ salaries and retirement benefits scheme contribution
amounted to approximately RMB62.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: RMB60.5 million). Increase was mainly
attributable to the business expansion of the Group and acquisition
of Guangdong Lumen which became a subsidiary of the Company

during the year.
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ER-EFLRRETHEZ B

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ni Jinlei, aged 55, was appointed as a non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Company on 30 June 2015 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 31 May 2018. Mr. Ni was
graduated from the Peking University with a Bachelor’s degree
in computer software in 1987. Mr. Ni was the computer software
engineer of Shenzhen Taiji Software Engineering Company,
manager of computer department of the securities exchange
center in Hainan, general manager of Guangzhou Nanfang Jade
Bird Information System Co., Ltd., senior manager of Integrated
Software and Device Corporation (USA), software architect of
ABB Energy Information System (USA), chief executive officer of
Beijing Beida-Online Network Co., Ltd., China regional director
(Young Learners’ English) of Global English Corporation,
founder and chief executive officer of Beijing Jinwenlang
Information Technology Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ni is currently a director of
Chuangqi Tourism Investment (Hunan) Co., Ltd., Beida Jade Bird
Universal Investments (HK) Limited, Beida Jade Bird Universal
Sci-Tech (Cayman) Development Company Limited, Beida Jade
Bird Universal (Cayman) Investment Company Limited and Beida
Jade Bird Universal Investment (BVI) Limited which are the
subsidiaries of the Company, and the chairman of Beijing Xizhi

Education Technology Co., Ltd. and a director of Jade Bird Fire.

Ms. Zheng Zhong, aged 46, is an executive Director and the
president of the Company. Ms. Zheng was graduated from the
Molecular Biology Department of the School of Life Sciences at
Peking University in July 1997 and subsequently obtained an MBA
degree from the China Centre for Economic Research at Peking
University in July 2007. Ms. Zheng worked for the Biological
Engineering Centre under the Institute of Chemical Metallurgy
(now Institute of Process Engineering) at Chinese Academy of
Sciences, Department of Biology at Shenzhen University and
Shenzhen Kexing Bioproducts Co., Ltd.. She was also an assistant
to the president of SINOGEN (China) Investment Company,
assistant to the head of Genetics Research Institute of the School
of Life Sciences at Tsinghua University, president of Beijing
Beida-Online Network Co., Ltd., vice president of Beida Culture
Group, and assistant to president of Beijing Beida Jade Bird
Limited (“Beida Jade Bird”) and the general manager overseeing
major projects. She is currently an executive director and general
nanager of Beijing Jade Bird Yuda Information Technology
b Y Co Ltd. which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
“She is also a director and deputy general manager of SBI-BDJB

_Investment Consultant Ltd. and a director of Jade Bird Fire.
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

HE - BREARREHEZ N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Wang Xingye, aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director,
the compliance officer and the vice president of the Company on
21 May 2021. Mr. Wang attended master post-graduation level. Mr.
Wang has worked in Beida Jade Bird. He is currently a director
of Chuanqi Tourism Investment (Hunan) Co., Ltd., Beijing Jade
Bird Hengsheng Investment Management Co., Ltd., Ningbo Jade
Bird Zhengyuan Equity Investment Management Co., Ltd., Ningbo
Jade Bird Venture Capital Investment Co., Ltd., Ningbo Jade Bird
Liyuantai Venture Capital Management Co., Ltd., Beida Jade Bird
Universal Investments (HK) Limited, Beida Jade Bird Universal
(Cayman) Development Company Limited, Beida Jade Bird
Universal (Cayman) Investment Company Limited and Beida Jade
Bird Universal Investment (BVI) Limited, which are subsidiaries
of the Company. He is also currently an executive director and
the general manager of Beijing Jade Bird Dingsheng Investment
Management Co., Ltd., and the chairman of the supervisory
committee of Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited
(a company list on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 747)). Mr.
Wang joined the Company in March 2000 and is the secretary to
the Board, the director of Human Resources of the Company and

the chairman of the labor union of the Company.

Ms.
Director and the vice president of the Company on 21 May 2021.

Guan Xueming, aged 51, was appointed as an executive

Ms. Guan was graduated from North China University of Water
Resources and Electric Power with a Master’s degree. Ms. Guan
is a certified accountant in the PRC, a certified tax agent in the
PRC, a certified internal auditor and a certified accountant with
securities qualification. She has extensive experience in financial
management, and was the engineer of Nanning City Water Supply
Company, the deputy director of Zhonglei Certified Public
Accountants Co., Ltd. and the financial controller of Jinjilie
International Study Service Co., Ltd.. She is currently the director
of Guangdong Xinrui Luming Optoelectronics Co., Ltd., the
director of Jade Bird Semiconductor Technology (Tongling) Co.,
Ltd., and the director of Shanghai Xianyao Display Technology
Co., Ltd..
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

FH - BREARREEZ BN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Liu Ziyi, aged 29, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 20 May 2022. Mr. Liu was graduated from the Johns Hopkins
University in 2016 with a double bachelor’s degree in applied
mathematics and statistics and economics. Mr. Liu has worked
in the investment banking department of UBS Investment Bank,
and was responsible for the listing of financial institutions,
debt issuance, mergers and acquisitions consulting and other
services. He is currently a director of Guangdong Xinrui
Luming Optoelectronics Co., Ltd., which is a subsidiary of
the Company. He is also the director of Gaite Semiconductor
Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Gaite Semiconductor
Technology (Tongling) Co., Ltd., Shanghai Xianyao Display
Technology Co., Ltd., Hefei Xianyao Integrated Circuit
Technology Co., Ltd., Jade Bird Semiconductor Technology
(Tongling) Co., Ltd., Beida Jade Bird Culture and Education
Investment Group Co., Ltd., Zhuhai Beida Education Science
Park Co., Ltd., Beijing Jade Bird Hongdao Education Consulting
Co., Ltd., and Beijing Jade Bird Education Technology
Development Co., Ltd..

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Xuan, aged 50, was appointed as an non-executive
Director on 15 May 2020. Mr. Tang was graduated from
Chongqing University with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering,
and is a certified accountant in the PRC and a member of
Institute of Public Accountants in Australia. He worked in
Zhongxin Coopers Certified Public Accountants in the PRC
and is currently an audit partner of ShineWing Certified Public
Accountants in the PRC, and has 27 years of professional
experience in investment, finance and auditing. He has been
responsible for the audit assurance, special services, corporate
asset reorganization, restructuring and listing of some large
enterprise groups. He was an external independent director of
Zhongji Investment Co., Ltd. and an external expert committee
member of loan review department of China Development
Bank. He is currently an external independent director of
Shouyi Medical Health Investment Management Co., Ltd. and
an iridependent director of Lizhong Sitong Light Alloy Group
Co., Ltd. (an A share company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 300428)).
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

HE - BREARREHEZ N

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Li Chonghua, aged 67, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2015. Mr. Li is a member of
the Chinese Communist Party. He is a post-graduate, qualified
as economist, and holds a practicing certificate of securities
practitioner. He was the deputy chief economist, the director
of the integrated plan unit and the director of reformation of
Beijing Chemical Second Plant. He was the board secretary and
the director of securities department of Beijing Chemical Second
Plant Co.,

department of China Securities Regulatory Commission.

Ltd.. He was seconded to listed company regulatory

Mr. Shen Wei,

non-executive Director on 31 May 2018, Mr. Shen was graduated

aged 60, was appointed as an independent

from the department of precision instruments of the Tsinghua
University with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering in 1985. Mr.
Shen co-founded “CIWEEK” and served as the first chief editor
in 1998, who has made contribution to the enlightenment
and development of internet in the PRC. He then co-founded
the website, namely “eNet” and Yinhe Liandong Information
Technology Company, and has extensive experience in internet
strategy, products and operations. Mr. Shen has dozens of
patented inventions in the field of two-dimensional code
technology. In 2015, Mr. Shen established Beijing Dama
Technology Co., Ltd. to focus on the application of innovative QR
code technology, especially the basic technology and application
in the field of secure QR code and multi-screen interaction.
Mr. Shen has worked for Beijing Institute of Optoelectronics
Technology, Beijing office of East Asiatic Company, Beijing
Changwei Technology Development Co., Ltd., CIWEEKLY, Yinhe
Liandong Information Technology Company, Beijing Huayu
Xinma Technology Co., Ltd., etc.. He is currently the founder and
chief executive officer of Beijing Dama Technology Co., Ltd..

CHIEF SCIENTIST

Professor Wang Yangyuan, aged 89, was appointed as the
Chief Scientist of the Company in May 2000. Professor Wang is
responsible for overall technological research and development
and monitoring the investment in Semiconductor Manufacturing

International Corporation.
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ER-EFLRRETHEZ B

SUPERVISORS B
Mr. Fan Yimin, aged 64, is the chairman of the Supervisory R 64K BEFE IR - UL
Committee. Mr. Fan was graduated from Zhejiang University with —JUN— R E R WL RE R LR - JUEE

a bachelor’s degree in Chinese language in 1981. Mr. Fan worked B AT BT T Y N B IERRY g 4 A 2 WL
in the liaison office of the people’s government of Zhejiang HESNE Go w R E LB A o 1K
Province, Zhejiang Foreign Trade Company and Zhejiang Qujiang BULMM EREFEZGEE - PRESULER
Industrial Company. He is currently a member of the management BUIN 0 e e = S AL R 5 s AT 883~ et
committee of Lingyin Temple in Hangzhou, president of REHBEA R 7 F R AR - Jo
Hangzhou Branch of the School of Chinese Culture and an AREFERMGRFARAAI#ESE - Jbtdtk
executive president of Beida Jade Bird, the chairman and general TEM A A R A A H R R L b
manager of Beijing Beida Educational Investment Co., Ltd., the WA GHECT RS BOE FRE®) AT
director of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software System Co., Ltd., the EHEEBA -

chairman and general manager of Beijing Beida Online Network

Co., Ltd., the executive partner of Shanghai Zhongju Planning

Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership).

Mr. Ouyang Zishi, aged 67, was appointed as an independent kK7 A e 67K 0 R T E — FAEARH
Supervisor on 30 June 2015. Mr. Ouyang worked for Beijing ST AR BB o BT TAE
Pastry Factory, the Association of Culture and Arts in Beijing, the A AU E T S — RS B R~ b oAb 2l AL B S
Audiovisual Press of the Bureau of Culture in Beijing and the &~ et SOfb R A R AN L 5T A
Beijing Television. Mr. Ouyang was the director and producer of B o WP ST A R TEAR B COR B 77 (B A A
“KEtJ7E”, a TV series, and the column director and producer FAAEN > R BHE B G AT K M E 1
of “JXMWAKK”, a TV program. Mr. Ouyang is currently the i R BN o B e AR B AL R ST 5
executive director and the legal representative of Beijing Evercare P e LA M A R EAE A Al AT 5 I
Shichiku Medical Beauty Clinic Company Limited. HEEREAN -

Mr. Pan Yudong, aged 53, was appointed as a Supervisor on 31 WwE R A B3R R F - NFELNA
May 2018, Mr. Pan is a senior engineer (professor level), and was e el = I E Y o A VA s Rl A
graduated from department of computer science and technology LARRG (BZAR) > — JLIVEAEL BRI
of Tsinghua University with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering in e TSR SR B T R - MR AR
July 1990. He has worked for Taiji Computer Company, Shenzhen BB o ARG IR MR T AR A R BRIIR
Taiji Software Company, Taiji-DEC Software Center, Beijing MR A A 7] - KA-DECHE {0 ~ bt KB
Tiankeyi Technology Co., Ltd., Taiji United Laboratories of HAITA R EAL A A ~ {5 B = 256 KM A
Ministry of Information Industry, Beijing Hengdefang Company, BB E - U A ]~ IR A A
Anshi Internet Security (China) Co., Ltd., Beijing Qiming R (PR BRAA -~ LB R R %
Xingchen Information Security Technology Co., Ltd., Beijing M A RA A~ RS BRSO A
Yongxin Zhicheng Technology Co., Ltd., Harbin Antiy Technology PR W)~ e T 9 4 KR AR Iy A R A
Group/ Co., Ltd., the chief strategy officer of 360 Government B SN F AR T A A T T BN B AR o W
b & Enterprise Security Group, etc.. Mr. Pan is currently the chief A B A RO B R AR B B IR A PR )
_ strategy officer of Venustech Group Inc. (an A share company (— I FE TR Y8 25 22 5 B b AT 22 ®) OBy

" listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002439)) and FRHE : 002439) ) I BN K b B R R AR
‘the executive Director of China Computer Federation. B -
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

HE - BREARREHEZ N

SUPERVISORS (CONTINUED)

Ms. Cao Zhenzhen, aged 40, was appointed as a Supervisor on
21 May 2021. Ms. Cao was graduated from Hubei University
with a Bachelor’s degree in Chinese language and literature
in 2002 and subsequently obtained a Master’s degree in law
at Peking University in 2005. Ms. Cao joined the Company in
2005. She is currently the investment manager of the Company
and the supervisor of Beijing Jade Bird Hengsheng Investment

Management Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company.

Ms. Zhou Min, aged 46, is a Supervisor. Ms. Zhou was graduated
from the Department of Administration Management of Renmin
University of China with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws. She
obtained a Master’s degree in economics from the University
of International Business and Economics in 2005. Ms. Zhou
joined Beida Jade Bird in July 1999 and subsequently joined
the Company in March 2000. She is primarily responsible for
administration and human resources of the Company. She is the

employee representative of the Supervisory Committee.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Chi Hung, aged 47, is the financial controller and
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor
degree in Business Administration in Accounting from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Chan has over 24
years of experience in finance, accounting, company secretarial
and compliance areas and worked for international accounting
firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified

Accountants. Mr. Chan joined the Group in September 2012.

Mr. Hu Lushan, aged 56, attended post-graduation level. Mr.
Hu is a senior accountant, and holds the certificate of senior
accountant, the certificate of senior tax agent and the certificate
of Certified Management Accountant (CMA). He has worked in
Beijing Building Materials Millstone Factory of Beijing Building
Materials Group as the accountant, the chief accountant and
the finance director; Beijing Yiheng Decoration Design Co., Ltd.
as the finance manager; and Beijing Northern Electric Power
Engineering Co., Ltd of the China Electricity Council as the
finance manager. Mr. Hu joined the Company in June 2001 and is

the person in charge of finance department of the Company.
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Report of the Directors
Ef Aok e

The Directors hereby present their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and

the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is engaged in the investment holding during the
year. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
43 to the consolidated financial statements. Further discussion
and analysis of business review of these activities, including a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future development in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 5 to 20 of this annual report. Such

discussion forms part of this report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set

out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 67.
The state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 68
to 69 and note 37(a) to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2021: Nil) for the year.

No interim dividend was declared in 2022 (2021: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years is set out on page 211. This summary does not form part of

the audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details‘of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group durlng the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated

f1nanc1al statements
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BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Details of the bank and other loans of the Group are set out in

note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the properties held for investment are set out in note 19

to the consolidated financial statements and on page 210.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the Company
Law of the PRC which oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out
in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements and in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, an amount of approximately
RMB605.8million (2021: RMB605.8 million) standing to the
credit of the Company’s capital reserve account and an amount
of approximately RMB86.7 million (2021: RMB86.7 million)
standing to the credit of the Company’s statutory reserve funds, as
determined under the PRC accounting standards and regulations,
were available for distribution by way of future capitalisation
issue in accordance with the PRC Company Law. The Company
had, as described in note 37(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, retained profits of approximately RMB128.3 million
(2021: RMB132.8 million) as at 31 December 2022. Details of the
distributable reserves are set out in note 38 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue
attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 25.1% (2021: 29.6%) of the Group’s total revenue
and the revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 57.9% (2021: 69.3%) of the total

revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the costs incurred
in respect of the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 59.1% (2021: 32.1%) of the Group’s total cost of
sales and services and the costs incurred in respect of the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 66.2% (2021:

79.9%) of the Group’s total cost of sales and services.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and

suppliers.

DONATIONS

The Group had not made any donations during the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB52,000).
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors during the year and at the year end
are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ni Jinlei

Ms. Zheng Zhong
Mr. Wang Xingye
Ms. Guan Xueming

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Ziyi (appointed on 20 May 2022)
Mr. Xiang Lei (resigned on 20 May 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tang Xuan
Mr. Li Chonghua
Mr. Shen Wei

Supervisors

Mr. Fan Yimin

Mr. Ouyang Zishi
Mr. Pan Yudong
Ms. Cao Zhenzhen
Ms. Zhou Min

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, all Directors and
Supervisors are eligible for re-election.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Profile of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 21 to 26.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Mr. Liu Ziyi was appointed for a term commencing from 20 May
2022 until the conclusion date of annual general meeting to be
held by the Company in 2024. Each of the other Directors and
Supervisors has entered into a service contract with the Company

for a term of three years commencing on 21 May 2022.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has
any existing or proposed service contracts with the Company as at
31 December 2022, excluding contracts expiring or determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors the written annual confirmation of its
independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company, based on such confirmation, considers all of the

independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to which
the Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or Supervisor of
the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Saved as disclosed under the section “Connected transactions”
below, there is no material contract between the Group and the

controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
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DIRECTORS’,

EXE

SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
CUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests (including interests in

shares and short positions) of Directors, Supervisors, and chief

executives of the Company in the shares of the Company (the

“Shares”) and underlying Shares of the Company or any of its

assoc

iated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the

Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the

register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of

the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as

follows:

Long

positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
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Shares Interest in g H Shares Shares
Name Capacity R E AN H Shares I L f Sk CE T
4 S RGBE  RHRZEZ SURATAL AUBATHIK SUESEK
Supervisor
E%
Ms. Zhou Min Beneficiary of trust 205,414,000 - 29.34% - 13.56%
gt fFFEZEA
Non-executive Director
FRTES
Mr. Liu Ziyi Beneficial owner - 2.311,000 = 0.28% 0.15%
BB 55 LN
Note: The above Supervisor is taken to be interested in the issued share Mt Lﬂﬁ$.,ﬁ\:%ﬁHeng Huad Wt ([Hen
capital of the Company through her interest as beneficiary, among HuatfF 7t 1) ':F' LN ﬁz
other beneficiaries, of Heng Huat trust (“Heng Huat Trust”). By a AN H] E%? A R AT o {ﬁﬁ A
declaration of Heng Huat Trust made as a deed on 19 July 2000, the EEFELH +jL IJEZE iAW (e ‘v {eng
shares of Heng Huat Investments Limited (“Heng Huat”) were held Huatfs sE & B & - 25t A &bz A
as trustees for the benefits of over 300 employees of Beijing Beida WO RSARAR -~ ARG AL
Jade Bird Software System Co., Ltd., Beijing Beida Jade Bird Limited AT RACFE AR FIRMEF R A ABRA A u

Jextdk

iy
=%

and Beijing Beida Yu Huan Microelectronics System Engineering
Co., Ltd. and their respective subsidiaries and associated companies
and the Company. Heng Huat is beneficially interested in the entire
issued share capital of Dynamic Win Assets Limited (“Dynamic
Win”), and is taken to be interested in 205,414,000 Shares which
Dynamic Win is interested.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Supervisors and
chief executives of the Company had registered an interest or
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rule
5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules as at 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to
any Director and Supervisor or their respective spouse or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the

Directors and Supervisors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2022, the following interests and short positions BRI ZFETZH=1—H o REBEH K
IRV IER 3360 B e A 28 wIZHAT B 2 43
R REER T SUA L B E AT A 2 M

LRA

of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the
register of interests required to be maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Jie Ay B A BRI A 2 4 A

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares

Approximate Approximate ~Approximate
percentage  percentage  percentage
of total of total of total
number of  number of  number of
Interest in issued non- issued issued
non-listed listed Shares H Shares Shares
Shares  Interestin CBfFELW  CBAHE CHIRL
Name of shareholder Note  Capacity I AN H Shares It 0 4 ay ay
Bk bk s/ ek S <t WHREZER  MAEAK  BAEAL  BAELK
Peking University (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 28.57% - 13.21%
TrkE Tk
Beida Asset Management Co., Ltd. (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 28.57% - 13.21%
TkEEEEERAR THEEES
Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software System  (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 28.57% - 13.21%
Co., Lud, ZHEEER
EFAREREMREHRAA
Beida Microelectronics Investment (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 28.57% - 13.21%
Limited TrEEES
EAMEFREHRAT
Gifted Pillar Limited (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 28.57% = 13.21%
ZEEI
Rainbow Mountain Holdings Limited (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 28.57% - A 13.21%
U RARA ZEEE G {
Beijing Rainbow Mountain Sci-Tech (a)  Beneficial owner 200,000,000 - 28.57% =
Development Co., Ltd. 875 XN
TR R R RARAH
Grand Fast (HK.) Limited Beneficial owner 110,000,000 3 15.71% -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(CONTINUED)

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares (Continued)

2 S B B A N R ey B R TR M
Ty Z HE f B A (A1)

JBe 3 Ko A IR JBE Ay 2 4 AT (A

Approximate Approximate ~Approximate
percentage  percentage  percentage
of total of total of total
number of  number of  number of
Interest in issued non- issued issued
non-listed listed Shares H Shares Shares
Shares  Interestin CEfFELW  CBOHE CHLRL
Name of shareholder Note  Capacity I AN H Shares ot 0 4 ay ay
Bk bk s/ ek S <l WHREZER  MAEAK  BAEAL  BAELK
Heng Huat Investments Limited (b)  Interest of controlled corporation 205,414,000 - 29.34% - 13.56%
Tr I
Dynamic Win Assets Limited (b)  Beneficial owner 205,414,000 - 29.34% - 18.56%
YBEEHRAA L DN
Mongolia Energy Corporation Limited (c)  Interest of controlled corporation 84,586,000 - 12.08% - 5.58%
FHEBARAR TrEEES
New View Venture Limited (c)  Beneficial owner 84,586,000 - 12.08% - 5.58%
BHHA A
Asian Technology Investment Company Beneficial owner 50,000,000 - 7.14% - 3.30%
Limited 52 Z:DN
SR EARA
Huang Taomei (d)  Interest of controlled corporation - 126,214,000 - 15.5% 8.33%
ki THEEES
Merida Group Limited (d)  Interest of controlled corporation - 126,214,000 - 15.5% 8.35%
EHHIES
Nippon Incubation Co. Ltd. (d)  Interest of controlled corporation - 126,214,000 - 15.5% 8.33%
o TR EES
(d)  Interest of controlled corporation - 126,214,000 - 15.5% 8.33%
TR EES
(d)  Beneficial owner - 126,214,000 - 15.5% 8.33%

HEHAA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Peking University is taken to be interested in 13.21% of the total
issued share capital of the Company through 200 million non-listed
Shares (representing approximately 13.21% of the Company’s
total issued share capital) in which Beijing Rainbow Mountain
Sci-Tech Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Rainbow Mountain”) is

interested. Peking University owns 100% equity interest in Beida

Asset Management Co., Ltd. which in turn owns 48% equity interest

in Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software System Co., Ltd. which in turn

owns 100% equity interest in Beida Microelectronics Investment

Limited which in turn owns 46% equity interest in Gifted Pillar

Limited which in turn owns 100% equity interest in Rainbow

Mountain Holdings Limited which in turn owns 100% equity interest

in Beijing Rainbow Mountain.

(b)  The non-listed Shares are held by Dynamic Win, which is beneficially
wholly-owned by Heng Huat. Please refer to the note to the section
“Directors, Supervisors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above for further details
of Heng Huat.

(c)  The non-listed Shares are held by New View Venture Limited, which
is wholly-owned by Mongolia Energy Corporation Limited.

(d) These H Shares are held by Asia Development Capital (HK) Limited,
which is wholly owned by Brilliant Smile Limited which is in turn
wholly owned by Nippon Incubation Co., Ltd, which is in turn wholly
owned by Merida Group Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by
Huang Taomei.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors and
Supervisors, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’,
Supervisors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares” above, had registered interests or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO as at 31 December 2022.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 7 July 2022, the Company entered into a capital increase
agreement with the existing shareholders of Eta Shanghai,
pursuant to which the Company agreed to inject RMB100,000,000
into Eta Shanghai of which (i) RMB14,903,862.95 shall be
contributed to the registered capital of Eta Shanghai; and (ii) the
remaining balance shall be contributed to the capital reserve of
Eta Shanghai. Eta Shanghai is principally engaged in the technical
development, technical service, technical consultation and
technical transfer of semiconductor and new material technology;
and the sale of semiconductor materials and equipment. One of
the existing shareholders, which owned 34.12% of Eta Shanghai
before the capital injection by the Company, is wholly owned by
the spouse of Mr. Liu Ziyi, the non-executive Director. As such, Eta
Shanghai is an associate of Mr. Liu Ziyi and a connected person of
the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. Details were disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 7 July 2022 and 5
August 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 18 August
2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, save as disclosed above,
the related party transactions as disclosed in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements do not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, which are required to
comply with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors and Supervisors
and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) had interests in a business which competes or may compete
with the businesses of the Group, or may have any conflicts of

interest with the Group pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group strictly complies with applicable labour law and
regulations both in the PRC and Hong Kong. Competitive
remuneration package with medical and travel insurance offered
to the staff. Adequate retirement fund and provident fund are

contributed timely.

The emolument policy of the Directors is structured by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to their functions and

contributions to the Group.

Details of retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in

note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the GEM Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events after reporting period of the Group

are set out in note 44 the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
Ef Aok e

DIVIDEND POLICY
Under the policy on payment of dividends adopted by the

Company, the Company may declare and distribute dividends to
the Shareholders to allow Shareholders to share the Company’s
profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for
future growth. The payment of any dividend shall be determined
or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its absolute
discretion after taking into account the Group’s financial results,
prospects, the level of the debts and equity ratio, liquidity and
capital requirement and other factors that the Board considers
relevant, and subject to the Articles, the requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules and all relevant applicable laws, rules and
regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance report of the Company is set out on pages

43 to 58 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL,
REPORT

A separate environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) report

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

of the Company will be available at the website of the Company
section and the website of the Stock
Exchange by the end of March 2023.

under “Announcement”

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 and
up to the date of this report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
Directors or an associate company. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’, Supervisors’ and
senior management’s liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors, Supervisors and senior management arising out of

corporate activities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 have been audited by BDO Limited who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ni Jinlei

Chairman and Executive Director

Beijing, the PRC
30 March 2023
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

B ok

To the Shareholders:

We have monitored the operation and management of the
Group as well as the act of the Directors and senior management
faithfully throughout the year ended 31 December 2022. We have
discharged our supervisory duties under the general principle
of honesty and integrity and have strictly complied with the
requirements of the “Company Law of the PRC”, the GEM Listing
Rules and the Articles. We are accountable to the Shareholders
and have safeguarded the interests of the Shareholders, the Group
and its staff.

The Supervisors during the year and up to the date of this report

are as follows:

Mr. Fan Yimin

Mr. Ouyang Zishi
Mr. Pan Yudong
Ms. Cao Zhenzhen
Ms. Zhou Min

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, all Supervisors

are eligible for re-election.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, we have held four
meetings of the eighth session. The following table set out the

attendance of each member in these meetings:
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Name 4 Eighth Session
BN JE

Mr. Fan Yimin H—RSEE 4/4
Mr. Ouyang Zishi Bk 5 1 A1 SE R 4/4
Mr. Pan Yudong i TR e 4/4
Ms. Cao Zhenzhen L3 s 4/4
4/4

Ms. Zhou Min JE g A+
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

We convened the four meetings to review the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021, the three months ended 31 March 2022, the six months
ended 30 June 2022 and the nine months ended 30 September
2022, respectively.

Subsequent to the year end, we convened the eighth meeting of
the eighth session to review the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

As a result of the work done above, we are in a position to express

our independent opinion in respect of the following matters:

1.  The first, second and third quarterly results and annual
results of the Group for 2022 have reflected the financial
and operating positions of the Group on a true and fair

basis.

2. The senior management of the Group has not abused their
authority to prejudice the interests of the Shareholders, the
Group and its staff, nor contravened the laws and regulations

and the Articles in discharging its duties.

3. The Group was not threatened with any major litigation
nor was there any matter that we had intervened with or

threatened against the Board.

4.  The connected transactions of the Group were fair and
reasonable. No act prejudicing the interests of the Group has

been identified.

We would like to express our appreciation for the strenuous
supports given by the Shareholders, the Directors and all staff to

our work during the year.

BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Fan Yimin

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
30 March 2023
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Corporate Governance Report
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FRAMEWORK
The Company developed a set of documents (the “CG

Documents”) with reference to the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules then in force during the year to govern its corporate
practice.

The documents are as follows:

1. CC Code;

2. Securities Dealing Code (the “Securities Code”);

3. Duties of the Board of Directors;

4.  Segregation of Duties between the Chairman and the

President;
5. Board Diversity Policy;

6.  Disciplinary Rules of the Company;

7. Term of Reference on the Audit Committee;
8. Term of Reference on the Remuneration Committee; and
9. Term of Reference on the Nomination Committee.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with all
the code provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 of
the GEM Listing Rules then in force during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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Corporate Governance Report

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Securities Code on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. All Directors as well as
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information
are governed by the Securities Code. Having made specific
enquiries, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the Securities Code all over the year ended 31 December 2022.
The Company is not aware of any employee who does not comply

with the Securities Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders. Detail
responsibilities of the Board are laid down on the Articles. Major

duties include:

1. convening Shareholders’ meeting and reporting work of the

Board to Shareholders;

2. execution of resolution passed in Shareholders’ meeting;
3. deciding business plan and investment proposal;
4. formulation plans for change in registered capital and

issuance of bond;

5. formulation of major merger and acquisition plan and

disposal plan;

6.  formulation of job segregation and dissolution plan for the

Company if necessary;

7.  employment and dismissal of general manager; and

8. formulation proposal for amendment to the Articles.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance; reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; developing, reviewing and monitoring
the CG Documents; reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code; etc.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Responsibilities (Continued)

All Directors are free to access to corporate information for the
purpose of discharging their duties and responsibilities. They
may seek independent professional advice if necessary at the
Company’s cost. All Directors have unrestricted access to the

company secretary and senior management of the Company.

8 S 5 R A S
7B R -

The Board delegated the management team with the
responsibilities for the day-to-day management, administration

and operation of the Group.

B E A

REEFE AT A= H BN R
FZHEHAGMT

Composition

As at 31 December 2022, the composition of the eighth session of

the Board is as follows:

Date of first

Date of latest

Name Position Gender Age appointment re-election
HRK 3

Wk 44 -2/l i3] 4 i BRI HEH Y
Ni Jinlei Executive Director, Chairman M% %) 30/6/2015 21/5/2021
i & WirES - 1R
Zheng Zhong Executive Director, President Fi 46 21/6/2012 21/5/2021
W WirES - AR
Wang Xingye Executive Director M% 45 21/5/2021 N/AAR
TR YirEH
Guan Xueming Executive Director Fi 51 21/5/2021 N/AREH
EL! HEH
Liu Ziyi Non-executive Director M% 29 20/5/2022 N/AREH
LRE FUfTES
Tang Xuan Independent non-executive Director M% 50 15/5/2020 21/5/2021
&% B M E S
Li Chonghua Independent non-executive Director M 67 30/6/2015 21/5/2021
LR B FfrE R
Shen Wei & Independent non-executive Director M# 60 31/5/2018 21/5/2021
W4 WL AT

\ \\ The Bioa;Ld members have no financial, business, family or other e RS TR 2 AR AT ] B 2B -

H& mater‘falyrelevant relationship with each other. BB s Hfth & KA B 1R -
% = | %

% | A
‘Bﬁroﬁl\qls of the Directors are detailed on pages 21 to 24 of this
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Composition (Continued)

Mr. Liu Ziyi was appointed for a term commencing from 20 May
2022 until the conclusion date of annual general meeting to be
held by the Company in 2024. All other Directors were appointed
for a term of three years starting from 21 May 2021. All Directors

are eligible for re-election.

In compliance with rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise, representing at least one-third of the
Board. Each independent non-executive Director has confirmed
to the Company in respect of his independence pursuant to rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules by way of an annual confirmation
for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Company continues
to consider all independent non-executive Directors to be

independent.

Segregation of duties between the Chairman and the President

Pursuant to the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
should be clearly established and set out in writing. To ensure a
balance of power and authority, the roles of the chairman and the
president of the Company are segregated and performed by Mr.
Ni Jinlei and Ms. Zheng Zhong respectively.

Board meetings

The Board convened 6 meetings during the year. Apart from
approval of 2022 quarterly and 2021 annual results, the Company
convened meetings and passed resolutions mainly to consider
and approve the proposal for the ordinary businesses and
transactions of the Company. The Company notifies the Directors
with sufficient time in advance and provides them with detailed
agenda and sufficient information before each Board meeting
and sub-committee meeting. The Company gives at least 15 days
advance notice before each regular Board meeting. Individual
attendance records of each Director at the respective Board and
sub-committee meetings are set out in the table on page 50 of this

annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Directors’ and senior officers’ liability insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for all
Directors, Supervisors and certain management. No claims were
raised during the year against potential legal action arising from

their jobs.

Directors’ training

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. For the year ended 31 December 2022, all Directors have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by attending training courses on the topic related to ESG
governance and reporting and trading arrangements for corporate

actions.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established 3 committees to carry out certain duties.
They are the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the

Company.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is
accountable to the Board. Its primary duties include monitoring
the financial reporting system and risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, reviewing financial information,
and advising the Board on engagement and independence of

independent auditors.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non- executive Directors, namely Mr. Tang Xuan, Mr. Li Chonghua
and Mr. Shen Wei. Mr. Tang Xuan is the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

The/Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the financial

reporting matters including the annual results for the year ended

:}* 31 Dece"mber 2022 with the management and the independent
b ‘audltor
4’\ L 3 2
ﬂ)urmg the year, the Audit Committee had convened 6 meetings to
review the three 2022 quarterly results and 2021 annual results of
efthe Qr.oup, issues in respect of annual audits and transactions of
{_ﬁ/the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee
is accountable to the Board. It is mainly responsible for advising
the Board on remuneration policy of the Board itself and senior
management, advising the Board on remuneration of non-
executive Directors, structuring the remuneration package of
all executive Directors and senior management, and review and

approval of performance bonus.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shen Wei and
Mr. Li Chonghua and one executive Director, namely Mr. Ni Jinlei.
Mr. Shen Wai is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. A
meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the year
to review the remuneration package of the Board, the Supervisors

and the senior management of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee is
accountable to the Board. Its primary duties include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) and making recommendations to the Board after
such review; identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships; assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
making recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of the Directors and succession planning for the

Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee has adopted a nomination policy
which sets out the selection criteria and nomination procedures
of a Director. In selecting and recommending candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider the
candidate’s character and integrity, qualifications, professional
competence, knowledge, experience, independence, other
relevant criteria necessary to complement the business
development needs of the Group, and the elements of the policy
concerning the diversification of member of the Board. The
nomination procedures of a Director include nomination of
suitable candidates by any member of the Nomination Committee
or the Board; evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on
all selection criteria as set out in the nomination policy; assessing
the candidate’s independence under the GEM Listing Rules in
case of nomination of an independent non-executive Director;
making recommendation for the Board’s consideration and
approval; and convening a general meeting by the Board to obtain

approval from the Shareholders.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises two executive
Director, namely Mr. Ni Jinlei and Ms. Zheng Zhong and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tang Xuan,
Mr. Li Chonghua and Mr. Shen Wei. Mr. Ni Jinlei is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee. One meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held during the year to review the structure and
composition of the Board and proposed appointment of Mr. Liu
Ziyi as a non-executive Director, and recommend the same to the

Board for approval.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AT o R ok
MEETINGS
Details of attendance of the Directors at the Board and sub- NRE_F_FT A=t —HIEFEE
committee meetings, as well as general meetings during the year HRENFEST LML R B g
ended 31 December 2022 are as follows: 2N AR
Attendance
General
Meetings/
Audit Remuneration = Nomination Class
Name ¥ Board Committee Committee Committee Meetings
i k&
wHE HBRZERE  FHMZHEE RAZEE JHNRKE
Eighth Eighth Seventh Fourth
Session Session Session Session
B\ B\ JE R S0
Executive Directors HAlTEH
Mr. Ni Jinlei il & & ek 6/6  N/AKE N 1/1 1/1 2/2
Ms. Zheng Zhong BEL+ 5/5  N/ARER  N/AREHM 1/1 2/2
Mr. Wang Xingye FHERE 5/5  N/ANER N/AREA  N/AREH 2/2
Ms. Guan Xueming R, 5/5  N/ANEM  N/ARER  N/ANEH 2/2
Non-executive Directors FHITEE
M. Liu Ziyi BT REE 4/4  N/AANER N/AREM N/ARER 1/1
Mr. Xiang Lei L 2/2  N/ARER  N/AREM  N/ARER 1/1
Independent B FEHITEF
non-executive Directors
Mr. Tang Xuan FER ek 6/6 6/6 N/AR#E 1/1 2/2
Mr. Li Chonghua i 6/6 6/6 1/1 1/1 2/2
Mr. Shen Wei WHESEE 6/6 6/6 1/1 1/1 2/2

There was 1 special general meeting held during the year ended BEF__F+_A=+—HILFEESN
31 December 2022. LS N
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee was set up according to the Articles
and is accountable to the Shareholders. It is mainly responsible
for monitoring the operation and management of the Company as
well as the act of Directors and senior management to prevent any
abuse of power and infringement of interests on Shareholders, the

Company and employees.

The Supervisory Committee currently comprises five members.
The chairman is Mr. Fan Yimin. The other four members are Mr.
Ouyang Zishi, Mr. Pan Yudong, Ms. Cao Zhenzhen and Ms. Zhou
Min. Ms. Cao Zhenzhen and Ms. Zhou Min are the employee

representative.

All Supervisors were appointed for a term of three years starting
from 21 May 2021. All Supervisors are eligible for re-election.
Profiles of the Supervisors are detailed on pages 25 to 26 of this

annual report.

Attendance of meetings

The Supervisory Committee convened 4 meetings during the year.

The following table sets out the attendance of each members in

these meetings:

g
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EFg T HARBEEARNFZEERENT
TELARE S R SR BN B 2 AT 2 > LB Ik
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Name 24 Attendance
Ty

Eighth Session

S\ e

Mr. Fan Yimin w— Rt 4/4
Mr. Ouyang Zishi N e 4/4
Mr. Pan Yudong TR E 4/4
Ms. Zhou Min Jl# £ 4/4
4/4

Ms. Cao Zhenzhen WRE 4L

The/meetings were convened to review the financial statements of

A B a0 B o B A SR B 2 B R -

the Group.
W
B
e
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 December 2022, the Directors
were not aware of any material uncertainties or events which may
have a significant impact on the Company’s ability to operate as a

going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are

set out in the independent auditor’s report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022, senior management of
the Company comprises 2 individuals. The senior management’s
remuneration payment of the Company during the year ended 31

December 2022 falls within the following bands:

i S g

B AL K%
WHERMFHATMUEAARIER - H
FEoFTF A= —H o SiEFETA %
AT 0T 5 R AS B B TR 3R 1 T Re AR A
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AN ) S ST A 15 26 3 A S T B S R
Jv B SAT ) A T > SO 8 S A BT A A

= 5 E P B
PEEEF T A= —HIEEE
AN RBE IR A2 AL - R ETE
TP AZTHIREE  ARXERR
B PG 2 AT KA R DA

Number of

Individuals

N

RMB500,000 to RMB1,000,000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The remuneration paid/payable to BDO, the Company’s

independent auditor, and its member firm in respect of annual
audit services and non-audit services in relation to other
reporting services amounted to approximately RMB2,050,000 and
RMB52,000 respectively for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
concerning the diversification of members of the Board. In setting
the composition of the Board, the Company will consider the
diversification of members of the Board from various aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, race, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
All appointments to the Board will be based on meritocracy and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The selection of
candidates for the Board will be based on a range of diversified
categories, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, race, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board under diversified perspectives and
monitored the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee considered
the current structure, size and composition of the Board could
meet the business development needs of the Group and the Group

achieved the Board Diversity Policy.

As at 31 December 2022,

diversified perspectives was summarized as follows:

the Board’s composition under

Educational background

B+
B

Bachelor
Designation
204

Gender
il

Male B4

Nationality
B

Age group
AEBR AR B

Chinese HE

Z ik
EHFORMBERERGRAZ T ZE
ROEFRFWEZULBOR]) - ML EF
TR BALGW > AL FI G A A A L
M Z oot i B AL & > EAFE AR
Al AR UL R BE TR R - HEK
Bg > BCRE LA o TR G AR ANMEA 2
JE R ZE AT B AT B R > T 5 R 288 Ry i R 7 7
BLMER > 00 7800 e e 2 oL i 2
MaE o HE R AR — R 2 n ik e
I 388 > (LA (A RSP - AR ~ SOk )
7:”“% T - HAERRER - Bl R o
P SRR R E R N A e Bl A
$ WK ZEHMEL - RAZEGCRZ T
78 AL T S R R AL I A%
BEFFNEZ TCBORETE I > DL
REAMME - RAZAGCHEER G 2B
AL~ B R AL RRT A o AN AR T 2 e R
JE R B LL OB AR g R B 2 TR -

RoEFZHEF A= H o R R
#7312 B AL A an

INED

: Master Degree
]

or : Bachelor Degree

R R
Bt B

: Executive Director ED : $ifT#HF
: Non-Executive Director NED : JF#fTe#H
: Independent Non-executive Director INED : 37 JF $iA7T 8
L=
i
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
The Articles lay down the rights of the Shareholders. They

include:

o right to entitle dividend or other forms of profit distribution;
U right to attend shareholders’ meeting by person or by proxy;
o right to supervise and manage the business activities of the

Company and to put forward proposals and raise inquiries;

. right to transfer shareholding in the Company;

. upon payment of a reasonable cost, right to inspect and

copy:
- register of shareholders;

- certain personal information of Directors, Supervisors,
general manager and/or deputy general managers and

senior management members;

- certain information on repurchase of Shares; and

- minutes of shareholders’ meeting

Apart from the above, the Shareholders are also entitled to the

following special rights:

The Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 17th Floor, V Heun Building, 138
Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Right to convene meeting

The Shareholders are given rights to convene special general
meeting or class meeting other than the Directors. According to
the Articles, any two or more Shareholders having voting rights of
10% or more in the general meeting to be proposed can give the
Board written requests for convening a special general meeting or
class meeting. The requests should state clearly the resolution(s)
to be considered. If the Board does not convene the meeting
within 30 days after receipt of such requests, those Shareholders
who give the requests are entitled to convene the proposed
general meeting themselves 4 months after the Board received

their requests at the Company’s expense.

Right to sue

According to the Articles, the Shareholders are entitled rights
to take legal action against the Company, the Directors, the
Supervisors, general manager, deputy general managers and
senior management members. A Shareholder can also take legal
action against another Shareholder. Action can be conducted

through court or arbitration authority.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain an effective
risk management and internal control system for the Group,
which covers four main areas namely financial management,
operation, compliance and reporting, and risk management. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Financial management

The Board manages the Group capital on the basis of net debt-to-
equity ratio in order to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to maximize shareholders’ return. Each subsidiary
is responsible for overseeing its own daily net cash position while
the Board monitors the Company’s own. Should there be a capital
need, each subsidiary is responsible for its own arrangement

subject to the supervision of the Board.

Operation

Each subsidiary has set up its own control procedures to monitor
its operation including but not limited to working safety, product
quality, asset safeguard, cost management and environmental
protection. Finance department of the Company sets out general
guidelines on fund control for all subsidiaries to follow. There
were no material accidents, quality defects nor environmental

destruction incidents occurred during the year.

Compliance and reporting

The Board assigns the compliance officer of the Company to
monitor the overall compliance and reporting issue of the
Group. With the assistance of company secretary and financial
controller of the Company, listing supervision division and finance
departments, the compliance officer of the Company carries out
its duty to ensure that the Group complies with applicable laws,

rules and regulations as well as reports correctly and timely.

Finance department of each subsidiary maintains proper
accounting records and prepares subsidiary-level financial
statements in accordance with suitable accounting standards. The
financial controller of the Company reviews the correctness and

reasonableness of the financial statements periodically.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Compliance and reporting (Continued)

During the year, the Company published announcements and
notices within the time frame allowed in the GEM Listing Rules.
The Board also sets out guidelines on dissemination of inside
information to ensure timely disclosure. Each material transaction
especially connected transaction proposed by either the subsidiary
or the Company itself must first be assessed by the compliance
officer of the Company to ensure compliance with applicable
laws and GEM Listing Rules before further action. The Company
seeks advice from lawyers, financial advisors as well as the Stock
Exchange if necessary. The Board also sets out code of conduct to

govern securities dealings by Directors and relevant employees.

The Directors often update themselves about changes in
applicable laws, rules and regulations. The company secretary of
the Company also update any such change to the Board and the

listing supervision division of the Company.

Risk management

The risk management function focuses on market unpredictability

and aims at minimising potential adverse effect.

The Company does not have an internal audit department and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
internal audit department within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business. It was decided that
the Board would be directly responsible for internal control of the

Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged an external risk management and
internal control review adviser (the “Adviser”) to conduct the
annual review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2022.
Such review is conducted annually and cycles reviewed are under
rotation basis. The scope of review was previously determined and
approved by the Board. The Adviser has reported findings and
areds for improvement to the Audit Committee and management.
The Board is of the view that there are no material internal
control defeats noted. All recommendations from the Adviser

are 'prl_operly followed up by the Group to ensure that they are

',;i’.f'r‘iplerflented within a reasonable period of time. The Board

therefore considered that the risk management and internal

/’?,,ﬁ’,:’éon'trol";SYStems are effective and adequate.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board is committed to maintaining an on-going dialogue with
the Shareholders and Company has established several channels to

communicate with the Shareholders as follows:

(i) annual and special general meetings convened by the
Company provide a platform for the Shareholders to

exchange views with the Board;

(ii) corporate communication documents including, but not
limited to, annual reports, quarterly reports, interim reports,
circulars and notices of meetings are issued in printed form
and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and

the Company;

(iii) other documents, such as periodic announcements, monthly
returns on movements in the Company’s securities for each
month and next day disclosure returns, etc. are issued by
the Company and published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Companyj;

(iv) corporate information is made available on the website of the

Company; and

(v) the Hong Kong share registrar of the Company serves the
Shareholders in respect of share registration and related

matters.

During the year, the secretary to the Board and the company
secretary of the Company monitored the implementation of
the above shareholders’ communication channels to ensure
their effectiveness. The Company considered that the above
shareholders’ communication channels are implemented

adequately and effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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IBDO

TEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{88 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

EBTHEP1158
KR H>251E

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BEIJING BEIDA JADE BIRD
UNIVERSAL SCI-TECH COMPANY LIMITED

(AbECAE KR 7 5 R R ey A B2 )

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing
Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
66 to 209, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

Fair value measurement on investment in unlisted equity securities

Refer to notes 23, 24 and 26 to the consolidated financial
statements and accounting policies as set out in notes 4(c), 4(d)

and 4(n) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has investments in associates, joint ventures
and certain unlisted equity securities of RMB3,333,037,000,
RMB182,171,000 and RMB204,054,000 respectively, as at 31
December 2022.

Certain of the associates, joint ventures and unlisted equity
securities held by the Group are engaged in the investments
of unlisted equity securities in the People’s Republic of China.
The determination of the fair values of the unlisted equity
securities requires significant management judgement in selecting
appropriate multiples from market comparables and in respect of

unobservable inputs such as discount for lack of marketability.

The Group appointed independent professional valuers to assist
in assessing the fair values of those unlisted equity securities

investments.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (CONTINUED)

We focused on this area due to the high degree of judgment
required in determining the respective fair values of Level 3
financial instruments which do not have direct open market
quoted values, with respect to the adoption of applicable valuation
methodology and the application of appropriate assumptions in

the valuation.

Our responses

Our procedures included:

- Evaluating the competence, independence and integrity of

the external valuers;

- Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology

used by the external valuers;

- Considering the appropriateness of the multiples selected
from the market comparables and the discount for lack of
marketability with the assistance of our internal valuation

specialists;

- Checking the accuracy and the relevant of the input data

used; and

- Assessing the adequacy of the fair value disclosures in

relation to the unlisted equity securities.

Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not

cover the other information and we do not express any form of
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (CONTINUED)

Other Information in the Annual Report (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the

directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

ALK HRF R AR A

SR

Independent Auditor’s Report
¥ 37 A i e o

IR 4 7 5 0 (%)
A5 i P 1 3 2 ) (A1)

B SF e B ok > BEENEER
] A R > TE B R > B R A R
1 BELAR 3 BV BS 3R T A A A A R OB
TR AN DUA O HE A - BH B) T A K 8
W o FEEAF CRAT ) AR > IR E S
AR HALE R B EE RBRL  EEH E
HZER AEETE > BE AR

o O A B R AR I R AT

A PO IR W R A 8 A R A
B 5 s ot A ) A s O R AR 491 ) 9 4 8 W
TR FUE I 2N FU RO AR S B AR o 3R
oy oy (A A O 5 i 3 Y B Ml A A A R TR R
B S kT 2 ) T O 8 R R i 0 R 1 R
R NN

TR A7 & MBS R I EE A TR B
S E R RUARERIRE ) o IO TE R G DU T R
LR ACE A B S IH > DL R A A
e BRIFEREARN BEMER
B4 1 AR O A R A A

EHAAREE B A B R
T o BALZE BB n B R AT I T BEAT:



Independent Auditor’s Report
¥ 7 A b e

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
thefaudit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
‘of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
¥ 37 A i e o

A S Bl g 2 ok BB R S R
£ (%)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
¥ 7 A b e

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Au Yiu Kwan

Practising Certificate Number P05018

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

o oy 1 B B Ll 2 i WAL B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

2022 2021
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ANR¥T oo ANR¥T T
Revenue A 8 276,174 394,627
Cost of sales and services 58 SRS A (237,798) (334,432)
Gross profit B 38,376 60,195
Other gains and income Hopth e 25 K le A 9 14,528 19,245
Impairment loss on trade and other B Gy B HoAth JE Wk T 2
receivables RIEN X | (35,945) (36,542)
Distribution costs 53 8 A (2,443) (2,881)
Administrative expenses AT LB 2 (67,448) (60,933)
Other expenses HoAty B 52 (12,020) (1,559)
Gain/ (Loss) on deemed partial BB 23t — [  A
disposal of an associate s, (5 8) 220,235 (5,323)
Profit/(Loss) from operations waEwBmN OER) 155,283 (27,798)
Finance costs il B A 11 (34,808) (24,689)
Share of profit of associates JRE A Bk 5 2 ) ¥k A 178,360 210,469
Share of profit/ (loss) of joint ventures Ml & & 1> 2 i Fl,/ ksi8) 18,822 (53)
Profit before income tax B Bt 73 B¢ i ¥ A 317,657 157,929
Income tax credit/ (expense) A3 BLAE S, (B 0 12 2,012 (6,513)
Profit for the year A A JEE 363 A 13 319,669 151,416
Other comprehensive income after tax: i B Bt 1% 4= i W 4
Items that will not be reclassified to NEE P ER R LIHHA -
profit or loss:
Fair value changes of financial DL B wH A A 4 T 0 4
assets at fair value through other ([ EAZ P{E R A H A 2 T
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) Wit ) 2 MBS EE 2
SR 30 37,534 (25,557)
Share of other comprehensive income J fifi B 2 28 & Ho A 4 1 Wi 4=
of associates 33,764 41,890
Share of other comprehensive income JE fifi & & 1> 2& H il 2 1 Wi 4=
of joint ventures (577) (11,226)
70,721 5,107
Items that may be reclassified to A] o E R 2 HH - i ’
profit or loss: ;f 2
Exchange differences on translating #5354 2E 55 2 [ 58,25 5L f=
foreign operations 2,146 o
5
fe
2,146 1300 /
-
. SV
NE»
ALK HRF R AR A 66 A
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

A oy R 2 B LAl 2 v G B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " " 4HF+ " H=1T—HILFE

2022 2021
RO TR
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 51 AR T 75 ANR¥T 7T

Other comprehensive income 7 A J3E G Al 4 THT WK i o

for the year, net of tax [y 72,867 (23)
Total comprehensive income A A P A i W i A8 A

for the year 392,536 151,393
Profit for the year attributable to: R A A 4 JE 46 )
Owners of the Company EN/NEIE SN

Profit for the year A A B Vi ) 333,383 158,972

Non-controlling interests IE P B HE 4 (13,714) (7,556)

319,669 151,416

Total comprehensive income JRE A A% 4F B2 4 T MK 4 AR ¢

for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company ENV/NCE ZEWN 406,456 162,388

Non-controlling interests IE 2 I HE (13,920) (10,995)

392,536 151,393
RMB RMB
NS AR

Earnings per share 5 2P

Basic and diluted (cents per share) FEA R (5 ) 17 22.0 10.7

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

Annual Report 2022



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

f B B 5 5IR Dt

At 31 December 2022 F — R "4+ "H=+—H

2022

TR AR

Notes RMB’000
M 51 AR ¥ Tt

2021

il S 2
RMB’000
ANRMET T

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Biological assets

Investments in associates
Investments in joint ventures
Investments in film productions
Financial assets at FVTOCI

Deposit for purchase of property,
plant and equipment
Deposit for potential investments

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Pledged bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Bank and other loans
Lease liabilities

Current tax liabilities

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

ALK HRF R AR A

TR AR

371,307
199,058
204

797

961
2,790,299
2,964
3,500

300,677
8,104

105,000
6,186

3,789,057

5,689
381,182
1,002
99,933

487,806

4,276,863

134,612
613,875
. 1,960
;' 9,462

Y b i

%ﬁ‘ﬁ-’-’

e

9,909
|

(2 ,osfg

JE R By

ERN S & 18 393,072
Eva-L/ES 19 195,592
[k 20 39,812
oAl T & 21 14,242
Y EE 292 1,136
R /N P < 23 3,333,037
b‘AA TEZHE 24 182,171

REEREZHRE 25 -
VLS AR A HAth 2 1 26

Wt 2 B B E 239,150
L3Ry E B O & T ]

1% 4 9,359
TEEE R % 4E :
i S JE A A 35 9,239

4,416,810
B %
& 27 20,749
& S R Ho At JHE e 2K B 28 354,386
O K BR AT A7 3K 30 1,244
WHe R &S ED 30 227,690
604,069
M 5,020,879
B A
G T At AT 3 31 234,671
SRAT S HoAth B3k 33 763,578
[ENEERT 34 3,294
it BBl IE A 4,706
1,006,249
B A (402,180)
HEE E WU B A 1R 4,014,630

‘)‘W”
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A MBIk R

At 31 December 2022 ¥ —F "4+ "H=+—H

2022 2021
SRR o S
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Fh 5 ANR¥F ANR¥ET T
Non-current liabilities e =
Bank and other loans SRAT B HoAh £ 33 179,950 88,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 34 73,428 64,558
Deferred tax liabilities R 2 B IH A R 35 32,788 15,853
286,166 168,411
NET ASSETS & A 3,728,464 3,348,543
Equity BE %5
Share capital BeA 36 151,446 151,446
Reserves i 38 3,406,122 3,023,501
Equity attribuable to owners EN/NNEIE ¥ DN oL
of the Company 3,557,568 3,174,947
Non-controlling interests Ik P B 25 170,896 173,596
TOTAL EQUITY HERE A 3,728,464 3,348,543

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2023 and are o E CEFEEZH =T HEESE RS A h
signed on its behalf by: NS AW T & 3

NI JINLEI WANG XINGYE
15 & % B E S
Director Director

#HH #HH

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2022



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

A Bl 3% 23
SF £ NE 25 5 B %
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
ROREA

Foreign ~ Financial

cumency  assetat Non-
Share Capital  Reserve  translation ~ FVTOCI Other  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve funds Teserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
WAYE
AL
Ll
i
ok ARl BEEE  ERBE O KERE  ARBE  BFEH aif FERER  AER
RMB000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARHFE AREFR ARMFR ARETR ARRTn ARETx ARMTX ARNTZ ARNFR ARMFR

At1 January 2021 i St g 157872 562,519 107,494 (42,766)  (159,121) 5,604 2344002 2955,694 149,142 3,104,836
Issue of shares B 18574 821 - - - - - 5686 - 6865
Total comprehensive income 7K [ 2 il i 41

for the year - - - (18,789) 22,205 - 158972 162,388 (1099) 151,393
Acquisition of asubsidiary (ML A

(note 39(b)) (H3E39(b)) - - - - - - - - 35,449 95,449
Appropriation of safety FREEELEN

production fund - - - - - (151) 151 - - -

Share of transfer of gain on R KR AL AR
disposal of financial assets HENATFEFA
atFVTOCTin investmentin — F {2 Filtes 2 %

associates BEZIEER - - - - (2,790 - 2,790 - - -
Changes in equity for the year A4 14 58) 13574 43001 - (1878919415 (IB1) 161913 21923 444 94807

At 31 December 2021 RoF-F
=18 BLA6 605810 107494 (61555)  (130706) 5543 2505915 BITANT 173306 334858

ALK HRF R AR A
S



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
A 6 HE i 52 B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E—F " "4F+ A =+—HILHFE

At1 January 2092 g St Bl

Total comprehensive income 745 & E i i A

for the year
Acquisition of a subsidiary B — P A 7l
(note 39(a)) (H&£39(a))
Appropriation of safety FRERERARY
production fund

Share of transfer of losson ~ $ EAE LR &
disposal of financial assets ~ MATEHAL B2
at IVTOC ininvestmentin W55 2 M 6% 2 B8
joint ventures L1

Repurchase right arrangement i — i A 7] B 9
upon acquisition of a Mm%k (Bﬁi‘i?ﬁ!)(a) )
subsidiary (note 39((a))

Transfer upon derecognition  FFUKTEZELAA T 7 A
of financial assets at FVTOCI  J{b 2Tz 72

KER#E

Changes in equity AEEREED
for the year

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2022




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HOoBeRaR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

ALK HRF R AR A

SR

2022 2021
T St A
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b ARMTFE — ARETFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BEEhzBens
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax o i Vs A 317,657 157,929
Adjustments for: [k
Impairment loss on trade B 5 R FoA RE i B IE 2
and other receivables ERIEN 2Rt 35,945 36,542
Write down of net realisable value of O AT BT 2 (E
inventories (153) -
Impairment loss on film production B BAE B e 1 3,500 -
Depreciation and amortisation P8 BB 27,443 14,660
Loss on disposal and written off of EBN RN v
property, plant and equipment 85 M 4R A 1,664 -
(Gain) /Loss from changes in fair value A T (B 5 g
less cost to sell of biological assets WA Z (g 48) /E’}‘iﬁ (248) 1,274
(Gain) /Loss on deemed partial disposal BLVEHR 23 85 — R B/ 2 )
of an associate Ml 3s) s (220,235) 5,323
Interest expense FILEBH 52 38,590 25,476
Interest income FE A (1,541) (1,968)
Net foreign exchange gain AW BEE 50,15 4 19 A 11 (3,782) (787)
Loss on repurchase right arrangement $1 0 W 2 s 188 39(a) 1,065 -
Gain on bargain purchase ok (I 2 W i - (1,143)
Share of profit of associates JE AL W A ) 35 A (178,360) (210,469)
Share of (profit) /loss of joint ventures JEL &8 A2 GEAD ki (18,822) 53
Operating profit before working A wHE B
capital changes R Ui A 2,723 26,890
Decrease in inventories B 4,775 237
Decrease in trade receivables JEW & b IR 3 b 4,704 36,873
Decrease/ (Increase) in prepayments, FEAT R ~ e R AL
deposits and other receivables RE R IE WY (36 33,365 (21,987)
Increase in trade and other payables B T FE At JRE AT S SE RS T 15,114 16,887
Increase/ (Decrease) in contract liabilities %%"Jﬁ%iﬂﬂ/ (3 ) 702 (32)
Cash generated from operations BEEHEENE S 61,383 58,918
Income taxes paid A (7,460) (8,281)
Net cash generated from operating activities &% & 1 By 2 A4 i) 81 & 5 4 53,923 150,637
|I E ;’ 4
. ./
.
i | X
B,
A/



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GaBleRa®k

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

2022 2021
—ECOHE e ki
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR¥ Tt NG
CASH FLOWS FORM INVESTING REWEHZBHEHE
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of subsidiaries WA B Ja 2 w1 39 (83,186) 694
Deposits for purchase of property, R B R
plant and equipment G 13,554 (3,119)
Deposits for potential investments EERENIES - (105,000)
(Increase) /Decrease in TR AR ERAT 3k () k>
pledged bank deposits (242) 11,198
(Increase) /Decrease in balances with JE AT A\ 2 S ek ()
associates Wy (2,096) 8,205
Decrease in balances with a joint venture AT A8 A 3 2 & 3 bl D 625 -
Purchases of property, %E%% i B s
plant and equipment (35,471) (37,934)
Purchases of other intangible assets Sl A e - (696)
Additions to investment properties FEREWE (661) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - B Rkt
plant and equipment Jir 15 3K 27,818 236
Purchase consideration of I D /\ﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁfméﬁqﬁfﬁ
financial assets at FVTOCI ZWBEE 2 AUE (8,199) (152,808)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets & PL2 B 7 A HiAb 2 18 0k 45
at FVTOCI Z BB B E 2 P A sk OA 5,013 -
Dividend received from an associate A — RS A "R iR 23 51,394 41,230
Increase in investment in associates R A A 2 BE s (100,000) -
Interest received = &ilPss 1,541 1,968
Net cash used in investing activities B W B R BLa (129,910) (236,026)
CASH FLOWS FORM FINANCING MEW BB ERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares AT I A T A5 30OH - 56,865
Bank and other loans raised AT I HA S 5k 833,503 226,050
Repayments of bank and other loans %f?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁmﬁ%ﬁ( (591,850) (80,899)
Advance to shareholders Ii) J§e SRR (31) (32)
Increase/ (Decrease) in amounts due to WEﬁEﬁLAi“ KIER I, (D)
related parties 9,945 (1,025)
Interest paid AL (47,663) (31,135)
Repayments of lease liabilities B R A (1,267) (2,334)
Net cash generated from EEHMEFESZHEFH
financing activities 202,637 167,490
NET INEREASE/ (DECREASE) IN HEeRBEEHEMMEM,/ (W)
CAsﬁ AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5 126,650 (17,899)
AL \ Effé{ of forelgn exchange rate changes SN [R5 H) ~ % % 1,107 (188)
T CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EZ B R EEFED
o B ?E(EINNING OF YEAR 99,933 118,020
h o
N &AsﬁéAND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEARZBERBEFED 30
J AT END OF YEAR 227,690 99,933

"éf
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 5 e o Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION
Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

(the “Company”) was incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) as a sino-foreign joint stock limited
liability company. The Company’s H shares are listed on
the GEM (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its
registered office is 3rd Floor, Beida Jade Bird Building,
Yanyuan District Area 3, No.5 Haidian Road, Haidian
District, Beijing 100080, the PRC. The addresses of its
principal place of business in the PRC and Hong Kong are
3rd Floor, Beida Jade Bird Building, No. 207 Chengfu Road,
Haidian District, Beijing 100871, the PRC and 17th Floor, V
Heun Building, 138 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong

Kong, respectively.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’ subsidiaries are set
out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred as the

“Group”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

2. ADOPTOIN OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of HKFRSs - first effective on 1 January 2022

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following amendments issued by HKICPA
which is relevant to and effective for the Group’s
financial statements for annual period beginning on 1
January 2022:

2021 Amendments to COVID-19 Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions beyond 30
June 2021

Amendments to HKAS 16 ~ Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds

before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards,
HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, HKFRS 16
Leases and HKAS 41

Agriculture

- Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the

Conceptual Framework
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention
is to apply these changes on the date they become

effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture *

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Leases Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback 2
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current (the
“2020 Amendments”)?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”) >
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies '
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates !

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

Notes:

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined by available
for adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the
effective date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
In addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments
and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

9. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate

or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the situations where there is a
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. When the transaction
with an associate or joint venture that is accounted for
using the equity method, any gains or losses resulting
from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not
contain a business are recognised in the profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains
or losses resulting from the remeasurement of retained
interest in any former subsidiary (that has become an
associate or a joint venture) to fair value are recognised
in the profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint

venture.

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases Liability in a Sale and

Leaseback

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of
the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it
retains. The amendments are intended to improve
the requirements for sale and leaseback transactions
in HKFRS 16. They do not change the accounting for

 leases unrelated to sale and leaseback transactions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL R A 7 8 S 5 e o Y B (T 7 v 1
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B5 v e 0 1) (#0)
(CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not (b) T8 A i M v R A 2 BT ET B
yet effective (Continued) 16 5T 75 s B 5 35 0 (%)
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as 7 itk B i JI R 1 HE R 5 FT AR [ A%
Current or Non-current A (& 5K 7% 0 B 2 0 )

The amendments clarify the requirements on EXS 3 HEN LRS- e b
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The BRI E - —F T
2020 Amendments provide clarification that if an T A R W - i B G BV i A
entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject B 2 HE R 52 RO A 5 R 2 i A 32
to compliance with future covenants, the entity has wh o A RE R R R A B
a right to defer settlement of the liability even if it i > BN H R A5 G o 55 B A
does not comply with those covenants at the end ik o AEM O BAZERT
of the reporting period. Classification of a liability FOHER) G B AR T REE 2
is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will W o R T AR AE T AN W B
exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The AR B B S E AR D -
2020 Amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered as a settlement of a liability.
Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with B 5 1 5T A G5 T 98 0945 5T AR T KT
Covenants R B Al
The amendments clarify how to treat liabilities that 5% S5 AE T A [ BT 0 AT g A R
are subject to covenants to be complied with, at a W% 19 B W32 BROA AT A B A 25
date subsequent to the reporting period. The 2022 MEM —F - T EBETAYE
Amendments improve the information an entity HEECEBEEARE 12A
provides when its right to defer settlement of a liability AR ) R BRI 0 45 B 2 IR AT B
for at least twelve months is subject to compliance WEAl B2 ah o & T AR BRI A
with covenants. The 2022 Amendments clarify that B A BT BB R
only covenants with which an entity must comply on THRE G 0 B A1 3258 A 6 5 B L 1
or before the reporting date will affect a liability’s 4 U B = U B 5
classification as current or non-current.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2,

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The key amendments to HKAS 1 include (i) requiring
companies to disclose their material accounting
policies rather than their significant accounting
policies; (ii) clarifying that accounting policies related
to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions
are themselves immaterial and as such need not be
disclosed; and (iii) clarifying that not all accounting
policies that relate to material transactions, other
events or conditions are themselves material to a

company’s financial statements.

Amended HKFRS Practice Statement 2 includes
guidance and two additional examples on the
application of materiality to accounting policy

disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments introduce a new definition for
accounting estimates: clarifying that they are monetary
amounts in the financial statements that are subject to

measurement uncertainty.

The amendments also clarify the relationship between
accounting policies and accounting estimates by
specifying that a company develops an accounting

estimate to achieve the objective set out by an

£ accounting policy.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets and

Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption so that it no longer applies to transactions
that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable

and deductible temporary differences.

The directors of the Company have performed an
assessment on the above new standards, amendments
and interpretations and have concluded on a
preliminary basis that these new standards and
amendments would not have a significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in

subsequent years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed

in note 4.

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption

The financial statements have been prepared under
historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments and biological assets, which are measured
at fair values as explained in the accounting policies set

out in note 4.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors consider the operations of the Group
as a going concern notwithstanding that the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately RMB402,180,000. These conditions
may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. The consolidated
financial statements were prepared based on the
assumption that the Group can be operated as a going
concern and the directors are of the view that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations based on a cash flow projection covering in
the next twelve months from 31 December 2022, after

taking account of the followings:

(a)

(b)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption

(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group has been in negotiations with banks
and other borrowers for the renewal of certain
current existing loans, which will be matured
soon after the approval date. Management
expected that, based on the current negotiation
status, the loans could be renewed upon expiry
on the basis of the Group’s past records in the
compliance of the terms of the loans and the
availability of sufficient assets as collaterals. To
reduce the pressure on the Group’s liquidity,
apart from utilising the Group’s internal
resources, the Group will also realise 7.96%
equity interests in an associate at a consideration
of RMB1,101,846,000 (the “Disposal”) in
order to repay the borrowings amounted
of RMB660,000,000, out of the borrowings
recorded in the current liabilities amounted of
RMB763,578,000 secured by listing shares of this
associate. On 29 March 2023, a special general
meeting had been approved for the Disposal
and the completion of the disposal was effective

accordingly;

For the remaining borrowings of the
RMB103,578,000 recorded in the current
liabilities, the management considered that there
is a reasonable expectation for renewal upon
expiry given the substantial headroom of the fair

value of the collaterals over the loan amount;

When necessary, the Group would further explore
the availability of alternative sources of finance;

and

With the cessation of the border restrictions and
quarantine measures on Coronavirus Disease
2019, the management expects the operations
of the Group will gradually improve so as to

generate additional operating cash inflows.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption

(Continued)

Having regard to the cash flow projection of the Group,
which are prepared assuming that these measures
can be successfully implemented, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group will have
sufficient cash resources to finance the operations
and to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due and therefore it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements of the Group on a

going concern basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires the
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgements or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements

are disclosed in note 5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the

preparation of these consolidated financial statements are

set out below.

()

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an

entity when the Group has existing rights that give it

~ the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.

- activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to

exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are

de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of
the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any related accumulated foreign currency

translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests (“NCIs”) represent the equity
in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. NCIs are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity within equity. NCIs are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation
of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling shareholders and

owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to non-controlling shareholders even

if this results in the NCIs having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and NCIs are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the NCIs are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in

equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held

for sale).

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at the acquisition-date fair
value of the assets given, equity instruments issued,
liabilities incurred and any contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at

their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net

fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over

- the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised

- in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain

purchase which is attributed to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the

consideration transferred to calculate the goodwill.

The NCIs in the subsidiary are initially measured at the
non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of
the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets

and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as

an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policies of
an entity but is not control or joint control over those
policies. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In accessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or

convert that right is not considered.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and are initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the associates in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of investments over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the associates’ identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investments and is tested for impairment together
with the investments at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investments are impaired. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in

consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss,
and its share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investments.
When the Group’s share of losses in associates equals
or exceeds its interest in the associates, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates. If the associate subsequently reports profits,
the Group resumes recognising its share of those
profits only after its share of the profits equals the

share of losses not recognised.

Gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents
the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that associate and (ii) the
Group’s entire carrying amount of that associate
(including goodwill) and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity

method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to consolidated profit
or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest
it that gain or loss would be reclassified to consolidated
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or

liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Associates (Continued)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held

for sale).

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two
or more parties have joint control. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are
activities that significantly affect the returns of the
arrangement. When assessing joint control, the Group
considers its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a
joint venture. A joint operation is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations

for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint

- venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties

- that have joint control of the arrangement have rights

to the net assets of the arrangement. The Group has
assessed the type of each of its joint arrangements and

determined them to all be joint ventures.

4.

F B G BOR (A)

()

(d)

i 24 5 ()

3 A 4R o) BEL LI A W) TR A2
Z R B B i P T LA S A B
N 2R IR o R 5 B R IR
T BRI BEER
ol A e B R (L ) A
W A W 2 8 REBUR C 1 A
B DL R B A 42 [ BT BR AR SR
it

JRA 7] 2 WK DR A A
BN R 2 BB R BUORE R 1R
GIBR > BRIF I FRAE A (B
AT R AR B 2 AR ) ]
Vel i

Bk

CR-£3

BB PR A B DL T A T B
A Fe (7] 2 i HE 2 22 B o 3R] 42
TR A H IR A0 h o B R IH 2 P P
SEAT A £ > S [R] f8  f AE AR
I5H 1% B SR I ] A R 2 A
J7 A — BR3P E R AR TE
B 156 B 4 5% % PR 2 A
PN 2 PaRibRC KD R TP ke
il A A % LA B
HE DA B FE At N £ BT 5 A 2 VB AE 1%
SEHE o MEAE A N BE AT 5%
T ZAEUT - T g s AT AE
PEHE -

BEEEIEAERGREGED
o BEEH AL
[e] 42 il BE - 2% J7 A HE A B
AR EE > Rl BRI R
(S 3 RNEE SV T X
% L PR AL R 2 I RE 2 & T
AZEHMEEFMHZ 8L
PEo AEECRFAG A E KPR
BB > Sl 5HF % 55 & 8 % PR 4 0l i
ERmEERE-

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 5 e o Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and are initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the joint ventures in acquisitions are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the joint ventures’
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
The goodwill is included in the carrying amount of
the investments and is tested for impairment together
with the investments at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investments are impaired. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in

consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of the joint ventures’
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised
in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investments. When the Group’s
share of losses in the joint ventures equals or exceeds
its interests in the joint ventures, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint ventures. If the
joint ventures subsequently report profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after
its share of the profits equals the share of losses not

recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B BV 5 e o it

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture
that results in a loss of joint control represents
the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that joint venture and (ii) the
Group’s entire carrying amount of that joint venture
(including goodwill) and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate, the Group continues to apply the equity

method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency

with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in joint ventures are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held

for sale).

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An
investment property is measured initially at its cost

including all direct costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property

- is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

- impairment losses. The depreciation is calculated using

the straight line method to allocate the cost to the
residual value over its estimated useful life of 8 — 50

years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 5 e o Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Investment properties (Continued)

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the property, and is recognised

in profit or loss.

(f) Foreign currency translation
(i)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency,
and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (RMB’000) except when otherwise

indicated.

(it) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial

statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this

translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair

values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(12)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation

currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement

of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the

transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency

translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that
form part of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to consolidated profit

or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated

at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings
and leasehold land (classified as finance leases),
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which

they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation of
property, plant and equipment other than freehold
land and construction in progress is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less their estimated
residual values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are as

follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings

40 to 70 years
20 years
Machinery and equipment 3 to 10 years
Leasehold improvements,
furniture and office equipment 2 to 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEGEBOR (8)

(CONTINUED)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (g) W~ R Bl (4)
The estimated residual values, useful lives and A S TP 2% i S T 45 R I AR S
depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if o R (8 ) A6 wE R AR B (E
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. A AR R AT T
Construction in progress represents buildings under e TREET P 2T Jhi%
construction, and is stated at cost less impairment DA Y U M e 18 4 MR - Sl A A B
losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are ] LA R R AT

available for use.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and Y R S A AR
equipment is the difference between the net sales Z W g B 1R - 4% B T S AR
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, T R SRR R R MR T (B
and is recognised in profit or loss. A Y ) 2 4 AR
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Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 5 e o Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Leasing

All leases are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or
(ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value.
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases
for which at the commencement date have a lease term
less than 12 months. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on straight-line

basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

This is recognised at cost and comprises: (i) the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liabilities (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liabilities); (ii) any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to
be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories. The Group measures
the right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-to-use
assets at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which
is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements
are carried at depreciated cost. Rights-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of

its estimated useful life and the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

The lease liabilities is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the

Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of
a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the

lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in
the lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the

underlying asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

()

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.

The Group as lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties to
a number of tenants. Rental income from operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense on the

straight-line basis over the lease term.

Intangible assets other than goodwill
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their costs). Subsequent
to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as

intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@)

()

Intangible assets other than goodwill (Continued)
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets which represent transport operation
license, rights and patents, copyrights, computer
softwares, customer list and investments in film
productions are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over

their estimated useful lives.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit

or loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Biological assets

The Group is involved in the agricultural activities of
the transformation of biological assets (vines) into
agricultural produce (grapes). The biological assets
are measured at fair value less costs to sell at initial
recognition and at the end of each reporting period.
The fair value of biological assets is determined based
on the present value of expected net cash flows from
the biological assets with reference to their growing
conditions. Gain or loss on initial recognition and
from subsequent changes in fair value less costs to sell
is included in profit or loss for the period in which it

arises.

The agricultural produce is initially measured at its
fair value less costs to sell at the time of harvest. The
fair value of agricultural produce is determined based

on market prices in the local area. Gain on initial

- recognition at fair value less costs to sell is included in

profit or loss for the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 5 e o Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

(k)

@)

Biological assets (Continued)

The fair value less costs to sell at the time of harvest
of the agricultural produce becomes its cost for
the measurement of inventories. Such inventories
are subsequently stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected
credit losses (“ECL”) in accordance with the policy
set out in note 4(x) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become

unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding

receivable would also be recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@

(m)

\.\
v [
W
‘\_ ;‘k 2
.

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a

net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest

accrued under the effective interest method.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group entity becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVIPL”)) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 5 e o Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

(n)

(Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the

classification of the financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B BV 5 e o it

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4.

103

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

(0)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equaty investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only
be made if the investment meets the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained profits. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or

FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as interest.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract

asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using effective

interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash

and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and

equity instruments are set out below.

(i)  Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as
a financial liability at the time the guarantee is
issued. The liability is initially measured at fair

value and subsequently at the higher of:

- the amount determined in accordance with
the ECL model under HKFRS 9; and

- the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised in accordance with the
principles of HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is
determined based on the present value of the
difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument
and the payments that would be required without
the guarantee, or the estimated amount that
would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations. Where guarantees in relation to loans
or other payables of associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of

the investment.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equaty instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 5 e o Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any

trade discounts.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is

required before the payment is due.

Revenue from the sale of metallic products, wine and
related products is recognised when the Group sells the

products to the customer.

Revenue from the travel and leisure service is
recognised when the services are rendered to the

customer.

Income from investments in film productions is
recognised when the Group’s entitlement to such
payments has been established, subject to the terms of

the relevant agreements.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis

over the lease term.

Revenue from sales and production of LED devices is
recognised when the goods are delivered to and have

been accepted by the customers.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment are established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

Employee benefits

()

(i2)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to

the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity

leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the

Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits, and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs and involves

the payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 5 e o Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from

the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is
the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable
to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying

asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be

received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w)

)

Government grants (Continued)

The government grants relating to the purchase of land
lease prepayments, intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment and investment properties for the cost
of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the assets by way of

reduced depreciation and amortisation expenses.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of

other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

~ neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 5 e o Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of

the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying

amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and

liabilities on a net basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4.

111

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(W)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating-unit
(“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value

less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/

CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse

the impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
trade receivables and contract assets. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the

respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time value

of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting

date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects
of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as consideration
of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the Group’s core

operations.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)

or internal credit rating;

S significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial

instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor;
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

- significant increases in credit risk on other

financial instruments of the same debtor; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to

have low credit risk if:
(i)  The financial instrument has a low risk of default;
(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its

contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;

and

(iii) Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to

fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4.

115

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is
not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past due

amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are

generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by

the counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers

- that default has occurred when a financial asset is more

than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a

more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

counterparty; or

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event; or

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for

economic or contractual reasons relating to the

counterparty’s financial difficulty, having granted

to the counterparty a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; or

- The disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised

in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4.

117

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial
guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the
future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant

forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected ECL as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at

the original effective interest rate.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of
the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss
allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the

debtor or any other party.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines
at the current reporting date that the conditions for
lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group measures
the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for

which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt instruments that are measured at
FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce
the carrying amount of the financial asset in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FEGFIBOR (M)
(CONTINUED)
(y) Provisions and contingent liabilities (v) $h R o2k i

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is

remote.

Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s

family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the

Company;

(ii) has significant influence over the Company;

or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel

of the Group or the Company’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(z)
(b)

Related parties (Continued)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

the entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the

Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or

of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity of any member of a group of

which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to the

Company’s parent,
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(2)

(aa)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse

or domestic partner.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial statements reported to the executive
directors, who are the chief operating decision makers
of the Group, for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components and for

their review of the performance of those components.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results are the same as those used
in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except that corporate income and expenses which are
not directly attributable of any operating segment, are
not included in arriving at the operating result of the

reporting segment.

Segment assets include all non-current assets and
current assets but deferred tax assets. In addition,
corporate assets including property, plant and
equipment and cash and bank balance held by
headquarter which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment are not

allocated to a segment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(ab) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position at
the end of the reporting period or those that indicate
the going concern assumption is not appropriate are
adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting period
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes

to the consolidated financial statements when material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies,

the

directors have made the following judgements that have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving

estimations, which are dealt with below).

(a)

(b)

Joint control assessment

The Group holds approximately 50% of the voting
rights of its joint arrangements. The directors have
determined that the Group has joint control over the
arrangements as under the contractual agreements, it
appears that unanimous consent is required from all

parties to the agreements for all relevant activities.

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(x), ECL are measured as an
allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does
not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an
asset has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and

supportable forward looking information.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)  Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
estimated residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have

been abandoned.

The carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment as at 31 December 2022 was
RMB393,072,000 (2021: RMB371,307,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, income tax
credit of RMB2,012,000 (2021: income tax expense of
RMB6,513,000) was charged to profit or loss based on

the estimated assessable profit.

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS
9 across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows when determining
impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by
a number of factors, changes in which can result in

different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk for
exposures since initial recognition by comparing the
risk of default occurring over the expected life between
the reporting date and the date of initial recognition.
The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes
quantitative and qualitative information and also,

forward-looking analysis.

As at 31 December 2022,
of financial assets measured at amortised cost is
RMB565,491,000 (2021: RMB448,837,000).

the carrying amount
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and allowance charge/write-back in
the period in which such estimate has been changed.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, allowance
for slow-moving inventories of RMB153,000 (2021: Nil)

was recognised to profit or loss.

Fair values of financial assets at FVOCI

The Group appointed independent professional
valuers to assess the fair values of certain financial
assets at FVTOCI. In determining the fair values, the
valuers have utilised methods of valuations which
involve certain estimates. The directors have exercised
their judgements and are satisfied that the methods
of valuations are reflective of the current market

conditions.

The carrying amount of the financial assets at FVOCI
as at 31 December 2022 was RMB239,150,000 (2021:
RMB300,677,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

)

(g)

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets
with definite life are impaired requires an estimation of
the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill and intangible assets with definite
life and other non-financial assets have been allocated
which is estimated based on the higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal. The value in
use calculation requires the directors to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from CGU and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where appropriate, the recoverable amount
of the fair value less costs of disposal is estimated by
the independent valuation using market comparable
approach with reference to comparable companies

undertaken in the same industry.

Valuation of biological assets

The Group’s biological assets are valued at fair value
less costs to sell. In determining the fair value less costs
to sell of the biological assets, the directors and the
management has applied the income approach which
requires a number of key assumptions and estimates
to be made such as discount rate, harvest profile, costs
incurred, cultivation area, and expected yield of the
biological assets. Any change in the estimates may
affect the fair value of biological assets significantly.
The directors and the vineyard expert have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the valuation is

reflective of their fair value.

The carrying amount of biological assets as at
31 December 2022 was RMB1,136,000 (2021:
RMBY961,000).

ALK HRF R AR A

TR AR

O A B K Al ()

il A e 5E 1k 2 AR (4)

(1)

(8)

B R B 2 WA AT 15

i S T A T 5 i AR A9 S TE
HEA G WA > & EAMFC
i 7 B 8 1) 5% i A PR B9 TP
FE % oAt J S 5 Y B R
B B AT (e < o HOAR O
B (B B 2 1 (B8 i A B T 5
2 W A AT A R o BT R (R
HESREHEMAFEARR S E L
BV R B OR ARBL U R
M PT B DIt R BE - 7Rl
BT DL T - 2P (E B AR Y
AT W (o] < B A 22 75 [R] A7 AT L
2] s BR A T 8 AT H ik DA ST Al
(EHEAT Al A -

LW EE A

A AR T A ) A T
ARG E - B E Y EE Z A
(L Il G 5 AR IR o S A B
LR UIER NS RS Y
B AT > % S RS A EE
BLEE A W) E B B - iR AL
B PR A AR B R A [ K
WIS o 5% A Al R AT o] 5 B
RE 3B A W) 2 9 O - (B2 AR
B W R R AT K
S5 2 PV B AS A (B AT R Y
P

R-F__H+-_A=+—H>
E%QEZEEE{QZ%}\E%

1,136,00000 (& ——4 AE%
961,0007C) ° :

4

A

126



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B BV 5 e o it

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk

and interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management

programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial

markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group’s financial performance.

()

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), United States dollars (“USD”), RMB,
Canadian dollars (“CAD”) and Euro (“EUR”). The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.

At 31 December 2022, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened 4% (2021: 4%) against HK$ with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax
for the year would have been RMBI1,391,000 (2021:
RMB212,000) higher/lower, arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange gain/loss on cash and cash

equivalents denominated in HK$.

S 5 ) B A B

7SR ] 456 7 0 B T R By -
FEANE R~ AR R B - R B R -
Bl TR S AR B o AR AR R
JRRL B A B ) S A < A T 8 2 S T FH
BIVE > Sl = SR 75 8 3 A 4 | B s 3R
B2 BN -

(a)

Ab s JR B

AL IR Z 27 TN R > 5
HRMaEHLY BEKARK
FEUWC (THIG)) ~ FEoo([%
Jal) ~ ANR¥E - ImEsm kI (T
gt ) KRt (TR ) #HE - A4
H H Are sk s g 5 - EE K
B fE R L B UK o AR [ % )
WA A BB RO i R T
i 3 o K A R B

B E D HET A=
i N B S s T FEAE S R BT
4% (ZF Z—4F 0 4%) 1 T A H
fl B R AERE AN N E R Z AR
W i 4% T A5 188 b N R
1,391,000 ( & ——4F : AR¥
212,0007C) > Z A L TR
(B 2 B4 S 3 4 S5 (B ) 2 BEE Sa. i
/WG -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in listed equity securities.
Management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk and
return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on the Hong

Kong Stock Exchange.

Sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the

reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2021: 10%) higher/

lower:

. Other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2022 would increase/decrease by
RMB3,510,000 (2021: RMB3,411,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of financial assets at
FVTOCI.

HAK T SRR AT IR A 7]
SRR

6. SV LB AR PR (4)

(b)

4% JE Bg:

A G5 B A LR BT BOAR
Z5 ) B - R I BB AR B
A L 200 A0 A A5 L By R [ S A
TR B AL B S — R B
A AR T4 B A (A J g 4R o
7 s g 52 P A 1) BB R O

S B BE O3 AT 0 R TR i R
9 JSe A A A% L B T E o

fi A EL A T T R 10% (=%
T 10%) ¢

o LAACH{EFNAH b A 1 ik
G i1 B P (A B
F = H R4 FE A A 2
& Ry PE PN
3,510,0007C (% ——4F
AR H53,411,0000C) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high creditrating assigned
by international credit-rating agencies, for which the

Group considers to have low credit risk.

Except for the financial guarantee given by the Group
as set out in note 40, the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in
respect of these financial guarantees at the end of the

reporting period is disclosed in note 40.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within
90 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances

that are more than 3-6 months past due are requested

- to settle all outstanding balances before any further

credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain

collateral from customers.

6.

St 755 o i A B (4

()

fri 5 ) B

i 68 JEL By 4 3 T O S ik 0 O R
WA TRSCEF &4 T MR
0 S5 5 48 O 0 JEU B o A 4R Lt
HEEEE (EELBWE 5K
) K S B (LA RAT K R
PR AT 3K~ S 2 Ty B H A B s
TR T B 5 B R o A F2R A
e LB EFEYNE R
BR o BR Z B O J A R A A T
A A T 5 B AT A SR AT
AR > A B I RE o4 SR BRAT
e 4 R AR 109 15 LB IR

B T A SR B T R 4 2 B T AR (R
TR M EE40) S A G2 [ 37 4 4 14T
a7 H At 4 A% 2R 1 R 968 15 B B
ZAEGR o G A WEH A ORI
R Z R A5 BB AR 2 4 B 7k 40

JEWG B 5 JR ik

%A R B e A% S 5 B AR
3 S ) R N
e i 7€ B BOSE ~ R L B R EAT
B AR B BT A R
SRR R E AT A E 2R
fili o 3% 4 FF Al 4 RS & T ATEAE
A5F 3B 9 IR AT B T Bk % F I Y
SRR > W R EF MR E E
R R K & TR BT AE R Y
REWE BRI o BB B IR % 2R
H L o0 F A 245 o &5 &R i 1)
A3 E6MR A 1B ATE R AL
] F At 5 B I 0 28 45 35 BT A R MR
AR WM E > ALEAE
1] 57 5 AR A o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the

Group’s different customer bases.

The following table provided information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables as at reporting date:

6. S )E ke A B (A)

(c) fu&E B (%)

TN BT 55 0 K (A7)

A 4 B 2 2 [ 4 1 TR A B s R
11 < B A A M AR B R I s 1R
1Al > A B < D A
B oo ph A A A I DATE B9 15 B0 R
A8 B Sl 41 B R [R] 25 5 20 i B
HABHEBAER > BOREH
60 [ 7 5 L R A — 2 [ 0 LA
AR D B s AR R A -

AR AL R H
Wi By e B TR A B A 4R BT R
32 A 5 B R

Gross
/[ Expected carrying Loss
As at 31 December 2022 +ZH=+—H loss rate amount allowance
R E IR TH] A8 &5 48 3% i
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥WTX AR¥Tx
Current (not past due) B (o3 1) 0% 58,324 -
0-90 days 0-90H 2% 41,726 830
1-2 years 1-24F 10% 20 2
2-3 years 2-34F 20% 25 5
100,095 837
Gross

A S Expected carrying Loss
As at 31 December 2021 +—-H=+—H loss rate amount allowance
TE A s 15 R i T A8 F T 45 135
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’OOO

AR¥TE ARKTE ARERT T -

Igéi ;fr

o & 2
Current (not past due) B (3 ) 0% 42,545 e 2
0-90 days 0-90 0% 47,506 e v
L
90,051 s |
o |

HAK T SRR AT IR A 7]
SRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Expected loss rates were based on actual loss
experience over the past few years. These rates were
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected

lives of the receivables.

Movement for allowance for doubtful debts of trade

S 5 D B A B ()

(©)

i % L B ()

TN BT 55 0 5K (#7)

TE W 1R R AR 5 BRI R
Ml R RSB o %S R OAE
R > DL A R i B )
14 A8 55K LB R AR DL 22 B
4 K8 AR DL i o

JE W oy Bk 2 R IR A < S )

receivables is follows: e
2022 2021
R A TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T o0 AR T
At 1 January r—H—H = 15,814
Impairment losses recognised AR R R 2 W e 1R
for the year 65 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39(a)) Y} — [# B} 5§ 2 7
(Kt 5E39(a)) 772 -
Amount written off during the year ENGREE 6 P - (15,814)
837 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
include other receivables, pledged bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. In respect of pledged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents, since
there is no significant increase in credit risk, any loss
allowance recognised during the year is therefore
limited to 12-months ECLs.

probability of default is low on these balances since

The directors consider the

the counterparties are financial institutions with high

credit rating or with good reputation.

In respect of other receivables of RMB142,029,000
(2021: RMB142,029,000) representing a cash
consideration for disposal of a subsidiary, the balance is
in default of which a loss allowance of RMB46,504,000
(2021: RMB36,518,000) is recognised as at 31
December 2022.

In addition,
RMB46,623,000 (2021: RMB32,003,000) which had

been defaulted for years,

in respect of other receivables of

hence these financial
assets are credit impaired of which loss allowance of
RMB46,623,000 (2021: RMB32,003,000) was made as of
31 December 2022.

Other than the receivables balances as mentioned, the
remaining balances of other receivables are considered
to have low credit risk as the counterparties have a low
risk of default and does not have any past due amounts.
Impairment on these balances has been measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs and loss allowance of
RMB10,201,000 (2021: RMB3,571,000) was made as of
31 December 2022.

AR RERT R A R A

TR AR

6. IV LB AR B (A)

()

f $E R Bs (A7)
HoAh f2 51 WA 71 18 2 B B B
At 22 0 A R B 2 B S
@%ﬁﬁw@ﬂﬁz KIH - B R R AT
fra A e Bl M e 58 - A
IoF L KA SR AT A7 3K DA B 4 R B
EAEEY - R E B B A R AT
FI o R - A A BE N e R
V14 A 40T s 18 3% 44 BRI 124 A 7L
FHEER - EHEL  ZFEHR
HO AR K TR 5 5 B
FO7 Ry B AR B AT AR U R R
U1 B A A o

BOH M M ok HOAN RO
142,029,0007C ( & ——4F : AR
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BARIMBLERE T - &ho
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. W )E b A P (4)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) f&EmbE (&)
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued) H A 1% 4 55 5 AN 71 8 2 BT
(#5)
Movement for allowance for doubtful debts of other Al i T R R R A 2 B B
receivables is follows: T
2022 2021
TR - ST
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTIE ANRBET I

At 1 January m—H—H 71,092 34,550
Impairment losses recognised A I il R 1 (S 4R
for the year 35,880 36,542
Reversal of impairment loss GRINRCRIENY FiR 40
during the year = -
Written off as uncollectible HSH J AS AT [m] i 0E B (3,644) -
103,328 71,092

S\
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. SV LB AR PR (4)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (d) WEE S
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current A 5 ) 2 BUR T 8 W) B 45 B I
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that W Z mE) &K - R AR
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its JE ) B 4 e o DARE S HL e
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. REIWE E&®K -
The maturity analysis based on the contractual HRE9E A 5 1 JE AT AR B LR B 40
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative I LB B U & A B 43 A
financial liabilities is as follows: r
On demand Between Between
or within 1 and 2and More than Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
HER K
—ENEE  EWE WELE EBLE R P T 1
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETE AR¥TT ARWTE ARBTLT AR¥TIT ARMTI
At 31 December 2022 REFZ A
=+—H
Trade and other payables % 5 J Hofth 1 506 233,290 - - - 233,200 233,290
Bank and other loans (note) 817 B oAl B3k (Fff3%) 791,765 20,791 85,688 99,236 997,480 943,528
Lease liabilities HEARK 8,505 7,648 20,024 77,633 113,810 76,722
Financial guarantee S 4 1 300,000 - - - 300,000 -
At 31 December 2021 RoFE-—4H+"H
=1—H
Trade and other payables % 5 K H A ME A 30H 134,612 - - - 134612 134,612
Bank and other loans (note) #{7 KL (HEFE) 639,227 5,733 17,199 103855 766,014 701,87
Lease liabilities &AM 5,691 5,308 17,114 76110 104,223 66,518
Financial guarantee S Hf £ 300,000 - = - 300,000 =
Note: WY EE

Bank and other loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank and
other loans amounted to RMB5,217,000 and RMB5,334,000
respectively. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks and other financial institution will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.

ALK SBRF R A AT A W]

R

ARAEER

I 0 34347 - A B K fi R
e AT B HA St AT 225 o
— A R | R %#2::¢&#
Fo— 4+ A=+ — B s i
T A 5 4 o A B A 6 AR T 7
AR #5217, OOOJBZU\E’F?% 334,000
moﬁﬁ&$%IM%%%H

.I)?h} "

W AT &ﬁm%m%%%*%ﬁif
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. o e A B (4
(CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) WEE 4B (4)
The directors believe that such bank and other loans AR A B AR AT S A B O
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled AR A5 8 oK Tih e o AR 1) T 2 K
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At that W o I IRE > A 4 MR ORI B
time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows B mT
are as below:
Total
Repayable Between 1 Between 2 Undiscounted
within 1 year  and 2 years and 5 years cash flow
AWiBlZ
N R —EWE WELSE BlaiiEBm
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®TET  ARWTEZ ARWTET ARWTET
2022 —F- 5,217 - - 5,217
2021 St B 446 4,888 - 5,334
(e) Interest rate risk (e) I B

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from
its bank deposits and bank and other loans. These
deposits and borrowings bear interest at variable rates

varied with the then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2022, if interest rates at that date
had been 10 basis points lower/higher with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax
for the year would have been RMB227,000 (2021:
RMB166,000) lower/higher, arising mainly as a result

of lower/higher interest income from bank deposits.

A 4 B TR 32 2 A LB TR AR
T A7 3K B BRAT B HoAth 5K - 3% 5%
A7 3 B A AR P R BLAT T L
M 7€ B 72 B B R 5% o

o FE A ZA=—H
s B 2RI B BT 1ofH H
BN T BT AT A TR R A RN A R
RN 2 AR A R B Wi RS D
B A R ¥297,00000 (ZF ——
A NRH166,00000) > FEEH R
RATAF R Z FR A A WY 18
e o

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. I A bE A B (4)
(CONTINUED)
(f) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December & NT+ZHAH=Z=+—HMEmTHHE
bl
2022 2021
S S TR AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
NS aTH N T 70
Financial assets: W& R
Financial assets measured TS R AT R/ 2
at amortised cost W E 565,491 448,837
Financial assets measured at DL B 71 A HAb A T i 45
FVTOCI: Equity instruments ZHMBEE - BRATR 239,150 300,677
Financial liabilities: WAL :
Financial liabilities at amortised cost DLHE 85 A FHE 2 W5 26 1,253,540 903,005
(g) Fair values (g) AFME
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets i 57 A RS R 0 3R R i 2 A 4 [

and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their

respective fair values.

Mﬁ%?&%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬁ
FABR AP {E A -

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AFAEE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs

to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

NERT 2 EE R EHE BT 2
A7 22 5y v 4 7 T S e e
I S A 2 AR A% o DUTR AP (ERHE PR
A (A 7 5 T A B - 15 A2
Ty =R AF BOEBCA T EFHE

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active H—IEEAEGE : AL RFEH
markets for identical assets or liabilities that W45 M R R
the Group can access at the measurement BEREETS 2
date. WAE CREHFE) -
Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included BIEEMARE . - EREEZ W
within level 1 that are observable for the asset {8 LL AN %% A
or liability, either directly or indirectly. E E % Y ﬁﬂﬁ & 3
tﬂzﬁﬂé&%
Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability BEEBWAEE: HEENA fizﬂ{i
EELN T
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and AKE [H] 2 R T S B AR Bl R R
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of the ZRENEER fﬁﬁi’ﬁ)\*ﬂﬁﬂigﬁ"

event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

HAK T SRR AT IR A 7]
SRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. AFEEE (8)

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 (@ RTZH=Z=1T—HBAVPHEHRZ
December: Pz
Fair value measurement using: Total
AVFHGH R R At
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2022
iR Ci CHN B=E "F_CE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFE  ARWTx  AR®TE  ARWTxR

At 31 December 2022 RZFZZHEFZAZS—H

Recurring fair value B A LR R
measurements:
Financial assets W R
Financial assets at FVTOCI  DL/AT-E ik A Hifh 2 1
(note 26) Wi 2 BB 7 (i 3E26)
- Listed equity securities - kAR 35,096 - - 35,096
- Unlisted equity securities - I b A T S - - 204,054 204,054
35,096 - 204,054 239,150
Biological assets g R
Vines (note 22) WA (i 3E22) - = 1,136 1,136
Total At 35,096 - 205,190 240,286
Fair value measurement using: Total
NTFEFH R R Z AL At
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021
3 B HH $=F @ ZE-F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT  AR¥TET  AR¥TT  ARWTE

At 31 December 2021 R-FZ—H+ZA=Z+—H

Recurring fair value B M PR
measurements:
Financial assets W&
Financial assets at FVTOCI DA 7HA A2 1
(note 26) Y 2 i #5 EE (W RE26)
- Listed equity securities - [ 77 AR 7 5 34,112 - - 34,112
- Unlisted equity securities - JF 7 e 425 7 - - 266,565 266,565
"-\ 34,112 - 266,565 300,677
AN
é» . Biological assets g
\'} - Vines (note 22) WA (HE22) - - 961 961
Y Total At 34,112 - 267,526 301,638
= / “d 7
LA 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. AFEEE (8)

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based (b) AREE =N PG R 2 & E
on level 3: Hik
Financial assets at
FVTOCI unlisted Biological 2022
Description equity securities assets Total
WA A
FoAt 2 T W 42
2Bk ZROTE
IR ol A A At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NG BT ARWT 7 ARWT 7
(note 26) (note 22)
(Fif iE26) (Wt ik22)
At 1 January 2022 e S = Rl 266,565 961 267,526
Total gains or losses recognised in B HERR 2 WS B
profit or loss ) ERAE - 248 248
Derecognition R IR (117,724) - (117,724)
In other comprehensive income TR A 2 T 45 55,213 - 55,213
Decrease due to harvest TR i Bk 7 3k 7 - (115) (115)
Exchange differences HE i, 7% - 42 42
At 31 December 2022 REZFZZHEFZH=Z+—H 204,054 1,136 205,190
® Include gains or losses for assets @ F M5 IR F5 4 2
held at end of reporting period B2l s = 248 248

Financial assets at

FVTOCI unlisted Biological 2021
Description equity securities assets Total
YASE:CIUN
ot i g
ZIH R K SR
38 A E% EERE a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWET ARWET ARHET
(note 26) (note 22)
(fif5E26) (fi5t22)
At 1 January 2021 W_E_—%—H—H 180,794 9,462 133,256
Total gains or losses recognised in A 95 i 58 2 W i
profit or loss 1R e = (1,274) o (1,274)
Addition WE 150,000 - 3
In other comprehensive income T Ho A 2 T i 6 (14,229) =
Decrease due to harvest Wi = (188)
Exchange differences HE 5675 7 = (39)
At 31 December 2021 REEZ—E =T —H 266,565 961

@ Include gains or losses for assets held {3 #§ i it 5 WK H5 4 2
at end of reporting period S pA T ] 2 (1,274)

ALK HRF R AR A
S
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

()

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based

on level 3: (Continued)

The total gains or losses recognised in other
comprehensive income are presented in other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
are presented in other expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value

measurements at 31 December 2022:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for
the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair value measurements. The financial
controller reports directly to the Board of Directors for
these fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the financial
controller and the Board of Directors at least once a

year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent

experience to perform the valuations.

7.

4 VA i (80

(b)

()

RNk /N o W R <
BIR  (4)

i At 2 TR i i A A R 2 K i B
s IR AR R & A R 28 K HAth &
T W 4 2% T 2 B A B T i 2R A 2
g

ISEER I A E Y TRV
R 18 4 M At 2 T i 4 3R 2 4
oy FoAL B 52

AEMR _-F 1T ZAH
=t —HIRAMGERRF AP
B wH 8 R R 2 A6 48 05 3 K A
iRz B -

A 4R ) 2 o s A B B PR A
HOETHE 2 AP HAHE > G
BT R - M AEE
OB RZ 25 o V- (E W i ) 3 o A B
W MBRERERGRDEE
BHAG (R PP B 5 AT — It

AR = A E R E > AL
2 I LA R T AR
L 30 0 A6 B ) A1 T A R R AT
fli A -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. AFEEE (8)
ABEMP -F -4+ A
Z+—HB R GRS RA T

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (c)

and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value

measurements at 31 December 2022: (Continued)

L 52 B 4R 1 2 A 06 7 5 B i A
BiR 2z s (A

Level 3 fair value measurements Fair value
B AT R AT
Effect on
fair value for
Description Valuation technique Unobservable Inputs Range increase of inputs 2022 2021
GV LN SiE
i it LE 23N (L VSR FAZ S S S S
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARKTFE AR%TT
Biological assets Discounted cash flows  Risk-adjusted discount rate  8.0%(2021: 7.7%) Decrease 1,136 961
tHEE MRH R R ERE B % 80% (“F = 11%) B
Growth rate 1% (2021: 2%) Increase
e 1% (Z%Z—5:9%) S
Gross margin 58%(2021: 52%) Increase
ER% 58% (“F 4 :50%) sl
Private equity investment  Market comparable Discount for lack of 24.67% - 40% Increase 204,054 266,565
classified at financial approach marketability (2021: 27.4% - 40%)
assets as FVTOCI
MRBUAFHEFARRE THLEE Bz 24.67% - 40% K
i 2 it KL 5 LEE (CFZ—F:
e sie 27.4% - 40%)
Financial multiples of 0.82-6.11 Increase
public companies (2021: 1.96 - 18.13)
ARAF MR 0.82-6.11 4
2Bk
1.96-18.13)

ALK BT AT A 7
SRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

8. REVENUE 8. WA
Disaggregation of revenue W A B A
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by AR R B S aUIR S B 2 B E S
major products or service line for the year is as follows: A A B
2022 2021
R TR
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T oo AR T T

Revenue from contracts with customers 7 v B RO R
within the scope of HKFRS 15 SIS E N 2
EPAHBA
Disaggregated by major products i T il IR AR
or service lines #r 2 WA
- Rendering of travel and leisure services — — $2& i #% S K f IR 75 86,609 110,753
— Sales of wine and related products — BB 2 I S A R E o 9,635 10,236
— Sales and production of LED devices — S KA ELEDS 4 32,711 -
— Sales of metallic products - HESBEMN 147,219 273,638
276,174 394,627
The Group derives all revenue from the transfer of goods IR R ] IR 5 2 WA A A B Iy ] AR A > AR
and services at a point in time except for the revenue from A5 B BT A WSO R AR 1 e — R (] B RS
leisure services which are recognised at over the time. o R

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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9. OTHER GAINS AND INCOME

A B B 5 e o Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

9. H Atk KW A

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥TF 55 N aTH
Bank interest income ERATFLE A 1,541 1,968
Government grants (note) B A (B 5E) 1,882 1,175
Loss on disposal and written off of E RN N &L Pl
property, plant and equipment 5 e 48 e i (1,664) -
Share of income from film productions Rl 23 (SIEET N 28 22
Refund of value-added tax HEEBLR (7] 1,496 1,287
Gain on bargain purchase (note 39(b)) R E 2 s (K39 (b)) - 1,143
Financial guarantee income WA 4 AR A 9,565 9,565
Penalty income A 1,834 1,834
Others HoAth (154) 2,251
14,528 19,245

Note: Government grants in 2022 and 2021 mainly represented

Ak

g

&

the subsidy to the Group by the PRC government as to
compensate the loss suffered by the Group since the
Hengshan Mountain scenic area was temporarily closed
in certain dates in 2022 and 2021 due to the policies and
measures implemented by the government of the PRC to deter
the spread of COVID-19 epidemic in the PRC.

W RERT R AT A W]

A

B

SR R BB
B 45 o BT T A 2
S LUH A2 M0 e 5 LR I
SRR SRR T
B B+ DR £ 1B B 25 51 %2019
FREAR 5 75 21 € 1 B 25 T 9 £ 10
O HH T 5252 0 4 -

e /
"',:,. ,«' =
e
< | -
E}"a ﬁf‘( )s
N>



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B BV 5 e o it

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on its
strategic business units that are managed separately by the
chief operating decision-maker. Each strategic unit requires

different technology, development and marketing strategies.

During the year, the Group had four reportable segments,
which were managed separately based on their business
nature:
Tourism development - development of travel and
leisure business
Investment holding - holding of fund, debt and
equity investment, including
management fee income
Trading of metallic - sales and purchases of metallic
products products
Sales and production -
of LED devices

development, manufacture
and sale of high-end ceramic
high-power LED devices and
modules

All other segments - business activities and
operating segments not
separately reported, including
production and sales of wine

and related products

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 4(aa) to the consolidated
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not
include interest income, unallocated other gains and
income, finance costs and unallocated corporate expenses.
Segment assets do not include unallocated corporate assets.

Segment non- current assets do not include financial assets

«at FVTOCI and deferred tax assets.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as

if the sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current

market prices.

10. 4> HBE B

7S AR o R SR\ ST B Y
R S AL T 7B T A A0 o 2% SRS
SE BT EANIR] B - BRI KT R
W o

TRARA - SR EA O {8 AT R i 20 o Sl
AR U5 S5 19 SE 85 1R g S B

i 3 9% J& — BRI MAK R
B

BB —  FrA S N
B&E > AEEH
A

HEEBEN — HELREWBEE

FE it

B8 B ELED WFE ~ A Kb
Ak GRS N)|
HLED# A SR A

A HA R — BT LR
3 VR 3lf I 98 7
o B E &
9 ) 70 B A
B E it

Ry 2 G R BOR AL H R AR A
B 55 i 3 B 54 (aa) BT PR B — B - 43
b i Pl B R A LS FLE A ~ R L
Fofto e g SCA ~ RilE AR B oK 73 L
KPS o M IERIAN IR RS B E
FE o or B I B A AN ELAE LA E
N A 4 T Wi B 2 B S A S T A

7 N R 7 S TR S B i)
B =07 B O R BLAT TR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about operating segment profit or loss:

10. 7+ ¥ & FH (4f)

A8 oy W e M R 4R BB ¢

Sales and
Tourism Investment Trading of  production of All other
development holding metallic product ~ LED devices segments Total
Bl Rk
T 3 58 e hEnhk  HEXEER LEDA&H B JLi A i it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 AR®BTT RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ARBFr  AR¥Fx AREFx  ARBFr  AR%fx
2022 CEICHE
Revenue from external customers KEMEF ZIA 86,609 = 147,219 32,711 9,635 276,174
Segment profit/ (loss) A/ () 1,376 405,063 2,871 (14,981) (14,643) 379,736
Interest income FERA 1,541
Finance costs MR (34,808)
Unallocated other gains and income Mt £ &8 Rt A 2,130
Unallocated corporate expenses RORAERL (30,942)
Profit before income tax W B 8 i A 317,657
Other segment information: T HE R
Tmpairment loss on trade and other % 5 RE MR fAZ
receivables HEER (15,895) = = (65) (19,985) (35,945)
Depreciation and amortisation B R (18,760) () - (7,472) (1,206) (27,443)
Share of (loss) /profit of associates el A AR (BR) /%A (1) 178,361 - - - 178,360
Share of profit of joint ventures i3y -ge kil - 18,822 - - - 18,822
2021 SRR
Revenue from external customers TEMER ZIA 110,753 - 273,638 - 10,236 304627
Segment (loss) /profit AR /R (7,288) 206,192 5472 - (4,410) 199,966
Interest income FIRIA 1,968
Finance costs BB (24,689)
Unallocated corporate expenses FREEENL (19,316)
Profit before tax BB B A A N 157,9%

Other segment information: HAHER / 2 /
Impairment loss on trade and FUYELT e va e
other receivables BB (34871) (1671) - - - % 542 e
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (15,436) ) = - (768) 12 -

Share of (loss)/profit of associates  FE(REE AT (BH) /G Al (957) 911,496 = = - 9210 469 { )
Share of losses of joint ventures ElisatEng - (5) - - e
b i S : w‘

2k ;
\)
HAK T SRR AT IR A 7]
SRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

10. 7+ ¥ & FH (#1)
RESHEEZER :

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about operating segment assets:

Trading of Sales and
Tourism Investment metallic  production of All other
development holding products  LED devices segments Total
HERLE
TRUEHH nEnk  RELEER LED#fF i JLfe b 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BT  ARBTx  ARKTx  ARKTm  ARMTE  ARWTR
At 31 December 2022 REBZZEFZAZAH

Segment asscts HHEE 894,538 3,725,220 157,646 125,013 93,065 4,855,482

Unallocated corporate assets KARAEERE
Property, plant and equipment EN GYEL 5,318
Cash and cash equivalents RE R EEEY 134,691
Others Kb 2,388
165,397
Total assets EgE 5,020,879

Segment assets including: A
Investments in associates REEAAZHE 64266 3,268,771 - - SR X i
Investments in joint ventures ResbEziE - 182,171 - - - 182,171
Additions to non-current asses FERRBEE 33,355 - - 9,161 32 128,548

At 31 December 2021 WZFZ—FE+Zf=+-H

Segment assets g 865,112 3,172,867 18,380 - 91,461 4217820

Unallocated corporate assets KARAEERE
Property, plant and equipment EN AT 5,117
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHeEEY 21,558
Others Hib 31,768
59,043
Total assets aEE 4,276,863

b  Segient assets including; AREELLR:
N \ stments in associates RBEAAZHE 64,464 9,795,833 - - - 2,790,299
Y ~ Investments in joint ventures REELEZRE - 9,964 - - - 9,964
- -~ Additions to non-current assets FEERBEE 330,196 - - - 604 350,800

\' Lo\ h <
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 10. HPE R (4)
Geographical information: b I8 R
Revenue Non-current assets
A Ik Ui By B s
2022 2021 2022 2021
—EF M E - DE D X
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®E TR AR¥ T3 ARW TR AR¥Tx
PRC except Hong Kong T (N FE) 266,539 384,391 4,151,010 3,673,456
The United States FH 9,635 10,236 17,411 16,593
276,174 394,627 = 4,168,421 3,690,049

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based

on the locations of customers.

Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted

to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue is set out below:

SRR EORLRE o WA TSR BER S PR TE
H o

KA/ EEEF (EALEBRA10%K
PLE#) BB F

2022 2021
- S S
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN B ANRBETIT

Customer A EFEA
Customer B (Note (i))* FFB (B &E@d)) *
Customer C (Note (ii))* & C (FaEdi)) *

Revenue from two customers were all derived by the segment

engaging in trading of metallic products.

(i)  This customer did not contribute over 10% of the total

revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

(i) This customer did not contribute over 10% of the total

revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

HAK T SRR AT IR A 7]
SRR

40,561 49,619
N/A A#EH 116,796
69,276 N/A AN

109,837 166,415

* A WA A R A e
< JA8 E 4 1 20 7 o

i)y ZEFFRBE_Z__4F+_H
== EIJJ:EJE%TZIS%I%MIAE’JE
A B H#10% © ’;‘.

<) }
(i) ZEFREE & F&;{-_H f;
S — B Ik R A A AR B &
ik AR HE10% © i & ( -
‘ 4
).

vg *\\,\ ~
B
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

11. FINANCE COSTS 11. & A
2022 2021
E A TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AN RH T oo NS & aTH
Interest on bank and other loans SR AT R HoAth 2 A S 47,663 31,135
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEZAE 4,048 3,898
Total interest expense on financial Az I AP {E R AR 45 19
liabilities not at fair value through 55 B i U BH S MR
profit or loss 51,711 35,033
Less: Interest capitalised W BEARLA R (13,121) (9,557)
38,590 25,476
Net foreign exchange gain 1t ME S, 0 4 1 (3,782) (787)
34,808 24,689
12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 12. FifdBt (%) B %
2022 2021
R T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T NBEHT o8
Current tax R 1A B I
Provision for the year A A JE 4 A
- PRC - 4,706 8,044
- USA - R 2 25
Over-provision in prior year A A A T R 4
- PRC - (2,004) -
2,704 8,069
Deferred tax (note 35) P& AEBLIA (K 5185) (4,716) (1,556)
(2,012) 6,513

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2022, Hong Kong Profits

Tax has not been provided as there is no estimated assessable

profits arising in Hong Kong (2021: Nil).

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere has been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the country in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretations, and practices in respect thereof.

Other subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC are
generally subject to income tax on their taxable income at a
tax rate of 26% (2021: 256%).

12. Frfg b (3K 4) B 32 (#)

AEE EF AT A = Bk
JEE > R MR I A A A Al IR B Ui
A ST B A A T R A R A (—
T IE) -

Ut 3t 75 R U M) 2 B TE T AR R A A
A S I FE B R 2 AT B - iR
LA 4% % B 2 BLAT B2 HH 5 o

2 45 A v 8RR ST 2 At B R N A
78l RE SR B IR A5 B R 25% (—F ——
A 25%) B TS AL

2022 2021
Y- S - S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ Tt ANBR#T 0
Profit before income tax 5% T 45 Bt 1 das A 317,657 157,929
Tax at domestic income tax rate of 2 15 7R iy A5 B 2R 25 %
25% (2021: 25%) (ZF 4 25%)
FHE 2 BLIH 79,415 39,482
Tax effect of share of results JRE A W 7 N ) SR AR 2 B R 2
of associates (44,590) (52,617)
Tax effect of share of results of joint AL &8 R B B
ventures (4,706) 13
Tax effect of income that is not taxable A JMEFEBI UL A Z BT & (58,294) (3,627)
Tax effect of expenses that are LRI S a P s 4
not deductible 11,205 6,687
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7 ffE 58 B s 15 2 Bl 1S 5 28 16,895 17,316
Over-provision in prior year i A 3 R A (2,004) -
Effect of different tax rate of T At =] 7 RE 4
subsidiaries operating in other Bf$ ) 2w A [
jurisdictions Bl &2 5 2 67 (741)
Income tax (credit)/expense Fr S B (%) B 32 (2,012) '6,513
f:rlf
A

HAK T SRR AT IR A 7]
SRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13, A4 JE i Al
The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/ AR B ARAE B U M EHBR, (FEA) BLR
(crediting) the following: KIH -
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN B AR T

Amortisation of other intangible assets — H{th 4 JE & 7 X i B %

and investments in film productions RN 2 & B 1,504 304
Auditors’ remuneration A% SRl T 4 2,514 2,147
Cost of inventories sold O & fF B A 209,855 303,337
Depreciation charge: Pres i -
— Plant and equipment owned — ¥R Z Rk Sk A 15,605 9,927
- Right-of-use assets — i I HE = 7,893 4,429
— Investment properties -Gk 2,441 -
(Gain) /Loss from changes in fair value A4 & & /2 °F- (B 55 B bl &1 5
less costs to sell of biological assets Az (k) EE (248) 1,274
Impairment loss on film production 5 A U R 3,500 -
Short-term leases charges B ST 899 814
Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs and depreciation EEfFEMATE B TlA KITEH AN
of approximately RMB39,065,000 (2021: RMB29,953,000) [39,065,0007C (=& ——4 : ARH
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately 29,953,0007C) > #% 55 A FHEATA L SR
above. 45 % 2 A
14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. i B & A B 32

2022 2021

S SN TE T A

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR ¥ T oo ANR¥T 7T

Salaries, bonuses and allowances Hra o~ fCAL SOEERG 53,325 52,074
Retirement benefit scheme B AR AE A 3 AL 2

{ contributions 9,393 8,444

\ N 62,718 60,518
=\
b O

. ég;\

L p—
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. 1@ B & A B 32 (48)
(CONTINUED)
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the WEEZF _F A+ = —HIEE
year the ended 31 December 2022 included three director JE o AR B 4% g e A N BLHE =4
(2021: two) whose emolument is reflected in the analysis HEH(CE O AE WKL) > HEREE
presented above. The emoluments of the five highest paid B B SCR S 2 53 M o T4 g e 7 I A
individuals are set out below: ANZBaunT -
2022 2021
it St [l S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥TF 55 N aTH
Basic salaries and allowances FEA 4 M B RG 4,873 4,411
Retirement benefit scheme B ARAE A 5 34 3K
contributions 381 261
5,254 4,672
The emoluments fell within the following band: P 4 5 B T

Number of individuals

IN
2022 2021
- Sy CE T —AE
Less than HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to 41,000,000 7t (H1% it A B #
RMB859,000) (2021: RMB831,000) 859,0007C) (ZF _—4 : AR
#831,0007T) 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7¢ £1,500,0007 JC
(equivalent to RMB859,001 to (H i AN R 859,001 0 %
RMB1,246,000) (2021: RMB831,001 to A B #1,246,00000)
RMB1,289,000) (ZF = —4 ARH#831,00150

HAK T SRR AT IR A 7]
SRR

& AR ¥1,289,00070) 3 3

i )jﬁ'
o >;§ .
S
N AN
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 15. EFEREFEHLS

EMOLUMENTS
£ A RS

AN E R T E S O
Ay w) SO JE 2\ 2 M

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (a)

The remuneration of every director and supervisor in

respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of

the Company or its subsidiary undertaking is set out

below:

o

Retirement
Salaries and ~ Discretionary benefit scheme
Fees allowances bonus  contributions Total
RekEM
e Bk Mt fes it B it
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
i3 AREFRE ARWFx  AREFx  ARWFX  ARETx
Name of directors BREEA
Mr. Ni Jinlei ResiE 800 1031 - 19 1850
Ms. Zheng Zhong BELt 220 400 - 113 733
Mr. Wang Xingye ERERE 220 420 - 113 753
Ms. Guan Xueming CEL'SH 220 480 - 113 813
Mr. Liu Ziyi HREE iv 47 - - - 47
Mr. Xiang Lei HEEE iii - - - - -
Mr. Tang Xuan 33 80 - = = 80
Mr. Li Chonghua FRELE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Shen Wai i it 80 - - - 80
1,747 2,331 - 358 4,436
Name of supervisors B4
Mr. Fan Yimin H—REE 50 - - - 50
Mr. Ouyang Zishi BRE T 50 - - - 50
Mr. Pan Yudong BEREE 50 - - - 50
Ms. Cao Zhenzhen LE 373 en 50 - - - 50
Ms. Zhou Min gt 50 - - - 50
250 - - - 250
Total for 2022 = 1,997 2,331 - 358 4,686
4
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 15. EFLEFEMS (H)

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EHLEEMWLS (H)

Retirement
Salaries and  Discretionary ~ benefit scheme

Fees allowances bonus  contributions Total
BIREA
e HEREN WA i hit
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

lif33 ARETT  AR%Tn  AREFx  ARBTR  ARETx

Name of directors BREL
M. Ni Jinlei RefiE 500 939 - 19 1,458
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong R i 125 272 - 12 409
Ms. Zheng Zhong BELt 990 400 - 106 7%
Mr. Wang Xingye ERERE ii 128 420 - 106 654
Ms. Guan Xueming CELiE ii 128 280 - 62 470
Ms. Xue Li EETt i 33 - - - 33
Mr. Xiang Lei HERE il - - - - -
M. Ip Wing Wai £ I0 i i 33 - - - 33
Mr. Li Juncai BRA %S i 83 - - - 33
Mr. Tang Xuan B F 80 - - - 80
Mr. Li Chonghua FRERE 80 - - - 80
M, Shen Wai i it 80 - - - 80
1,440 2,311 - 305 4,056
Name of supervisors EREA
M. Fan Yimin H—REE 50 - 50
Mr. Ouyang Zishi 4 Ry 50 - 50
Mr. Pan Yudong BTFR LS 50 - 50
Ms. Dong Xiaoqing ERELL i 21 - 21
Ms. Cao Zhenzhen HEB It i 29 - 29
Ms. Zhou Min ALt 50 - - - 50
250 - - - 250
Total for 2021 SRR 1,690 2,311 - 305 4,306
Notes: (i) Retired on 21 May 2021 MERE: () MoF_—4F@RH _—+—
H AT X
(i)  Appointed on 21 May 2021 (i) RoFZ—F @ —
H A ZAE 2o
(ili)  Resigned on 20 May 2022 (ili) R-F__4FHH Tr H -
BT N | ‘
(iv)  Appointed on 20 May 2022 (v RoFESmEE St
BZE Pt S
- ‘v (S
JeEAL R RERFE AR A LA T 152

TR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

()

(b)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)

Pursuant to the service contracts entered into
between the Company and its executive directors,
the Company’s executive directors are entitled to an
aggregate amount of discretionary bonuses of not more
than 5% of the consolidated profit after tax but before

the provision of such bonuses.

There was no arrangement under which a director or a
supervisor waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or supervisors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’s connected party had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

15. # 3 R B & (4)

()

(b)

R RS (D)

WREA L A AT E R RIS 2
i B 5 &) > A Ox F AT HE S A HE
PR A BRBIA (HR R
AL 2 1) AR A M5 % 2 BTG AEAL

BE-Z R —F
A=t H IR BMEE
5l B 0 52 TR 5 AT T
Ko 37 A

WEF R CE
TS H L AL
S 9 ) £ 3 55 B 30 A
LR LTIV PR ATE T
B 2 D K R B -

ERRES - EHRARZER
Hi 5

A2 )RR A A [ S5 RT L AT
AT 7 A R BCAF 1A A AR B[] A7 A T
AR S A F NSNS
WA E R G (e B R U
) WERZ S~ LR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to the
MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages
subject to a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 per
employee and vest fully with employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The Group’s PRC employees are members of a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to
the central pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits.
The local municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of the Group. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet

the required contributions under the scheme.

The Group also operates other retirement benefits schemes
for all qualifying employees in elsewhere and required to
contribute certain percentage of the employee’s salaries

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The Group’s contributions to retirement benefit schemes
vest fully and immediately with the employees. Accordingly,
there are no forfeited contributions under the retirement
benefit schemes which may be used by the Group to reduce
its existing level of contributions or contributions payable
in future years as at and during each of the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

AR RERT R A R A

-

SRR

16.

B A s S

A £ [ AR5 7 s o ) 1 A i R e 451
T A G S R B — TE R
AR (TEREFE ] - AL
MBS H R TIREHF SR TEY
5% wHo > & B L8 H e Aa iR
1,500 7T > 1 H A< 4 B A7 A 58 1 8w
# 2R B R — MR BT o

RSB 2 B B Y 2 B T BURN
AT 2 SR R B ] o A SR 2 [
PR REF RN B RAT SR TE
AT LA BB ARAR I o Hb T B
I B BUR S AL I T A BLA e RIVHRR R
18 B 2B AR FI L PE o i b iR IR
FEEI & - A H 2 BUEE B At
BT T R

AEMTA RS TA G ERES
RS A AR ARAR Rl > Sl ZH AR S
s e R R E AR B & 0s T E
r A K

A AR PR AR M) S B (3 € 4l Sr
BRI e B o L fEflE %
FERCFEZFT A= HIEEE
JEE > AR RN B IE T M AT ] B IS i
APk > AT B AR BT DU B A Y
PEFOK - AR R A AF BE B JE A 1k -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

17.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022 is based on the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of RMB333,383,000 (2021:
RMB158,972,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,514,464,000 (2021: 1,481,737,000) in
issue during the year. No adjustment has been made to the
basic earnings per share amounts presented for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. There were no potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, and hence the diluted earnings

per share is the same as basic earnings per share.

17.

55 & #

T I ik A B 9 2 )

BE_EZ -+ A=+ —HIEE
FE o ARG A AL R SRR B R Ty
43 P AR 5 AR 2N | A N A A AT B UG
IR ¥5333,383,0007C (& ——4F -
AR %158,972,00070) LA K 4F A £ 547
9 B A T35 801,514,464,000 (&
T 4F 1 1,481,787,000) BEEFE o AT
MEE _F R CFEC—FT A
= H IR 2 AR R 25 4
BELRE - RMEEF - FRF
ST AEST - HIEFE S B
TTAE AN VEAE R 48 B o WOt > A S
B R B A i LA g AR R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y3 ~ W K st i

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture and
Freehold Machinery and office Motor Constructionin  Right-of-use
land Buildings equipment equipment vehicles progress assets Total
HEmE
RN KB KRR
1i LE T AR R TRIE  BMERE il
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARETE  AREFE  ARETx  ARETrX  AREFR  ARETT ARETR
Cost i
At1 January 2021 RZFZ-F-A-H 4,957 60,838 5,192 8,118 4,502 76,000 96,301 325,798
Acquisition of a subsidiary BB AR
(note 39(b)) (FtE39(b)) - - - 142 422 94500 150,368 245,432
Additions hE - 159 it 404 476 102,731 - 104,571
Transfers B - 5,54 17,734 66 - (39,643) 18519 -
Transfers to fnvestment HEREWE (W3ho)
properties (note 19) - - - - - (127,129) (71,936) (199,058)
Disposals ifs - - (10) (1) (1,35) - - (1,376)
Exchange differences ERzd 97 (322) (71) (19) (1) - - (516)
At31 December 2021 and R -ZEZ—F
1 January 2022 tZAZ -k
“ECTE-A-0 4,160 63,999 23,550 8,796 74,038 106,466 193,842 474,851
Acquisition of a subsidiary — JE— B AR
(note 39(a)) (Kr3E89(a)) - - 27,324 3,206 482 - 6,853 37,865
Additions T - 33 2,940 419 14,616 17,463 - 35471
Transfers Lo - 69,711 - - - (69,711) - -
Wiitten off it = - ] 1] - = = (14)
Disposals ik - - - (33) (23,187) (28323) - (51,543)
Exchange differences Enzd 385 1,286 345 52 2 - = 2,097
At 31 December 2022 e
ToAZT-H 4,545 135,029 54,152 12,433 65,978 25,895 200,695 498,727

AETAK T BT R A T
S S

156
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W3 ~ WG Bt it (%)
(CONTINUED)

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture and

Freehold Machinery and office Motor Constructionin  Right-of-use

land Buildings ~ equipment  equipment vehicles progress assets Total

[LES
KA kB Bk

1 By BERRE WA Rl ERIR fRERE it
RMBOOD  RMBOM  RMBOM  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO  RMBOOO  RMB'0OD
ARBFE  ARMTE  ARMTE  ARWTR  ARWTR  ARETR  ARETL  ARMTR

Accumulated depreciation Bt &

At1January 2021 e Sty i - 5,869 4,668 7,10 62,811 - 9,544 90,662
Charged for the year ERH - 3,68 9,569 44 3,037 - 4499 14,179
Disposals ik - - (10) (11) (1,119) - - (1,140
Exchange differences Enzd - (60) (1) (13) (6) - - (157)

At31 December 2021 and 1 R-ZFZ—4

January 2022 tZAZ -k
ZEZZE-A-R - 9,491 7,149 8,188 64,743 - 13,973 103,544
Charged for the year ERL L - 3810 .94 806 3,046 = 7893 23,498
Written off s = - (6) (6) - - = (12)
Disposal hE = - - (32) (22,029) - = (22,061)
Exchange differences Bzl - 296 309 5 % - - 686
- 13,597 15,39 9,008 45,789 - 21,866 105,655
Carrying amount e
At 31 December 2022 REBZZE
TZRAE-H 4,545 121,432 38,757 3,425 20,189 25,89 178,829 393,072
At 31 December 2021 REZTk
+ZAZF—H 4,160 54,508 16,401 608 9,295 106,466 179,369 3711307

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W3k ~ Wb Kot i (4
(CONTINUED)
The analysis of the net carrying amount of right-of-use assets FERH T A I 20 T ) 0 O O R
by class of underlying asset is as follows: R ET
Leasehold Lease
land contracts Total
iRl ME A At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T  ARW¥WTxT ARWTIE

As at 1 January 2021 WoE - —H—H—H 24,953 62,394 87,347
Acquisition of a subsidiary WA Bl — ] B 2 /D (B EE39 (b))

(note 39(b)) 150,368 - 150,368
Transfers LEES 18,519 - 18,519
Transfers to investment U B W2 (M 5E19)

properties (note 19) (71,936) - (71,936)
Depreciation charged IR AT 5 (607) (3,822) (4,429)

As at 31 December 2021 and W _-ZF _—4+_-H=+—H

1 January 2022 k_Z__#H#—H—H 121,297 58,572 179,869
Acquisition of a subsidiary WAL g — ] o T 2 )

(note 39(a)) (Fff 5E39(a)) - 6,853 6,853
Depreciation charged BRI E (609) (7,284) (7,893)
As at 31 December 2022 R_F__#+_H=1+—H 120,688 58,141 178,829

2022 2021
TR TR
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T o0 ANRBETIT

Interest on lease liabilities g A 2 FLE 4,048 3,898
Expense relating to short-term leases A BT S 2 B 3 899 814
Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity analysis BB 6 AR A Y - R AR
of lease liabilities and the future cash outflows arising from F 19 75 #r DA B i A BH Z*ﬂﬁ@ﬁiﬁﬁﬂi
leases that are not yet commenced are set out in notes 34 ﬂifﬁfﬁ{nmﬁﬁﬁ“%ﬁﬂﬁ/\l}ﬁ&34~&6\(d /
and 6(d) respectively. ¢,_ 5, ,’j
9 } ‘gfﬂ
At 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of property, MWoEZ - —4HE+A=+—H PE <7
plant and equipment pledged as securities for the T B e st < B (2 LA 1%2|§§f
Group’s bank loans amounted to RMB277,082,000 (2021: M RATE R Z AR > A N .
RMB281,364,000) (note 33). %277 082,0007C (—% :_—%gk%’%‘\\
281,364,0007C) (Fif#E33) - e
\?}
TR RSB F R AN R AT 158
S

A
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

The Group has carried out a review of the fair value
of its investment properties located in the PRC on an
annual basis with reference to the independent valuation
performed by a professionally qualified independent
external valuer, who had appropriate experience in the
relevant location and category of the properties being
valued. The valuation conforms to International Valuation
Standards and the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties as at 31 December 2022 was RMB270,570,000
(2021: RMB281,364,000) determined using market approach
with depreciated replacement cost approach which largely
used observable and unobservable inputs, including market

price per square, replacement cost, estimated useful life and

residual value under level 3 fair value measurement.

At-_:Sl December 2022, the carrying amount of investment

- properties pledged as securities for the Group’s bank loans
- amounted to RMB195,592,000 (2021: RMB199,058,000)

(note 33).

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. EWHE
2022 2021
TR S S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt ANBR¥ET T
Cost R A
At 1 January h—H—H 199,058 -
Additions NE 661 -
Transfer from property, plant and HYI2E R 5S s s A
equipment (note 18) (Fft5E18) = 199,058
Other HoAth (1,686) -
At 31 December wt—_H=+—H 198,033 199,058
Accumulated depreciation Rt &
At 1 January w—H—H _ _
Charged for the year LAENES 2,441 -
At 31 December W+ —_H=+—H 2,441 -
Carrying amount % i
At 31 December wt+—_HA=+—H 195,592 199,058

A A (6] g 45 30 T EL 7 v A 43 e 2
WNOFE s W% — R A HEGRNE
7. 4 NI (L A0 8 ST A (R > HR Bl Ak
P 25 1) A T B R AN T B SR
HTHIRE S o RZREAN AT A B PR R AN AR E
Th 82 2B UM EN TG E AL -
AEMBEYER_F__F+ A
“T—HMAFESANRH270,570,000
I (TE T — 4 0 AR 281,364,000
Jt) o Jh BT P AR T
fEEE o B R] A BOR AT L Y
ABE > iR N IGER =8
FRAS > Ak EF AT AR R R R A
TS =R A TR & o

RoFE AT A=+ —H > fERAE
£ E BT ERIE RN E Y R A
£ N R ¥5195,592,00000 (& ——4F ¢
199,058,00070) (Fff5E33) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

20. GOODWILL 20. HE
2022 2021
e S TR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
N B NS BT
Cost AR
At 1 January w—H—H 204 204
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39 (a)) Ui i — [ K & 2 & (K 3:39(a)) 39,608 -
At 31 December wtr_H=+—H 39,812 204
Accumulated impairment losses ERHE AL R
At 1 January and 31 December w—HA—BKkt_HA=+—H = -
Carrying amount ke T L
At 31 December wtr-H=+—H 39,812 204

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from
that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill

had been allocated as follows:

T SETS o DR T F) 78 2 T A I 20 P 22
ER)SVE S R g R L i o a e
{37 o PE AR T (B O ARSR Ty U A

2022 2021
- S T A
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN ANR¥T T

Sales and production of LED devices 848 X FELED &% 14

Investment <y

HAK T SRR AT IR A 7]
SRR

39,608 -
204 204
39,812 204
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

20.

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Investment

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
from value-in-use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value-in-use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and turnover
during the period. The Group estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates are referred to past experience and current
market expectation and/or demand or based on long-term
average economic growth rate of the geographical area
in which the businesses of the CGUs operate whichever is
applicable. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based

on past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors for

the next five (2021: five) years.

The pre-tax rate used to discount the forecast cash flows
from the Group’s operating segment of the investment
holding is 12.81% (2021: 7.7%).

Sales and production of LED devices

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amounts
of goodwill of RMB39,608,000 and certain intangible assets
of technical knowhow, computer softwares and customer lists
of RMB13,766,000 as set out in note 21 have been allocated
to the cash-generating unit of sales and production of LED
devices (“LED CGU”).

The recoverable amount of the LED CGU was determined
based on the measurement of fair value less costs of disposal,
a level 3 fair value measurement. The valuation of the LED
CGU was carried out by an independent valuation firm who

held recognised and relevant professional qualifications and

‘had recent experience in the valuation of private unlisted

.e_ntities. The fair value less costs of disposal of the LED

CGU as at 31 December 2022 was measured using market

comparable approach. The variables and assumptions used

' in computing the fair value less costs of disposal of the LED

C_CU were based on the independent valuation firm’s best

estimate.

20.

T B (%)

® &

B4 7 A A 22 W] i Tl < T AR A
R EITERE - (EREF T T2
T TR BB - R - IR 2 1]
SEBA R 2ER o A F R T AT R B
Iy T 45 3 £ M6 R [ M (0 4 7 A L7
5 SR B 2 A Y BR BRI R LA
B o 1R 3R 22 20 0 1 A Bl % i T
DU S/ o oK miAR B 3 465 7 A BELA
R SE 5 T A b [ 2 S 45 = 0 SR =
R (R E#A) - HE B &E
SE T IR 4% 0 1 2R B R T 305 % e T 7

=1

7E °

A 4R P AR PR RS HE S v 2 R AR LA (
TR TAR) ROl W B B AR
B g ) o

AT BIA L B G R T 2 80
4330 T A TR B 4 O 2 BR BRI LE 2R S
12.81% (—F . —4FE : 7.7%) o

8 8 I 4 FELED 7% 1

Ak I W E o O B EE21 A R
I T 4 A\ R H639,608,0000C & #57 T 4
AR AT S QL &S
AR I E 5 A R ¥13,766,0007C B 4 it
B R B LED SR 1R 9 B4 A BEA
(TLEDH & EAEA) -

LEDH 4 7 A 507 A9 A i [o] g R AR 958 2>
SPE W A (BB = g A TERHE) T
SE o LEDBE 4 7 A B (0 i (8 il — R
SEAGE 2 AIERT R AR A RS A
PSS E NS - GRS LT R AT
AR A T A o A —F — 4+
HZ=+—H > LEDBl& & LB AT
(R0t B A SR T T 85w LIk RE R o R
SLEDH & A B2 19 22 - (E 8 45 A
7R T e Y ) 8 R I AR T R S A (L
ARSINiNE SEX L
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20. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Sales and production of LED devices (Continued)

The significant unobservable inputs into the approach were

as follows:
Discount for lack of marketability 40%
Financial multiples of public companies 1.99 - 2.24

The higher the lack of marketability was, the lower the
fair value was. The higher the financial multiples of public

companies was, the higher the fair value was.

20.

w2 ()
B8 K A AELED 2% 1 (#)
BT A ORI AR M AE T

i =2 T 35 A v B B 40%
I8 RS I RS R 1.99 — 2.94
Z T O B B o N T
USRS F A R A FE

o

BB
° M

g
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21 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS At 18 %
Transport
operation Technical Computer Customer
licence Knowhow softwares list Total
A m Bofi ek kSR LIRS wit

RMB’000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETIL  ARTT AR¥®TLE ARBTT ARWT

Cost JEA

At 1 January 2021 RZFZ—4F—H—H 30,000 - 1,332 7,178 38,510
Additions WE - - 696 - 696
Exchange differences E 51, % 5 - - (7) (164) (171)

At 31 December 2021 and R FE 4

1 January 2022 FZAZF AR
CECCHE—HA—H 30,000 = 2,021 7,014 39,035
Acquisition of a subsidiary it fE — [H] i} i /A v
(note 39(a)) (Pt 5£39(a)) = 6,035 466 8,442 14,943
Exchange differences HE i 7 2 - - 27 648 675
At 31 December 2022 /A 2
+ZA=Z+—H 30,000 6,035 2,514 16,104 54,653

Accumulated amortisation 2 5t # 8

At 1 January 2021 WoZZ—F—H—H 30,000 - 924 7,178 38,102
Amortisation charged A TR R

for the year - - 304 - 304
Exchange differences I i, % 5 - - (4) (164) (168)

At 81 December 2021 and A ~E 4

1 January 2022 +EA= AR
ZETTHE—H—H 30,000 - 1,224 7,014 38,238
Amortisation charged A R R
for the year - 453 418 633 1,504
Exchange differences s 2 - - 21 648 669
At?:l December 2022 /A S
L
By +ZA=+—H 30,000 453 1,663 8,295 40,411
W i i
+ZH=+—H - 5,582 851 7,809 14,242
s S
+ZA=+—H - - 797 - 797

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2022



21

22.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 5 e o Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s intangible assets of technical knowhow arose
from acquisition of a subsidiary during the year ended
31 December 2022. These intangible assets represent the
registered patents applied to various LED products. The
remaining amortisation period of the technical knowhow is

10 years.

The Group’s transport operation license represents a public
transport monopoly operation in a designated national 5A
level tourist attraction in the PRC. This asset is used in the

Group’s Tourism development segment.

Customer list represents customer relationship acquired
through business combination. The remaining amortisation

period of the customer list is ten years.

Particulars of the impairment testing on intangible assets are

disclosed in note 20.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The Group is engaged in the production and sales of wine
and related products. At 31 December 2022, the Group owns
7 acres (2021: 7 acres) of vines. During the year, the Group
harvested approximately 12 tons (2021: 12 tons) of grapes,
which had a fair value less costs to sell of RMB115,000
(2021: RMB188,000) (determined at the time of harvest)
with reference to their market prices. The fair value of the
Group’s biological assets as at 31 December 2022 has been
determined based on income approach and taken into
account the adjustments to harvest profile, cost incurred,

cultivation area, and expected yield of the biological assets.

AR RERT R A R A

-

SRR

21.

22.

H A 78 & 2 (A1)

MEFE DTS IR
> A% 2 AL il — T 5 2 0 1 28 24
A SR F ST E o R MY Y AR
FME R I 45 FELEDE i (1) 75 207« 4%
1 1 7 5 44 6 990 24 104F:

A B [ 2 A 3 A g S R A o B R
S B 2K 5 A BRI 1 S S 2 8 o7 i
E o RZIHEE )Y MR AR S 1 2 ik i 3 5%
JEY L o

o

SRR Ki) e SR SE R
B BEZH BT HH M S105 -

I T T ) (L B kR I e S M
20 °

AP &

A 4 [ 16 554 2 0 B TR E 2
BEER c A B A= —
Ho AREEBEATAE (T 47
INVE) A o AR IR A 4E R A R
EAIME (B 4 12MF) - HAT
R 9ok 8 B AR Ay AN MR 115,0000C (&
TAE T NEHE188,0007T ) O i R ]
FEE)  EHRSH AN TE - AL M
AYEERN _F__FTH=1T—H
ZATEBRBERA LS > WEFIAY
Y EE AL A~ BT R 2 R
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

22. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 22. &R ()
Reconciliation of carrying amount of vines: 7 % e H i A 2 R
2022 2021
—E A R A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T oo AR T
At 1 January w—H—H 961 2,462
Gain/ (Loss) from changes in fair value N T {H 5 ) 8 B AR
less costs to sell ZWti, (kE8) 248 (1,274)
Decrease due to harvest WS i b (115) (188)
Exchange differences [ifE 5, 7= BH 42 (39)
At 31 December wt+—_H=+—H 1,136 961
The Group is exposed to climate and other risks related to A AFE ) i 3 SR R B 4 A R 1 LA
its vines: JEL B
Climate and other risks SR B e Al ), B
The Group’s vines are exposed to the risk of damage from A AR ] 2 A 2 A T S R SR f A AL - R
climatic changes, diseases, fires and other natural forces. ;ﬁ— S T A [ K 7 Bk kiR 2 JEL
The Group has extensive processes in place aimed at o AL E R HART > BB
monitoring and mitigating those risks, including regular WD %5 R B - B E A I A A A Y
vines health inspections and industry pest and disease T R I DU B HE AT R A B R A O R
surveys. oo
23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. RPiEAFRZHRE
2022 2021
—E & I e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ T 70 AR T 7T
Investments: W&
Share of net assets JRE A A 3,333,037 2,790,299
: mbunts due from/(to) associates are unsecured, e, (REAT) Tt 2 w3k T T AT ~
A\ \\ | t.%rest free and have no fixed repayment terms. B S B e [ R AR
= it
< v -,s-."
N ;4 'ﬁn
- L=
i Wy

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. NBHEAFNZHE (H)

(CONTINUED)

Details of the Group’s principal associates at 31 December
2022 are as follows:

AEER-F FTH A= HZ
FEBE AR

Place of Percentage of equity
Name incorporation Registered capital interest Principal activities
an a8 37 3 2 i it A HE 06 M A 2 B £ 3]
Direct Indirect
Hik il #%

Jade Bird Fire Co., Ltd. Hebei, the PRC RMB240,000,000 31.88% - Sales and contract works of
(“Jade Bird Fire”) (2021: 36.85%) embedded system products

and related products

HREGRAHRAR AL A RH240,000,00072 31.88% AR ARG i SR
(1% Kb )) (ZHR-—f: ZHERBRTR

36.85%)

Beijing Jade Bird Hengsheng Beijing, the PRC RMB1,000,000,000 40% 1% Investment in unlisted PRC
Investment Fund (Limited enterprises or growing entities
Partnership) (“HS Fund”)

%Fﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁgé il ARH1,000,000,0007 BB LR R

(HRE®) MERER)) ERZBE

Chuangi (Hunan) Cultural Hunan, the PRC RMB150,000,000 - 29%  Infrastructure construction
Development Co., Ltd. and supporting development
(“Chuangi Cultural buildings for the Tianzi
Development‘ ) Mountain.

%ﬁ(ﬁﬁ LA RAA o 1 B H150,000,0007 PSRILE Y ikt

(AR MERERST

Beijing Xinzhongrui Venture Beijing, the PRC RMB250,000,000 - 25%  Investment in unlisted PRC
Capital Co., Ltd. enterprises or growing entities
(“Xinzhongrui VC”)

A o B BB AR 2 AL 250,000,000 Bft B b e
([ b Al )) V414

Shanghai Shengjin Venture Shanghai, the PRC RMB200,000,000 25% 20%  Investment in unlisted PRC
Capital Investment Co., Ltd. enterprises or growing entities
(“Shanghai Shengjin VC”)

SAEBEARAA il AEH£200,000,0007C B E LU R
(t@&AJﬁJ ERZBE

Eta Semiconductor Technology Shanghai, the PRC RMB104,295,272 22.86% - Sales and production of
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. semiconductor materials and
(Eta Shanghai) investment in unlisted PRC

enterprises or growing entities

SAPFEEE (L) ARAR  PE LR NEH104,295,27270 S T AR BRI B
(4 L) tﬁﬁ%i“%%ﬁﬁfﬁg

HAK T SRR AT IR A 7]
SRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

%
W
~

£

167

(CONTINUED)

The following tables show information on the associates that
are material to the Group. These associates are accounted

for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity

23. RBEAFZHRE (M)

F 2B o

ARG AR AR TS R
ZAF R A RN AR S
FUARE 2R T5 AR o T 290 BB ORI 2

B

method. The summarised financial information presented is T AR M v W) 22 T v B i At e R
based on the HKFRS financial statements of the associates. B o
Name Jade Bird Fire
% 1 AL
2022 2021
% of ownership interests/voting rights held 7<% [ 5 A5 2 ¥ A 1
by the Group HEfs TR E I 31.88% 36.85%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AN R¥F e NE¥ET ot
At 31 December mht+_H=4+—H
Non-current assets JEwmEh & 1,352,473 1,279,734
Current assets it B 6,710,750 4,410,372
Non-current liabilities FERE EE (155,021) (122,673)
Current liabilities it ) & 1 (1,907,703) (1,839,810)
Net assets attributable to owners WA ANMEL TS E 6,000,499 3,727,623
Less: Share capital injected by I HA B R A 2 A
other shareholders (1,407,621) (1,011,120)
Add: Dividend paid during the year o ASAE B AT 22 A 145,961 110,748
Less: Other reserve W HoAb B AS 229,621 1,244
Less: Exchange reserve Wk c B SO fE A 9,434 32,767
Less: NCIs I JE P B (193,688) (164,638)
Net assets attributable to owners BEA NG G 4,784,206 2,696,624
Group’s share of net assets AL S AL TS E 1,525,205 993,715
Fair value uplift AFAE BT 1,239,726 1,432,996
Dividend received 2l S (51,394) (41,230)
Other adjustments HAth ) #& 107,759 56,912
Group’s share of carrying amount A AR B A A5 R £ PR TAT(E
of interests 2,821,296 2,442,393
Year ended 31 December: BET_H=1—HIL4EE:
;Révenue A 4,442,080 3,733,397
\M?}oﬁt for the year AN A B i A 570,263 530,457
§ _:\;pther comprehensive income HoAth 2 T Uk 25 (50,404) (45,407)
Total comprehensive income 2 1H] K £S AE AR 519,859 485,050
ﬁiﬂ{ridends received from associates SRS /NI 958 51,394 41,230

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

23. RBEAFRZZE (M)

HAK T SRR AT IR A 7]
SRR

(CONTINUED)
Name HS Fund Xinzhongrui VC
41 ER P 5 v B A1 4%
2022 2021 2022 2021
BRI CFC-F "R CFDF
% of ownership interests/ KA 2 A RE
voting rights held by the fEdE 1R E O
Group 41%/41% 41%/41% 25%/25%  25%/25%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRE AR¥TT AR¥WTRE AR¥TT
At 31 December RT+_H=+—H
Non-current assets I I W) 43,568 59,798 121,676 147,281
Current assets i) A 161,616 194,764 12,337 12,220
Non-current liabilities LT N = - (809) (4,710)
Current liabilities it A (33,285) (33,093) (60) (60)
Net assets ey 171,899 221,469 133,144 154,731
Less: NCIs s IR A A (30,315) (46,407) - -
Net assets attributable to HEAH N 4h T E
owners 141,584 175,062 133,144 154,731
Group’s share of net assets 742 [l /3 45 1§ & & 58,049 71,775 33,286 38,683
Other adjustments At 7 (479) (560) = -
Group’s share of carrying A B 23 A HE 4R
amount of interests W 1A (H 57,570 71,215 33,286 38,683
Year ended 31 December: &2+ _H=1+—H
AR JE
Revenue A - 209,534 = -
(Loss) /Profit for the year AAEFE (EH8) i (17,248) 42,216 (549)
Other comprehensive income  H At 4 T I 4% (16,230) (45,782) (21,039)
Total comprehensive income 4 T IX %5 48 48 (33,478) (3,566) (21,588)
Dividends received from 2 WO A A RS
. _—
associates - a - LN &
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. NBHEAFNZHE (H)

(CONTINUED)
Chuangqi Cultural
Name Shanghai Shengjin VC Development
41 EiH S A {77 SO AL 9% R
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E O CE M DB EC—F
% of ownership interests/ AL 2 BEA HE
voting rights held by the Mg R A I
Group 45%/45%  45%/45% | 49%/49% 49%/49%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®E TR AR¥ T3t ARW TR AR¥ T
At 31 December B+=A=+—H
Non-current assets IE B & 489,075 373,512 = -
Current assets ) & E 32,038 33,583 194,488 251,375
Non-current liabilities B A R (77,188) (49,340) = -
Current liabilities E A fE (1,500) (1,500) (64,214)  (121,100)
Net assets HEE 442,425 356,255 130,274 130,275
Add: share capital not injected Jill = HoAth B o A A
by other shareholders i N = - 3,000 3,000
Net assets attributable to BEA N A5
owners 442,425 356,255 133,274 133,275
Group’s share of net assets A A A VR 199,091 160,315 65,304 65,305
Other adjustment FoAth 7 4 - - (1,038) (841)
Group’s share of carrying A 2 ] 73 ik HE i R T
amount of interests 199,091 160,315 64,266 64,464
Year ended 31 December: ®E+_H=1+—H
IR
R@Qenue e A _ — _ -
\ £ Loss for the year A 18 (1,546) (1,578) 1) -
N\ 205
‘:-: % i,
?;‘, ~ Other comprehensive income  H: Al 4 T ¥ £ 87,716 258,096 _ -
b 3 Ji o
86,170 256,523 1) -

LS }Q " Total comprehensive income 2 i it £ 48

’43’:7
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. NBHEAFNZHE (H)

ALK HRF R AR A
S

(CONTINUED)
Name Eta Shanghai
# W B4 il
2022 2021
—ECOH TE T
% of ownership interests/ AL A 2 B HE 22.86%/
voting rights held by the Group Mt/ BOEHEE A I 29.86% N/A 7~
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T oo AR
At 31 December B+—_A=+—H
Non-current assets o E & E 273,165 _
Current assets W) E 100,960 -
Non-current liabilities F B A6 _ _
Current liabilities mE A (181,334) —
Net assets iER <y 192,791 —
Add: share capital not injected by ns FAl R R TEA
other shareholders A _ -
Net assets attributable to owners BH NG FERE 192,791 _
Group’s share of net assets AL A5 44,073 _
Goodwill ik 100,656 -
Group’s share of carrying A B 7 A R i AR T (E
amount of interests 144,729 -
Year ended 31 December: BETHA=Z+T—HILEE:
Revenue WA 1,289 —
Loss for the year A FE 1R (75,552) -
Other comprehensive income HC At 2 T O £ _
Total comprehensive income A TH] i 4 AR (75,552)
Dividends received from associates S o TR _
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

23.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23.
(CONTINUED)

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share
of the amounts of all other immaterial associates that are

accounted for using equity method.

R A E Z R E (4)

RSN H AL B A T A LA A
T R i v N\ R 2 T R 2 B

2022 2021
e Y e St B
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN B ANRBETIT

At 31 December: w+ZH=+—H:
Carrying amounts of interests HE i HR T

Year ended 31 December: BET-HA=1T—HI14E :
Loss for the year A 1R

Other comprehensive income HoAth 4 T U 5

Total comprehensive income A T A 4 A AH

At 31 December 2022, the bank and cash balances of
the Group’s associates in the PRC denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB2,375,949,000 (2021: RMB849,118,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign

Exchange Regulations.

12,799 13,229
(1,203) (5,084)
(1,203) (5,084)

W TAEF A= —H o AREE
B o w DL R SHE 2 i B 2 4R
11 M Bl A & ik B N H72,375,949,00070
(CF = —4F 0 ARH849,118,00070) °
N B S0 46 i A s A7 (3 N R L AR
B A M AR ) B CA5 T - BT A AT
I E) BR o

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24. REBREZRE
2022 2021
- S TR TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW¥TE  ARWTT
Unlisted investments: JEEMHE :
Share of net assets A 1 182,171 2,964

Amounts due from/(to) joint ventures are unsecured,

JEAT, (W) & %8 A 2E R T SRR ~ 4
S B J B 2 9 R

o

interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.

AEHHEGECER T %+ A
=t —HZEENT

Details of the Group’s joint ventures at 31 December 2022

are as follows:

Capital contributions/

issued and paid up Percentage of
Name Place of incorporation  capital ownership interest  Principal activities
g/ TR 5 1

Hi itk it 37 4 2 BUE A MEFE AL FEEH
SBI & BDJB China Fund,  Cayman Islands USD73,436,598 50%  Investment in unlisted companies

L.P. (“SBI China”) and real estate assets and

companies in the PRC

SBI & BDJB China Fund, B2 5 78,436,598 7t BEHF LA LR B

LP. ([SBI China)) M B R
SBI & BDJB Management  Cayman Islands 100,000 ordinary shares 50%  Provision of investment

Limited of USD1 each management and advisory

services

SBI & BDJB Management [ % & 100,000/8 %5 i i (& R L S T P R

Limited [ESTva .} T
Beida Jade Bird Tongling  Tongling, the PRC RMB350,000,000 49%  Investment in unlisted PRC

Semiconductor Industry enterprises or growing entities

Investment Fund (Limited :

Partnership) (“Tongling

Fund”) :
TXHE SR ERESR  PRERE AR 350,000,000 R PRI

RS HRA) ZHE |

(RBE &4 )

- _
S
AR T BT R R A A 172 A

SR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

24.

173

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24. REBREEZRE (H)
(CONTINUED)
The following table shows information on the joint venture NRIVHEALE T FEERZEER
that is material to the Group. This joint venture is accounted EZER o A EEERE S M IRE
for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity DIRERR B AR o BT 25 W 5 R 2 TS
method. The summarised financial information presented WA B 78 1 36 22 T s IV i At Y R o 5
is based on the HKFRS financial statements of the joint Wk o
venture.
Name SBI China
& W SBI China
2022 2021
ZEOOH TR
% of ownership interests/voting rights ARG 2 WA RE
held by the Group fEa R T T 50%/50% 50%/50%
RMB’000 RMB’000
PN BT ANR¥T 7T
At 31 December B+ —_H=1+—H
Non-current assets B G 508 2,315
Current assets B B 4,181 4,257
Current liabilities B AR (278) (182)
Net assets g 4,411 6,390
Less: NCIs B I RE - (406)
Net assets attributable to owners A NG G 4,411 5,984
Group’s share of carrying amount 7 A ] A 2 e T (L
of interests 2,185 2,964
Cash and cash equivalents included in R B A 2 B
current assets Bl &Y 2,822 4,220

Current financial liabilities (excluding

, "'.Itrade and other payables and provisions)

~included in current liabilities

- Non-current financial liabilities (excluding

trade and other payables and provisions)

. included in non-current liabilities

wE AU B AR 2 )

B OREHEE 5 KAl
AT K I I 48446 —

it A JE W) B A 2 JE

s A (R E 5 &
JFC A 8 A 3 I B A -

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24. REBREEZRE (H)
(CONTINUED)
Name SBI China
Hg SBI China
2022 2021
e S CE AR
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T oo NRBET T

Year ended 31 December: BREFT A=+ —HILFE:

Revenue A - -
Depreciation and amortisation I8 T i 8 - -
Interest income FLE YA - -
Interest expense FE B 3¢ - -
Income tax expense I A5 BB 3 - -
Loss for the year A AR BT i 4R (767) (161)
Other comprehensive income At 4 T i A (1,271) (30,232)
Total comprehensive income A TH YA o A8 A (2,038) (30,393)
Dividends received from joint venture s ERERE = -

ALK BT AT A 7
SRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24. REBREEZRE (H)
(CONTINUED)
Name Tongling Fund
4 W 8 b2 3 &
2022 2021
% of ownership interests/voting rights A A 2 A HENERS 49%/49% Nil/Nil
held by the Group BEEREE L
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥TF 55 YN BT
At 31 December w+_H=+—H
Non-current assets IE i H) & 323,589 -
Current assets ) R 135,239 -
Current liabilities TE) A 1 (126,231) -
Net assets g 332,597 -
Less: NCIs W PR R AR = -
Net assets attributable to owners WA NG FEE 332,597 -
Group’s share of net assets A B2 [ 53 T 162,973 -
Goodwill 7 17,013 -
Group’s share of carrying amount of A B B 23 A5 HE 4 R T (L
interests 179,986 -
Cash and cash equivalents included in FEAMBNEE 2 B4 &
current assets &5 EY 9,961 -

Current financial liabilities (excluding
trade and other payables and provisions)

_ncluded in current liabilities

_,f' N;ﬁ)n-current financial liabilities (excluding
A

\ ~trade and other payables and provisions)
= N
7 S - included in non-current liabilities
| § o
\ 2 b
VA
. " g
W b i

aEA U B A 2 U B
A ORNEIEHE 5 & HAl
B A I I 438 4)

FE AR E B2 IR E)
B AR (REER S &
At AT SR IH L2 4845

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24. REBREEZRE (H)
(CONTINUED)
Name Tongling Fund
P S I Bk 4
2022 2021
It St TR 4E
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN ANRMT 5T

Year ended 31 December: BET-H=1+—HIL4EE:
Revenue e A _ _
Depreciation and amortisation P8 K 8 - -
Interest income R A 296 -
Interest expense F S BH 3 - -
Income tax expense T 15 B BH 2 - -
Profit for the year A AE B i A 39,311 -
Other comprehensive income A 2 T A A - -
Total comprehensive income EE 39,311 -
Dividends received from joint venture B A EMSERE - -
b SRS :
e X )
N
e R G B ERFE RSB A IR A 176 4
TR TAREER
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24,
(CONTINUED)

The following table shows the Group’s share of the amounts
of the immaterial joint venture that is accounted for using

equity method.

REBEEZRE (M)

RSN A S [ A8 ) S
MRERIE AR B A3 2 4 -

2022 2021
e Y e St B
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN B ANRBETIT

(58) 27

58 (27)

At 31 December: W+ _H=+—H:
Carrying amounts of interests HE 4 AR T (L

Year ended 31 December: BET_H=1—HIL4E:
(Loss) /Profit for the year AP (BE18) A

Other comprehensive income At 4 THT L A

Total comprehensive income A T A % A AH

At 31 December 2022, the bank and cash balances of
the Group’s joint ventures in the PRC denominated in
RMB amounted to RMB10,316,000 (2021: RMB239,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign

Exchange Regulations.

Note:

The amount of share of unrecognised loss in the immaterial joint
venture during the year ended 31 December 2022 was RMB633,000
(2021: RMB126,000).

MoE D AEFTA=Zt—H > AEH
R A8 EUANRBEFHESRT &
Bessth NRT10,316,00000 (- F
——4E 0 NR#239,00000) < #F AR
b4 A 7 O N R S A A
AR T CH5E - 65 Ko A A B A
JE D) BLRR -

B -

NEE—FZ S A= HILEERE
MBAERE L FEMCEZ RERERZ &
B N H633,00000 (—F ——4 0 AR
126,0007C) ©

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

25. INVESTMENTS IN FILM PRODUCTIONS

25. RERBREZRE

2022 2021
- Sy T
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T oo ANR¥T 7T

Cost
At 1 January and 31 December

Accumulated amortisation and
impairment
At 1 January

Impairment

At 31 December

Carrying amount
At 31 December

B AR

H—H—HKk+_-H=+—H 3,500 3,500
ST K A

w—HA—H - -
WAE (3,500) -
WrHZA=1+—H (3,500) -
W T L

W+ A=+—H - 3,500

Investments in film productions are stated as cost less

accumulated amortisation and impairment. The amount

represents investments in co-production of films in China.

The investments are governed by the relevant agreements

whereby the Group is entitled to benefits generated from the

distribution of these films based on the percentage of capital

contributed in the film production projects.

ALK HRF R AR A
S

TP o 5 AR 2 BB A B 2 R
WAE S AR o 2RISR P B 5 AR
WP o BUE B AR > SR
AEEA RN B RIFEAEE I
WIS 5% 5 6 R B4 R AR 2 Fl i o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI

26. DA PAE ah A oAt 2 i % 2

W& E
2022 2021
—® kg —m——E
RMB’000 RMB’000
A R¥F i ANBR¥ET T
Equity securities, at fair value listed in BARTE S > N FEAE
Hong Kong (note (i)) s b (K EEG)) 35,096 34,112
Market value of listed securities s NE 35,096 34,112
Equity securities, at fair value unlisted outside A7 % > $&A P {H A1
Hong Kong (note (ii)) FHEEEANE
(B 5 i) 204,054 258,602
Equity securities, at fair value unlisted in AT I > HATEAE
Hong Kong (note (ii)) HEWIANIE L
(B 3E (i) - 7,963
239,150 300,677

Financial assets at FVTOCI are denominated in the following

DA PR T A HAt 2 T i 4 2 P 5

currencies: PLTF 3 & W s
2022 2021
—® T TUE —E T —AE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR® T AR®ETIC
RMB NG 204,054 258,602
HK$ oo 35,096 49,075
239,150 300,677

B3 -

| prices.

" The fair values of listed equity securities are based on closing

(i)  ETTEARTE S 2 A TR AT 2

e o

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities was reference to (i) FF LTRSS 2 N E Y 2 5 T
B Ak (R VA EE Y (AT PR A A M I AE
FEAL AT B A B AT 2 A (E > BT R
B T B R A Y AR EAL R - E
22 AT 2E TG R IR
AT 5 AR R

the valuation performed by Greater China Appraisal Limited
and Brilliant Appraisal Limited, independent professional
qualified valuers, derived from estimations of the equity value
by using market approach which makes reference to market
~ multiples of comparable companies in relevant industries and
- markets.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

27. INVENTORIES 27. 8
2022 2021
S St T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR5 AR T
Raw materials JERE R 5,979 -
Work in progress TE 2,640 -
Finished goods B 12,130 5,689
20,749 5,689
28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. B 5 M L fib JE W sk JH
2022 2021
- Sy S A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T 55 AR T
Trade and bills receivables JE W T W R M 100,095 90,051
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W R R A (837) -
99,258 90,051
Advances to staff FAT B LA 4,236 4,726
Deposits ¥4 2,520 2,782
Due from associates (note 23 and 42(a)) E W B 4 ) O
(B 5123 %42 (a ) 26,060 26,000
Due from a joint venture (note 24 and 42(a)) MENTA & >R T
(Bff 5124 5242 (a)) 30,714 -
Due from shareholders (note 32 and 42(a)) i B% 5 3K IH
(Bff 7E325242(a)) 248 217
Due from a related party (note 32 and 42(a)) JRE Wi — 4% B B 7 2k IE
(Bff 51325242 (a)) 27 27
Loans and interest receivables T A B R K A 51,990 51,260
Other receivables HAth R i K IE 224,832 243,931
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W R MR (103,328) _'-(__71,092)
237,299 ,&57‘851 Y.,
4‘. ‘»‘?’ ’;
Advances to suppliers YE A5 A e P 2 0 16,525 1%5 E42 ;;ﬁ;
Prepayments TE A R IE 1,304 I’7 38{{ i
5
: ﬁ;
354,386 = 381 182
\ ~
\?}
Rtk BT R A R A 180
TRTTURER

A
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28.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is sometimes required. The credit period was generally
3 months, starting from the date on which the goods are
delivered or services are rendered as this is the point in time
that the consideration is unconditional. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise the credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In
view of the aforesaid and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade

receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The aging analysis of the trade receivables, based on the
date on which the goods are delivered or services are
rendered as this is the point in time that the consideration is

unconditional, was as follows:

28.

B 5 B At JE W sk JH (%)

WRIEA L 2 E 5k B & 5 Ak
JHTSEN SN AEMEF KL EAHR
Wl o BRERII— B =MA > &
i B SRS 2 HOREHE - B A5 R
B 5 1y IEARF IO RS T B - BB P A
B R R o AN SR B BT A 2 o LR
R B WO IH - S s A 5 BERE R - B
SR B B 0 R o AR HEN B
o WA K o HE R Bl &I
TNk A4 I B B2 5 B R 22 AT
HE S BE B BRI AR 2 S o R
H 5 Wl AT -

JE WA B2 T B 2 SR A i (AR oy 52 £+
BRI 2 B> R BT AUE R
Ty SEAGR P B g TR B 0 E

2022 2021

—m g [t S

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T 5 YN BT

Less than 3 months Dk A 57,494 42 545
3 to 6 months 3Z6fH A 41,726 47,506
6 to 12 months 621208 H = -
1 to 2 years 12 24F 18 -
2 to 3 years 92 34E 20 -
99,258 90,051

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are all
d_eﬁominated in RMB as at 31 December 2022.

MEFECZCAEFCA=ZT—H AEH
WS 5 B IR TR L 4 S DA B
{8 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. HHIAM
2022 2021
R OH TR
Contract liabilities RMB’000 RMB’000
GRIN-Ni AR T 75 UNESL: o BT
Billings in advance of performance obligation J&#) F 1T 2 F A HR 3K
- Rendering of travel and leisure services — P AL Al 3 % A BT R 1,019 -
— Sales of goods contracts —HEEMGY 362 -
1,381 -
There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities RECE A A A A A AR T s
balances during the reporting period. 6 o
Movements in contract liabilities: AAAEED :
2022 2021
—E & TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
PN B ARBET I
Balance at 1 January = —HZ &R - 32
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of P& $2 {1 ifg 7 2 A 4] ik B5
billing in rendering of travel and leisure VAR 8 8 B dh 2 AT
service and sales of goods MR HCH BOR % B M1 1,381 -
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of 4 A HEFRIK A EH L L
recognising revenue during the year A D = (32)
Balance at 31 December Rt H=1—H &% 1,381 -
The amount of billings in advance of performance received TE U R — AR 4R Tl R I AR Y 2 OB
that is expected to be recognised as income after more than %’\Jﬁﬁi‘ﬁﬁﬁ%%’xﬁ%ﬁ%/\&%1,381,000?5
one year is RMB1,381,000 (2021: Nil). (ZF_—F:F)
, :'l‘ g
|92 fﬂ(
AL
AR T BT R R A A 182

SR AP
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30. DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH 30. T RBERBAESZED
EQUIVALENTS
2022 2021
TR AR TE AR
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN B ANRBETIT

Cash and bank balances B4 R ERAT &G B 228,934 100,935
Less: Pledged bank deposits W BRI SR AT A K (1,244) (1,002)
Cash and cash equivalents He MBS EEY 227,690 99,933
The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits and cash AR B A7 R B Bl BB A E Y
and cash equivalents are denominated in the following MR (E T DA T 5 B B s -
currencies:
2022 2021
RO R A
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN B AR T

RMB N 219,131 89,719
HK$ E 5,536 9,620
USD EIn 4,267 1,596
228,934 100,935
The cash and bank balances include RMB22,714,000 (2021: B T ARAT A5 B B 48 AN R22,714,000
Nil) which are subject to regulatory restrictions in the PRC TR > KPR
and are therefore not available for general use by the Group. BRI o PR AN BT A A A 1 — AR T
oo
The pledged bank deposit of RMB1,244,000 (2021: B S SR AT A7 3N IR H01,244,0000C (—
RMB1,002,000) to secure a bank loan granted to the Group T4 NR¥1,002,00000) A A K
g'rl'e',___as set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial o DIEUIS R T AR [ 2 SR AT B B
N _ fjsta:t@ments. % R G5 A B R M 533 o
\\ i
<Y §
%” % I
}i \\1I
4\. @,&
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31. ¥ 5 B 3L At E £F 5% H

2022 2021
TR TUE N S
RMB’000 RMB’000
N B NS BT
Trade payables JEAT & 5 W3k 70,183 53,951
Contract liabilities (note 29) o A (MEE29) 1,381 -
Accruals and other payables JRE = P e H A B A SOE 92,969 51,881
Salaries and staff welfare payables MEAT B4 K B TR A 16,953 14,843
Due to associates (note 23 and 42(a)) JEEAST B 75 W] 3KIE
(B 5123 % 42(a)) 6,019 8,055
Due to a joint venture (note 24 and 42(a)) JEAT &7 3 E
(K 5E24 1242 (a)) 31,339 -
Due to related parties (note 32 and 42(a)) JREASH IR 2 N A
(B 51325 42(a)) 15,827 5,882
234,671 134,612

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of

MRIR U H 8 E 2 A B 5 AR R

receipt of goods, is as follows: IHTANE
2022 2021
ZEIH TR AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T 78 ANRBET T
0 to 90 days 0290 H 27,476 47,103
91 to 180 days 91%180H 1,119 804
181 to 360 days 181%£360H 367 6,044
Over 1 years 14 41,221 -
70,183 53,951

32. DUE FROM/(TO) SHAREHOLDERS /RELATED 32.

PARTIES

The amounts due from/(to) shareholders/related parties
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment

terms.

HAK T SRR AT IR A 7]
SRR

H

HEWS” () BER BB A+ %

R (RF) B3 A - %

o S R e R e
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

33. BANK AND OTHER LOANS 33. SRAT S H i B3
2022 2021
TR TR T AR
RMB’000 RMB’000

185

AR T oo ANR¥T 7T

Current liabilities PRI N=
— Secured bank and other loans — G AR AT B HAh B 5K 711,799 555,252
— Unsecured bank and other loans — K HH SR AT K HAth B K 51,779 58,623
763,578 613,875
Non-current liabilities e =K
- Secured bank and other loans — A HE AR SR AT B H A K 179,950 88,000
The bank and other loans are repayable as follows (note): SRAT R HAD SR Z R IR (EE) -
2022 2021
E & TR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T e ANR¥ET T
Within one year =N 763,578 608,903
Portion of bank loans that are due for g O AR — AR A
repayment after one year but contain a i R IR MRk 2 ST
repayment on demand clause (shown under B FGHR Oy O i B A
current liabilities) T4 H) = 4,972

Portion of bank and other loans that are due #& g 7E —4E & {H A48 1

for repayment more than one year, but not AT 2 SR AT T Fo At A 3R

exceeding two years i 13,000 -
Portion of bank and other loans that are due % 3 7& 7 4 1% {5 4 #E 3#

for repayment more than two year, but not AR Z BRAT M HAth B K

exceeding five years s 74,450 -
Portion of bank and other loans that are due % # ¥ 7 L 1% 2 $RA1T I
for repayment more than five years oA B AR 92,500 88,000
943,528 701,875
Np'.te: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates BRFak o B EKCRE T MR I R T A 2
/ set out in the respective loan agreements. TRT K H WIS -
f

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other
loans are denominated in RMB except for an amount of
RMBb5,199,000 (2021: RMB4,972,000) which is denominated
in USD.

The Group’s bank and other loans of RMB716,978,000
(2021: RMB500,045,000) are arranged at fixed interest
rates ranging from Nil to 6% (2021: Nil to 12%) per annum
and expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group’s bank and other loans of RMB226,550,000 (2021:
RMB201,830,000) are arranged at floating interest rates
ranging from 3.55% to 6.18% per annum, thus exposing the

Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, secured bank and other
loans were secured by (i) the pledge of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and investment properties;
(ii) the corporate guarantee given by the Company and a
non-controlling interest of a subsidiary; (iii) pledged bank

deposits; and (iv) certain equity interests of an associate.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, unsecured other loans were

interest free and repayable on demand.

HAK T SRR AT IR A 7]
SRR

33.

AT B H At B 5k (4

B DA 3B eRHE 2 #OE AN R 5,199,0000T
(ZF=—4 ANR¥4,972,00000) 4 >
AR 2 GRAT B oA B K 2 WRTH (B LA
R MEFHE -

ENECY I A = N A
716,978,000 (& = —4F : AR ¥
500,045,0007C) N FE E6H (—F
T AR B FE1QM) [ A2 AR R K G
B BUME A AR R 32 T E R R
B o A4 [ 22 B AT B LAt B AN R
2926,550,0007C (=&~ — 4 AR
201,830,0007C) #%3.55J8 6.18JH Z %
BAE R R EHE, > PR il A 4 [ R A7 B 4
it i A 2R B

R R FE D F T A
=0 AR ERAT B At £ 3K A
NEIEER - OAREBZYE - KE K
A A ) A A K
— [HI B J 2 W 2 e J A g 4% s 1 s 3
WEOR 5 Qi) ORI ERAT 23K 5 B (iv) ik —
I S | 2 25 T IRHE -

TR THER E T —E LA
= —H - MG AL S 5 S I E
Fi R A R -
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34. LEASE LIABILITIES 34. MEAHE

The Group leases various offices and plant. Rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants, but leased assets may be used as

security for borrowing purposes.

The present value of future lease payments of the Group’s

leases are analysed as:

AEEME 2 AN = KR - HES
3 A 8] 2 SRR < AL M AR il 2
WERER > AL A MR [ AR B A o A
5 T SIS A B2 > MEAH B
YRR R 2 AR AT e

% S T L 22 o A LB 3 2 B (8
7

2022 2021
e Jasgey - - S o
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T oo ANR¥T 7T

Current WE
Non-current JE i B

Movement of the Group’s leases liabilities is analysed as

3,294 1,960
73,428 64,558
76,722 66,518

AL R AR B PHWT

follows:
2022 2021
Y- SRR - S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AT oo
As at 1 January w—H—H 66,518 64,954
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39(a)) WA Bt — ] o6 Jo8 2 )
(M$5E39(a)) 7,423 -
Interest expenses FEBE 2 4,048 3,898
Lease payments N (1,267) (2,334)
As at 31 December wWt+—_H=+—H 76,722 66,518
.{. Y |
m\\
Y ik
h
4&_ ;{k &
¥ R
a7
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

34. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 34. & A F ()

AEEAE (NFENHEE) 2 KA

The future lease payments of the Group’s leases (excluding

short-term leases) were scheduled to repay as follows:

BN R EREHE RN T

Minimum
lease
payments Interest Present value
i K
il R B B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TIT  AR¥WTIT ARW¥WTE
As at 31 December 2022 AR BT A=Z+—H
Not later than one year B — 4 8,505 (5,211) 3,294
Later than one year but not — — A& {H AN it T 4F
later than five years 27,672 (14,673) 12,999
Later than five years HAFEE 77,633 (17,204) 60,429
113,810 (37,088) 76,722
As at 31 December 2021 W _oE _—F+_H=+—H
Not later than one year I — 5,691 (8,731) 1,960
Later than one year but not  — 4% (A AN it #4F
later than five years 22,422 (13,760) 8,662
Later than five years A% 76,110 (20,214) 55,896
104,223 (37,705) 66,518

HAK T SRR AT IR A 7]
SRR
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35. DEFERRED TAX

35. #E%E i JH

The followings are the deferred tax (assets) and liabilities DUR B A SR [ 2 W s i IR IE Bl I ()
recognised by the Group. KEfE -
Allowance for Fair value
doubtful trade Accelerated  adjustment on Financial
and other Allowance tax  acquisition of assetsat  Unused tax
receivables for inventories  depreciation  a subsidiary FVTOCI losses Total
o Rt RO~ DA F A
Wl 2 g WEAMZ HAERE WABNZ
ARG GREH O REWE  ATENE  JHERE  HHEER it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARHT  ARMTT  ARETT  ARETxX  ARETR  ARETR  AR%TR
At1 January 2021 RZZ-—-F-H-H (5,942) (392) 11,345 - 825 - 5,836
Acquisition of a subsidiary 1iCRE— (¥ [t B 2 7l (H3E39(b))
(note 39(b)) (117) - 863 - - - 746
Credit to profit or loss for  # AZKAE i A48 (Hf3E12)
the year (note 12) - - (1,556) - - - (1,556)
Charge to other FERLES Rl
comprehensive income - - - - 4,641 - 4,641
At31 December 2021 and 8 ~F -—F+_A=+—HR
1 January 2022 “ECC (6,059) (392) 10,652 - 5,466 - 9,667
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y&~ A 1l (f3E39(a))
(note 39(a)) - - 6,587 - - 6,587
Credit to profit or loss for  7F A4 [ I 5UE 2 (fi3E12)
the year (note 12) (1,283) - (730) (980) - (1,723) (4,716)
Charge to other RS Rl
comprehensive income - - - 12,011 - 12,011
At 31 December 2022 3 (7,342) (392) 9,922 5,607 17477 (1,723) 23,549
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances ARG BB IR DL R 2 R SE B I &5 R (K
(after offset) for consolidated statement of financial position AR AT T
purpose:
2022 2021
G- B AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Tou ANRMETIT
&Q,%\
X ‘Deferred tax liabilities IR S L U £ £ 32,788 15,853
\ Deferred tax assets I SIE ol T (9,239) (6,186)
h ‘ ‘E 23,549 9,667
i e
e : 4
Vnt
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DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB107,632,000 (2021: RMB42,109,000) available
for offseting against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
total RMB72,050,000 (2021: RMB41,466,000) that will expire
within 2027 (2021: 2026). Other tax losses may be carried

forward indefinitely.

35.

9% 2 B IH (4])

A R - A £R B i R B ) 2 B
i 15 2 N R #107,632,00000 (% ——
A N R 42,109,00000) 0 A AR K
B A A U A o | A R e TE R A T
R A > ST A AT ] A0 A o T o
FEARTER BB R A B RAEFE AR
#72,050,00000 (=& = — 4+ AR
41,466,00070) » H§in —F _LF (=
e S 4’23:/\413 Z N ENHT - H
At 38 T e 48 v A1 R 5 o

SHARE CAPITAL 36. A
2022 2021
o Ssl gk
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
i3 & i3 2
Promoters Promoters Promoters Promoters
Shares  H shares Total shares  H shares Total shares  H shares Total shares  H shares Total
BRARD it it RRARR i i BRARD Hit i BRARR ik it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETL ARBTTE ARETT ARMTT ARETT ARWTT ARETT ARWTRZ AREFR ARETT ARETFL ARKTR

Registered, issued and £~ B8 RAE -

151,446

151,446

fully paid:
Shares of RMBO.10 B E AR H0.107C

(2021: RMB0.10) [Jo% e

each NEH0.107) Z Kby
At1 January B=-A—-A 700,000 814464 1,514,464 70,000 81,446
Issue of shares (note) 7 f (it - - - - -
At 31 December MZR=+-8 700,000 814,464 1,514,464 70,000 81,446

Note:

On 30 March 2021,
135,744,000 new H Shares to independent third parties at a placing
price of HK$0.50 (equivalent to approximately RMB0.42) per
placing share and raised RMB56,865,000 after deducting all direct

costs including commission.

the Company completed placing of its

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and

equity balance.

ALK SBRF R A AT A W]

TR

00,000 678,720 1378720 70,000 67872 187872

- 15 1574 - 13574 13,574

00000 814464 114464 70,000 81446 151446
B 5

ATEC—EZAEAH > AT SE R

ST =05 T 5 135,744,000 /80 H I - i 85 18
LR BT S 030509 00 (B i #9 A R
0.4270) > FE 0 ER B A B 8 A (6 15 01 4)
% % % A R 56,865,0007C © | &

A 2 A S TR A S R 1
K %»u&%ﬁﬁkﬁﬁ&%ﬁ%Mﬁh
2 A I <
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36. SHARE CAPITAL 36.

Note: (continued)

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,

redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt
is calculated as total debts less cash and cash equivalents. Total
equity comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital, share

premium, NClIs, retained profits and other reserves).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s strategy,
which was unchanged from the year ended 31 December 2020, was
to maintain the debt-to-equity ratio at the lower end of the range 0.1

to 0.4, in order to secure access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as below:

JBEA ()
WEaE ()

A AR [ 2 Ja By LU 0 AR A o AR
LG A 255 0 7 0 M AR A RS IR 0 A A B
B AR T LI o B
AR > AR S I R R B S e
FTHRE ~ 1o B B ~ SR BT 0K I A
RS o R 8 DL IR TS -

A G DR M i R R EL R o A
Ll 25 e J 055 4 L o A MR B O o RS TR A
I DA B A8 A B e B e S RO -
HEME SR 65 BT A RE AR R (RBEAS ~ RO ik
B TR PR BORE S B A A B AR A -

RHE_F - _F+_A=+—HILF
B OREEBEEHEE T FFE T A
S HIREEZ RN > U MR A SRS
L 20,1220, 450 [3 14 2 BAK KT > e DA
A B AR R o

BRHE AR LR R

2022 2021
—® U S
RMB’000 RMB’000

ANR¥Tou ANRHET T

Bank and other loans SRAT Ko HAth B2 3K
Lease liabilities HEAE
Total debts fE 8 4058

Equity attributable to the Company’s owners A< & A A MEAS RE 25

Total debt to equity ratio A fEHE 4 %

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for

the Company to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
‘has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The

Company receives a report from the share registrars monthly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
" and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25%
limit throughout the year. As at 31 December 2022, 54%

(2021: 54%) of the total promoters and H shares were in
_ public hands.

943,528 701,875
76,722 66,518
1,020,250 768,393
3,557,568 3,174,947
29% 24%

AN T 2 HEFE S W3S B BT 2 T
ST ME— BT A1 AR e 0 SR A
FE AR A DI BAR 2.25% ° A0
AR ARG R TR R R B A R
ON FRFR I R T B R 2R
WA FRAATIRERN—HFG25%Z
FRRELE - A —F AT A= —
H o &as i AR KAk 254% (=
T4 54%) MARIFE -
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND A w2 B R 0 e I fik 4 5 )

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) AAEZMERIE
2022 2021
S S TR AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWEFE  ARMETL
Non-current assets Ik i B B A
Property, plant and equipment L E BN Y& ] 5,318 5,717
Investments in subsidiaries, net of A s F ) 2 B E
accumulated impairment losses FIER 2w e 1E 295,539 211,053
Investments in film productions iS22 (aki'e - 3,500
Financial assets at FVTOCI DL SPE 71 A A 4 T
W fik < W 5 203,125 255,544
Investments in associates iR /AP < 653,055 457,947
Investments in joint ventures BEEeEIRE 127,616 -
Deposit for potential investments VEAE & B i 4 = 105,000
1,284,653 1,038,761
Current assets i B R
Due from shareholders JRE R 1B R R I 247 216
Due from subsidiaries JRRE W o 7 ?’x 412,512 387,186
Due from a related company JRE Wir — 5% BRI g 2 ) RO 27 27
Prepayments, deposits and FEA FH 3’%%&
other receivables At JE WS R T 138,537 176,516
Cash and cash equivalents He RRELEEY 128,585 17,238
679,908 581,183
Current liabilities LE) AT
Trade and other payables 5 5 Be oA BE A 3ROH 81,825 21,125
Bank and other loans ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂgﬁ 660,000 413,329
Due to related parties JEASHBH N £ 3Kk 3,672 3,672
Due to subsidiaries JREAST B 2 =D 1;-5 167,508 166,032
913,005 604,158
Non-current liabilities I B &
Deferred tax liabilities % AT ol JEL B R 25,782 12,455
NET ASSETS B EFHE 1,025,774 1,003,331
Share capital Jie A 151,446 151,446
Reserves (note b) fati Al (B aEDb) 874,328 851 885
EQUITY i 25 1,025,774 Ej’»:sgl / i
. . L
Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2023 MR_FE_=H£=ZH=+ EH?E $ g&

and is signed on its behalf by:

e K i UTAjﬂtﬁ'&g

NI JINLEI WANG XINGYE
& 4% ENTE S
Director Director \\ >
e e ‘ﬁﬁ»
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37. AN H 2 WSRO B il i 52 B
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (%)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reserve movements of the Company (b) A% W] 2 fik i 5 B

Financial
assets at
Capital Reserve FVTOCI Retained Other

reserve funds reserve profits reserve Total

U

R A

el 2

Wi 2 B
GARME e BEME  BRERN LLHE Ll
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TE ARWTE AR¥TT ARWTT ARBTL AR

At1 January 2021 RZFZ—H—A—H 562519 86,716 (15,140) 140,679 - 774,774
Issue of shares (note 36) 17 (H3E36) 43,21 - - - - 43,291
Total comprehensive income R AT A
for the year - - 41,730 (7,910) - 33,820
At 31 December 2021 and REFZ—%
1 January 2022 FZAZEt—RR
“E - —H—H 605,810 86,716 26,590 132,769 = 851,885
Total comprehensive income R AT A
for the year - - 50,754 (4,476) - 46,278
Repurchase right arrangement it — i i 22 A I 19
upon acquisition of a subsidiary [ f % b
(note 39((a)) (H#E39(a)) = = = = (23,835) (23,835)
At 31 December 2022 REFZTAE
FZHAZ+—H 605,810 86,716 77,344 128,293 (23,835) 874,328

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

38. RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income

and consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

Ak

g

&

(i)  Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Company and the

Group represents the aggregate of:

- share premium totalled RMB602,729,000

arising from issue of new shares;

- the waiver of an amount of RMBI1,654,000
recorded as part of issuance expenses for
the listing of the Company’s H shares on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange in July 2000
(the “Listing”) payable to an unrelated party
who had provided services to the Company
during the Listing pursuant to prevailing
accounting principles and regulations in the
PRC; and

- the net gain of RMB1,427,000 resulting
from debt restructuring of Jade Bird
Fire, a former subsidiary of the Company,
transferred in accordance with prevailing
accounting principles and regulations in the
PRC.

W RERT R AT A W]

A

38. fkif

(a)

(b)

At
4 T 2 i e T T
B B A 2 T B A R
5B % 251 -

fi A kB I D 08

(@) EARGH
AR ) T AR B R (it R
TIIEIHZ A

- BITHREASEAR
#602,729,0007C 2 M
ARk~

- WRBHEBITZ G
Q) AR > TR
RIHMB A BT EE+L
A TE ¥ 28 T GEM k- 1
(MD)W sk AR 2
AR RS 2 I B
HE A A B HE1,654,000
TLEBEEAT S 5 &K

- REETEBRATZ g
FU) B ik R 2 B A ]
HIT B > W B R T B AR
HE M EEZ Tl A
E#1,427,0000C -

5 £
&
i l Gé-
(o2 i gk
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38. RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Reserve funds

Reserve funds comprise statutory surplus reserve
and discretionary surplus reserve. In accordance
with the laws and regulations in the PRC and
articles of association of the Company and its
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC (collectively
referred to the “PRC entities”), the PRC entities
are required to appropriate 10% of their profit
after tax, after offsetting any prior years’ losses, to
the statutory surplus reserve. When the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve reaches 50% of the
PRC entities’ registered share capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus
reserve can be used to offset prior years’ losses, if
any, and may be converted into share capital by
issuing new shares to shareholders in proportion
to their existing shareholding or by increasing
the par value of the shares currently held by
them, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory surplus reserve after such issue is not
less than 25% of share capital. The PRC entities
may transfer an amount from their profit after
tax to the discretionary surplus reserve approved
by the shareholders. The discretionary surplus
reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’
losses of the PRC entities and to distribute to
shareholders in the form of bonus issue.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in

note 4(f) to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve

The financial assets at FVTOCI comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of
financial assets at FVTOCI held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy in note 4(n) to the

consolidated financial statements.

38. fifl fhi (%)

(b)

Bl R % P e ()
(i) RS

ol 2 4 L 4G 1 LR A B
BRI ERBAEE - IR
Hp R 3 A B R R DA AR A ]
LA A B 5 A S 2 B
] (RUH e RS T AR A )
Z ARk TR AN P
B8 ZE 4 BRI A (R S5 1T
fl DLAE AR 1R AR) 5 $REL
10%VE ¥ 5C B SR R s - 3%3%
TE R SR A B PR R R R
it A% AR50 % IR > AT o] 3 — 2
PEHUE JE B o T B AR
5 AT RS I 81 DA AR AE s 1R
(&) > 7N A 3 08 e B R
R 5 JBE U A9 1) e B A7 5 T
3T 408 $48 0 I R R A
13 22 THT (L R A > M
B AT 1R 10 0 B R St M B A
G DT IEA Z225% » H11H]
BN A B SEABA
IV A A5 A58 R R o 2 A R
BAREA o AT 2 BB Tt 5 vl
FHVEHE S P B0 E B 2 8 A
BE e 48 > Sl DAAT B =X i it
IR %

(iii) FE 5L 1

(iv)

BEE 5. f5f A 50 915 WEE 50, 163 A1 36055
TV 5 3% 7 A B BT AT BEE B8 2%
oo MR AR A M R
Bt a4 (£) BT s & B B B -

LAZNFE 7 A B 2 [ 7
Z BT B Tl

PAZS P A H A 2 T 4
Z B Aol LA R
MARFEA Z A EFFAH
b 2 T W A 2 B 5 E AT
(ER B A DL RORSE
B S5 R B 4 (n) BT
ZEHEHBORE B -
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38. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(v)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

Other reserve

The other reserve of the Group represents the
aggregate of:

- The equity-settled share-based payments of
RMB10,969,000 recognised upon transfer
of equity interests in a subsidiary of the
Company from certain of its original
shareholders to a director and certain
employees of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

- The difference of RMB1,583,000 arose from
the decrease in NCIs of RMB4,617,000
(being the proportionate share of the
carrying amount of the net assets of
PWC Winery, LLC) and RMB3,034,000
(equivalent to approximately USD475,000),
which arose on the acquisition of additional
25% equity interests in PWC Winery, LLC
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

- The reserve includes RMB3,736,000 (2021:
RMB3,960,000) is the safety production
fund, which is for future enhancement of
safety environment and improvement of

facilities.

- The reserve includes RMB23,835,000 (2021:

Nil) arising from the repurchase right
arrangement entered with the NCIs of
Guangdong Lumen Pioneer Opto Co., Ltd.
at acquisition date during the year ended 31
December 2022 (note 39(a)).

ALK HRF R AR A

g

&

A

38. fili fli (#H)
(b) B TR R T 38 (48)
(v) HAbRE

A A 0 H At ik 15 T 51 2 4
e

- DR HZ KM
By L RE AT RN R
10,969,0007C » 7 #%
e S S |
= —HIEFERARN
) R e A A e
T I B SR e % A AR
— B R AT TR BN
TERR o

- AR ¥1,583,00000 2
R TR IE PR
RE 25 A I 4,617,000
Jt (BIPWC Winery,
LLCH & ERH(H 2
LU 173 88 W N R
$,034,0007C (FH & i
#1475,0003 J0) Z 2
B s %=
£+ "A=+—H01Ik
AR — 5 U IEPWC
Winery, LLC 25%#HE #i
WpE A o

- il e
4 N R %3,736,0000C
(ZF =4 AR
3,960,0007C) > HER
AR AR 12 2 A PR M %
R

-  EHHmaERRE_%
ZFEtT I E+—
H 1k 4F 7 B R o o 8
i 866 A BRA A
I % 18 4 25 BT SE RO 0
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38. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(©)

Profit appropriations

Under the PRC Company Law and the PRC entities’
articles of association, the net profit after tax as
reported in the PRC statutory financial statements,
prepared in accordance with PRC accounting
principles and regulations, can only be distributed
as dividends after allowance has been made for the
following:

(1)

Make-up of prior years’ cumulative losses, if any.

(ii) Allocations to the reserve funds as stated in (b)

(i1) above.

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Acquisition of a subsidiary

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company acquired a 80% equity interest in Guangdong
Lumen Pioneer Opto Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong Lumen”)
at a cash consideration of RMB84,486,160 from an
independent third party of the Company. Guangdong
Lumen became a direct non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company after satisfying the terms and conditions
of the related sales and purchase agreement. This
acquisition constituted a business combination under
HKFRS 3. Guangdong Lumen is principally engaged
in the development, manufacture and sale of high-end
ceramic high-power LED devices and modules, and
the research and development and manufacturing of

special light sources.

38. il (#)

()

39.

()

i A 43 B

MR B m i R B 2 A
AR REAR L > 5% B Pt E
Te H 491 i 4 2 o R 3 S B R
Jir B Rk BR BLAR AR A > A AT AE N
B 25 AT i e AR AT 2 RS 2R

5 A TE AR 2 2 R A 1R
() -

(1)

8 1E L 3C(b) (i) T 3 fak 5 3
ﬁo

(ii)

& Bl 4 R B Rk

W B — [ B B 2 W)

WE_F_F+_A=+—H
k4B AR ] ) AR A8 S
= A B R S 8RO TR A PR
o A ([ AU 86 1) 80% i B HiE
B4 AE 25 N R 84,486,1600C ©
2 JRCAR B S B e 1 AR K B R A
1% > R AU 86 A AR A AR H B
I A B A ] o AR T
o e I EE 3SR > BL U IERE AL T
EHAMH BRERMGFEERER
Uity P 75 R ) RLED A 14 B AR 40 11
B E - AR ERNEN B > DL FRBROR
TR B T 25 R0 AE E o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(a) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued) (a)

39. Fif Bl i B LW EE ()

W i — 1] B I 2 ] ()

TSSO 8 2 T
bl H 7 S B A PE AT

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities

of Guangdong Lumen acquired as at the date of

acquisition are as follows:

RMB’000
AR T T
Net assets acquired: JoIr S i

Property, plant and equipment (note 18) Wy - W Bt (KFRE18) 37,865
Other intangible assets (note 21) Hoph # 0 & i (ffsE21) 14,943
Inventories T8 19,682
Trade and other receivables B 5y T FoAth JRE i 1 IH 16,413
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KB &5 EY) 1,300
Trade and other payables B 5y B H At A 3ROH (20,095)
Lease liabilities 5 A (7,423)
Deferred tax liabilities IR S B IH A i (6,587)
56,098
NCIs I e Ji HE 45 (11,220)
Goodwill [k S 39,608
Total consideration — satisfied by cash AACAE — DATE 4 AT 84,486

Net cash outflows arising on acquisition: WA P A 2 B TR AR
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BB & K% EY 1,300
Cash consideration paid AT B ARUE (84,486)
(83,186)
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

199

()

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

The goodwill of RMB39,608,000, which is not
deductible for tax purposes, comprises the value of
the acquired management team and the future market

development of LED business.

The NCIs of RMB11,220,000 is measured at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s fair value of
Guangdong Lumen net identifiable liabilities as at

acquisition date.

The fair value of trade receivables of Guangdong
Lumen as at acquisition date amounted to
RMB16,413,000.

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB378,000
for this acquisition. These transaction costs have been
expensed off and are included in the administrative

expenses in profit or loss.

During the period from the acquisition date to 31
December 2022, Guangdong Lumen contributed
RMB32,712,000 to the Group’s revenue and net loss of
RMB12,266,000 to the Group’s profit or loss.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2022, the
consolidated revenue and net loss of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022 would have been
RMB40,916,000 and RMB14,824,000 respectively. The
proforma financial information was for illustrative
purpose only and did not necessarily reflect the
Group’s revenue and operating results if the
acquisition had been completed 1 January 2021 and
could not serve as a basis for the forecast of future

operation result.

39.

A

()

B 4 Wt 1 % B RE (A9)

W Nk — I i 2> 1 (A

A R #39,608,0007C (A ]
OBL) B B i A I K A
{H SLEDSERS ) R AT 5 88 2 -

IF e R RE 45 75 N R 911,220,000
JC > F B T A Wi A R A
JEE R 88 Tk A AR (E AT
[ER =

JBE SR g6 R W H 3 L 5
WA A N R 16,413,000
fl: °

AR T T S 0N B AR I 38 B AR
£y N H378,00000 © 7% % 38 5 i
PRI > 06 5 AR & AT
BB S o

Bl E 2 - F+ A
= EIH R RO 8 2 AR
9 A i A B RR A B 82,712,0000T
BB A AL R 5 B RO R AR
#12,266,0007C °

i e M — & — A H — A
o ARSI E S AR
T+t A=t —-HIEFEZHES
W A B R 1RO o A A N R R
40,916,00070 % A K H514,824,000
T o M B E R 2
BN E R R &
o AFE A HE RSN A
S R Ui B B KR R AR
VR TE B R AR KR8 2 i 2 R E o
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

()

(b)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

Apart from the aforesaid sales and purchase agreement,
the Group also entered into a repurchase agreement
with the NCIs of Guangdong Lumen (the “Repurchase
Agreement”) which may require the Group to
repurchase the remaining 20% equity interests in
Guangdong Lumen (“Repurchase Right”) at an
agreed option price as stipulated in the Repurchase
Agreement. Pursuant to the Repurchase Agreement,
the last date for the exercise of the Repurchase
Right shall be 31 October 2027. As at the acquisition
date, the Group did not have the present ownership
interests in the 20% equity interests held by the NCIs
of Guangdong Lumen. Accordingly, the financial
liabilities of the Repurchase Right of RMB23,835,000
is recognised at the acquisition date and the
corresponding amount is recognised under other
reserve in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. As at 31 December 2022, the aforesaid financial
liabilities are accounted for RMB24,900,000 and a loss
on Repurchase Right arrangement of RMB1,065,000

was charged to profit or loss.

Further details on this are disclosed in the Company’s

announcement dated 10 March 2022.

Acquisition of a subsidiary

In June 2021, the Group acquired a 2% equity interest
in Chuanqi (Hunan) Cultural Tourism Company
Limited (“Chuanqi Cultural Tourism”), a then associate
of the Group, at a consideration of RMBI1,400,001,
which comprised of cash consideration of RMBI1
and capital contribution of RMB1,400,000, from an
independent third party of the Group. Upon the
completion of the acquisition, the Group owned a total
of 51% indirect interest in Chuanqi Cultural Tourism;
and Chuangqi Cultural ceased to be an associate of the
Company and became a subsidiary of the Company.
Chuanqi Cultural Tourism was participated in tourism

development projects in Hunan Province.
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(b)

o B & R R W RE (A7)
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. A Bl U R R RE ()
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued) (b) Wl — [ B B 2 W) (A
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities A W H B i SO AL iR
of Chuangqi Cultural Tourism acquired as at the date of Z Ak Al A B AR A SF(E
acquisition are as follows: I
RMB’000
ANRMTIC
Net assets acquired: it Wit B o
Property, plant and equipment Yo ~ W B st 245,432
Deposit for purchase of property, WEE W26 - W RSt 2t
plant and equipment 9,722
Trade and other receivables 5 5 B Fo At iR I 15,911
Cash and cash equivalents B R a5 EY 694
Trade and other payables 5 5y B F A FE A 3ROH (54,838)
Bank and other loans SRAT B H At B 3K (143,830)
Deferred tax liabilities 0 S A TH A (746)
72,345
NCIs I 12 JBCHE i (35,449)
Fair value of interests in Chuanqi Cultural Tourism {2 &F 3C Ak g 7 B R i 73 5 Wi i
at completion date of the step acquisition 7 H ) P (34,353)
Gain on bargain purchase EiE A Al € (1,143)
Total consideration — satisfied by deferred AU — DUR R A S A
consideration 1,400
Net cash outflows arising on acquisition: R e B A 2 B A A VR A
Cash consideration received Bl e E 694
Cash consideration paid 2 AT BB AUE -
694

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 5 e o Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

During the period from the acquisition date to 31
December 2021, Chuangqi Cultural Tourism contributed
RMB1,789,000 to the Group’s revenue and net profit of
RMB558,000 to the Group’s profit or loss.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2021, the
consolidated revenue and net loss of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 would have been
RMB1,973,000 and RMB862,000 respectively. The
proforma financial information was for illustrative
purpose only and did not necessarily reflect the
Group’s revenue and operating results if the
acquisition had been completed 1 January 2021 and
could not serve as a basis for the forecast of future

operation result.

ALK HRF R AR A
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. HOBlEREEXWEE ()
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) RLEWEB)EA Z A KEIR
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s DE i1 Fu e SUREE S ety
liabilities arising from financing activities, including EEZAMZEY  GfEBE X
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising HBREEH - WMEFHEAZA
from financing activities are those for which cash flows & 5 Hol B 4 B B el Rk
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the BHenesdn AL G520
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash R R A B 2 B A U
flows from financing activities. & e
Due to
Bank and Due to a related Lease
other loans shareholder parties liabilities
BT R JE A — 4 W I Wik
H A% i 5 At A RE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWBFT  AR¥FE AT ANRWT T
At 1 January 2021 Qe 2
+-H=1+—H 413,787 - 6,907 64,954
Interest expense AR 31,135 - - 3,898
Non-cash movements FH 48T 142,987 - - -
Cash flows BEnE 114,016 - (1,025) (2,334)
At 31 December 2021 and N oF 4
1 January 2022 FZAZF AR
—“EZ-F—H—H 701,875 - 5,882 66,518
Interest expense BB 34,544 - - 4,048
Non-cash movements FBEEE - - = 7,423
Cash flows Hahe 207,109 - 9,945 (1,267)
£ At 31 December 2022 [ 2
+ZHA=+—H 943,528 - 15,827 76,722
s V)
y
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41.

2022 2021
Y- Sy - S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ Tt ANBR#T 0
Contracted but not provided for: EAEOL I 7
Property, plant and equipment Y B KA 58,042 61,546
Committed capital contribution to ] W N F ) s A 2
associates and joint ventures IR EE 115,425 89,582
4
e R G B ERFE RSB A IR A 204

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group issued guarantees to
several banks in respect of banking facilities granted to two
(2021: two) associates and a former associate, which was

disposed of during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Group under the guarantee. The maximum liability of
the Group at the end of the reporting period under the
guarantee issued is the facility granted by bank amounted
RMB300,000,000 (2021: RMB300,000,000). At the end of
reporting period, facility drawn down by the associates
amounted RMB200,000,000 (2021: RMB200,000,000). The
Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of the financial guarantee as its fair value was considered

insignificant.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

40. MBER

41.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BEANLRY
(a) In addition to those related party balances disclosed (a) B&EOTMBEREEMB o EZ
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, WSRO\ A AR A o AS 4R R
the Group had the following following balances with AEFEGEA BDL T BN 2 &%
related parties: i

2022 2021

- Sy 3 R

RMB’000 RMB’000

PN B AR T T

Due from associates JRE VA B A W RIE 26,060 26,000
Due from a joint venture JE i &7 s 2E 3K E 30,714 -
Due from shareholders R AT B R T 248 217

Due from a related company controlled it — 5 iy b 5t B2 42 4l

by Peking University Z B N W KR 27 27
Due to associates JRE AR Bt 28 2 ) R IA 6,019 8,055
Due to a joint veture JEAT A8 b 2 30E 31,339 -

Due to related companies controlled by A i b 5 £ #E i 2
Peking University R PN Q| 5,882 5,882

Due to a related company controlled JREAST ol — [T B Jag 2> W1 JF

by a non-controlling interest of P2 JBOHE i 725 1) 2 B
a subsidiary NEIE- e 9,945 445
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) ALEHEEFHAEME :
Group:
2022 2021
RO TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW T ANRMET T
Short term employee benefits 12301 B AR A 4,328 4,001
Post-employment benefits Al A R 358 305
4,686 4,306
i . . .
~ Further details of directors’ and supervisors’ g B 2 — R
emoluments are included in note 15 to the TGRS IR R M 3R 15
- 4 >y . ; B
: =~ consolidated financial statements.
.
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43.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2022 are as follows:

Place of incorporation/

A B B 5 e o Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

43. FEME AW

MEER DA =t H o AAH
WA R

registration and
operation and Percentage of
Name kind of legal entity Paid up capital ownership interest Principal activities
AL/
ok R 2
4 BREREL SUERA BHEREEAL  RERH
Direct ~ Indirect
Ef ks
Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech (Cayman) ~ Cayman Islands/the PRC, 100,000 ordinary shares 100% - - Investment holding
Development Company Limited limited liability company ~ of USDI each
HREBRFHH (HE) WEREE /- 100,000 1 i pE el
BREARAA A2 A 15 7eZ B
Chuangi Tourism Investment (Hunan) Hunan, the PRC, limited RMB30,000,000 60% - - Exploration and development of travel
Co., Ltd. (“Chuangi Tourism (Hunan)”) liability company and leisure business
e i B (W1R) AR A B ARAF ARHES0,0000007 — Tl B ST 2 B 8t B
([ 37 ki (W) J)
Beijing Hengsheng Investment Management ~ Beijing, the PRC, limited ~ RMB2,000,000 55% - - Provision of investment management
Company Limited liability company and advisory services
AU B R A R A PRI HRAR AR2,000,0007 — VR T
Ningbo Jade Bird Venture Capital Investment Co., Ningbo, the PRC, limited  RMBG60,000,000 - 0% - Investment holding
Ltd. liability company
BUE BARSLRARL A R ARAR ARH60,000,0007 —RELEm
PWC Winery, LLC The State of Virginia, the ~ Members’ contributed capital - 0% - Production and sales of wine and
United States, limited of USD4,200,000 related products
liability company
PWC Winery, LLC FRBFRDH TR %4,200,000% T — WA A B P R
AR
Xiamen Hanyu Bulk Supply Chain Management ~ Xiamen, the PRC, limited  RMB50,000,000 - 100% - Sales and purchases of metal products
Co., Ltd liability company
EPR T AR I A R A PR ARAF ARES50,0000007 —HE RS
Guangdong Lumen Pioneer Guangdong, the PRC, RMB50,000,000 80% - -development, manufacture and sale
Opto Co., Ltd. limited liability company of high-end ceramic high-power
LED devices and modules, and
the research and development
and manufacturing of special light
sources :
AR EERAR MR > A RAT AR H30,000,0007C — A E KD RLED A MR A Y B 6

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which

principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

Group.

ALK HRF R AR A

SR

EERE mﬁsma@ﬁ% :
MEE - i }
. }._!‘
RS G ARE Y B EERs L
R BN A R RN .

.‘.’

% f"!{ -
i Al
% I?.Q? &
N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B BV 5 e o it

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 43. FEMB A w (4)
The following tables show information on the subsidiaries RS A F B A R IR R A
that have NCIs material to the Group. The summarised Z W ] o WS ORI B 45 20 ] [R]K
financial information represents amounts before TE 3 BRI AY 4 5 -
inter-company eliminations.
Name Chuanqi Tourism (Hunan)
%4 {847 il 2 (399 19 )
2022 2021
—B R e Saic
% of ownership interests/voting JEPE B HE 45 BT R 2 B RE
rights held by NCIs Wt B A I 40%/40% 40%/40%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRWTF 55 YN T
At 31 December mr+_H=+—H
Non-current assets I B A 621,864 634,550
Current assets i B B 186,667 183,080
Current liabilities B A R (191,933) (284,717)
Non-current liabilities I B A (255,022) (161,770)
Net assets R 361,576 371,143
Accumulated NCIs Bt IR I hE A 144,630 148,457
Year ended 31 December: BET_H=1T—HIL4)E :
Revenue A 85,608 110,753
(Loss) /Profit for the year AR (B18) W F (9,193) 1,658
Total comprehensive income TR %5 AR (9,193) 1,658
(Loss) /Profit allocated to NCIs SYECT IR AR 2 (B 1R
it 1) (3,677) 663
Dividends paid to NCIs T A JF Fe e i 2 e - -
Net cash generated from A B &S E) 2 B4 TR
_Operating activities 53,888 26,476
< Net cash used in investing activities A G TR By 2 B4 VR A (27,668) (17,266)
N\ P! ‘.:-':!
h:‘ \.,Net cash used in financing activities JH A Tl & TS B 2 B 4 R A (23,705) (41,667)
a '
[
\ ‘a‘_.;l ¥ '-Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and 4 MBS S EY
(D) & 2,515 (82,457)

4\ ﬁ:& \\* cash equivalents

~ I _:Q
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43.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The following tables show information on the subsidiaries

that have NCIs material to the Group. The summarised

financial information represents amounts before

inter-company eliminations.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 5 e o Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE _F " HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

43. FEME A ()
AR A G A R T I i
Z W 2~ 7 o BABS BRI A 2 W I K
THSH B AT A S -

Name Guangdong Lumen
%1% JB% o 86
2022 2021
% of ownership interests/voting IE 125 WL HE 25 I 5 2 A HE Nil/Nil
rights held by NCIs Mt R E I 20%/20% e,/ f
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ Tt ANR¥F o0
At 31 December wHt+_H=+—H
Non-current assets B EE 48,301 -
Current assets MEEE 37,104 -
Current liabilities i B A % (32,923) -
Non-current liabilities R E B E (10,590) -
Net assets & E 41,892 -
Accumulated NCIs BLETIE HE IR RE 45 8,378 -
Year ended 31 December: BET_H=1—HIL4E:
Revenue A 32,712 -
Loss for the year A A T J 15 (14,206) -
Total comprehensive income EE Y (14,206) -
Loss allocated to NCIs A3 TE T IR R RE A 2 R 1R (2,841) -
Dividends paid to NCIs O A JF Fe e e i 2 e = -
Net cash used in operating activities JH T 46 7 05 B 2 3 4 1 AR (2,009) -
Net cash used in investing activities AR EEE 2 B R (2,092) =
Net cash generated from financing A B RE I B) 2 B iR
activities 2,000 -
Net decrease in cash and cash B4 KB &S EY R H#E ,
equivalents (2,101) It'l"" e, —
* Comparative figures had not been disclosed as Guangdong HREE®RE T == flf\l‘f‘}‘:

Lumen was acquired during the year ended 31 December

2022.

HAK T SRR AT IR A 7]
SRR

S p 1k 4 o B R R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE _F " 4HF+ " H=1+—HILFE

44. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 44. #Hidr H IR FHE
On 29 March 2023, in relation to the Disposal as mentioned e S Sy = By | W= 1 ==Y
in note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements, a B2 M 513 (b) Br it /Y i B S TE B AT I
special general meeting (“SGM”) was held and the resolution R B SRR & (T RRIRE I SR & 1) - A R
of the Disposal was passed at the SGM. Accordingly, the I SRR B L 28 Y SR TR R o
completion condition of the Disposal had been fulfilled and PRI - R S IE 0 52 IR 1 > i
the completion of Disposal is effective on the same date. BRI 52 U TR] H AR R

45. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45. it ok B B R
The consolidated financial statements were approved and GEMBHmERN _F_=F=A=1TH
authorised for issue by the directors on 30 March 2023. T A S AR R T 8 o

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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Particulars of Investment Properties

P& W 2wt i

Group’s Approximately
percentage  Approximately Gross Floor Category of
Location interest Site Area Area  Usage Lease
AR MRy
Hiu B MEdE E syl BEAMSM R BERREEE AR AL RO
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
CEJ %) CF i k)
Phase I, Legend Town Cultural 30.6% 50,648.41 27,057.03  Cultural and Medium-term

and Art District,

No. 3 Guangji Road,

Nanyue District, Hengyang

City, Hunan Province, the PRC
I A e A i SR L I

ST Ar SLSCAL Al 7 [ — )

ALK BT AT A 7
SRR

recreational

AL g

lease

LR




Financial Summary

S 755 4 2

For the year ended 31 December
BWET A=+ —HILEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
SE g CFC - CFCEE CFONE CF AR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTRE ARMTIE ARWTZ ARWTIE ARWTT

Results E
Revenue g A 276,174 394,627 468,414 1,266,678 1,905,727
Profit before tax o Al il ¥4 317,657 157,929 80,244 1,575,955 405,067
Income tax credit/ RET R
(expense) (B %) 2,012 (6,513) (10,351) (73,782) (78,556)
Profit for the year AAE B i 319,669 151,416 69,895 1,502,173 326,511
Profit attributable to: JREAL %5 ) -
Owners of the Company VIN/NICIE ZEWN 333,383 158,972 64,165 1,402,389 147,029
Non-controlling interests  FF {4 i i 25 (13,714) (7,556) 5,728 99,784 179,482
319,669 151,416 69,893 1,502,173 326,511
As at 31 December
Wt HA=1+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
CE L ZEFE - R IR ZEF - ZEF - A\F
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AR T AR¥Trx AR¥TI AR¥KETT ARW¥TT
Assets and Liabilities o M fE
Total assets Mg E 5,020,879 4,276,863 3,662,512 3,470,502 3,468,716
Total liabilities AR (1,292,415)  (928,320)  (557,676)  (395,131)  (818,301)
Total assets less total G E WA
liabilities 3,728,464 3,348,543 3,104,836 3,075,371 2,650,415
Non-controlling interests I 4 f Hf &5 (170,896)  (173,596)  (149,142)  (197,150)  (900,180)

Equity attributable to EN/NEIE ZSN

owners of the Company JE A HE 25 3,557,568 3,174,947 2,955,694 2,878,221 1,750,235
Q\. ]
Za g
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